
1 

City Council Agenda 
Thursday, July 09, 2020 

6:00 PM 
35 Cabarrus Avenue, W, Concord NC  28025 

Cell phones are to be turned off or placed on vibrate during the meeting. Please exit the 
Council Chambers before using your cell phone. 

The agenda is prepared and distributed on Friday preceding the meeting to Council and 
news media. A work session is then held on the Tuesday preceding the regular meeting 
at 4:00 pm. 

In order to maintain the safety of City residents, City Council, and staff, the June 9, 2020 
City Council Work Session and the June 11, 2020 City Council meeting will be conducted 
electronically via Zoom and can be accessed with the following link: 

Join Zoom Meeting:  

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82744897457?pwd=UGh3OXI4UHFlZzhpTkpUWVF2a2tqQT09 

Phone Dialing alternative: 
646-876-9923 or 312-626-6799

Meeting ID: 827 4489 7457 Password: 579922 

Public Hearings will be conducted during the July 7, 2020 Work Session. If you would like 
to comment on a public hearing item or to comment during the Persons Requesting to be 
Heard portion of the July 9, 2020 City Council meeting click the following link:  

https://forms.gle/M37tMtHE3AFFjbBp8. 

* * * * *

I. Call to Order
II. Pledge of Allegiance and Moment of Silent Prayer:
III. Approval of Minutes:

June 9, June 11, and June 26, 2020.
IV. Presentations

1. Recognition of the City of Concord Finance Department for receiving the Certificate
of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting for period ending June 30,
2019.  The City of Concord has participated in the Government Finance Officer's 
Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) award program for many years 
and again has been successful in meeting the requirements for the Certificate of 
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting for the period ending June 30, 2019. 
The Certificate of Achievement is the highest form of recognition in the area of 
governmental accounting and financial reporting, and its attainment represents a 
significant accomplishment by a government and its management.  The City has 
received this award for 31 consecutive years.  

2. Recognition of the City of Concord Human Resources Department for being
awarded the 2020 Healthiest Employer of Greater Charlotte award.  The City of
Concord has received the second place award for the Healthiest Employers of Greater 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82744897457?pwd=UGh3OXI4UHFlZzhpTkpUWVF2a2tqQT09
https://forms.gle/M37tMtHE3AFFjbBp8


2 

Charlotte - companies with 500-1,499 workers.  This year's submission highlighted the 
City's priority on health and wellness.  The City provides routine emails and wellness tips 
to employees and posts wellness information and tips in break rooms, communal areas 
and on monitors throughout the workplace.  The wellness seminars that the City 
provides have increased over the past year as well, to include a wider variety of topics 
and the fitness facilities continue to be utilized by employees.  

V. Unfinished Business
VI. New Business

A. Informational Items
B. Departmental Reports
C. Recognition of persons requesting to be heard
D. Public Hearings

1. Conduct a public hearing and consider adopting an ordinance for annexation of
four (4) parcels located on the northeast side of the Rocky River Road and
Lower Rocky River Road intersection.  The authorized petitioner for the 
annexation is Keith Rains, PE, of McKim and Creed.   The authorized petitioner 
for the annexation is Keith Rains, PE, of McKim and Creed.  The subject property 
consists of +/- 56.83 acres on the northeast corner of Rocky River Road and Lower 
Rocky River Road.  The property is also adjacent to the southwest corner of The 
Mills at Rocky River project, and west of CC Griffin Middle School.  The applicant 
has proposed to annex the subject property for the development of a single-family 
residential detached subdivision.   

Recommendation: Consider a motion to adopt the annexation ordinance and 
set the effective date for July 9, 2020. 

2. Conduct a public hearing to consider approving the submission of the
Consolidated Plan for FY 2020-2024 and FY 2020-2021 Action Plan to the US
Department of Housing and Urban Development Community Development 
Block Grant (CDBG) and HOME Investment Partnership (HOME) programs.   
The City of Concord and the Cabarrus/Iredell/Rowan HOME Consortium are required 
to submit a Consolidated Plan every five (5) years to HUD.  This plan evaluates the 
housing and community development needs within the region and details proposed 
actions to address the identified needs.  As lead entity, Concord staff is responsible 
for gathering compiling and submitting to HUD information from all members.  This 
effort results in a unified, comprehensive plan outlining community development 
activities to be undertaken during the upcoming five (5) year, for the entire region. 
Due to COVID-19 limitations, HUD amended public comment periods to a shorter 
timeframe and allowed jurisdictions to host virtual public hearings to safely obtain 
input from residents and community stakeholders.  To help limit hardships for 
residents, staff has worked to obtain input via several virtual methods.  First, a 
survey was available on the Community Development webpage March 1st – April 
30th for initial input.  The survey link was shared with HOME members and 
community stakeholders to be distributed for area input.  Concord's first public 
hearing was held online through the City of Concord website on May 3 - 15, 2020.   A 
second virtual public hearing was held online from June 15th – June 26, 2020 where 
the general public, boards and commissions, non-profits, and other interested parties 
are asked to review and submit comments to the draft plan version available online. 
In addition to these efforts, two other surveys were opened via the City's webpage 
and Community Development's webpage.  To date, staff has received over 3,500 
responses from the community.  Based on this input, the main points identified as 
priorities within Concord and the region are; housing (rehabilitation/weatherization), 
affordable housing, homelessness and economic development.  These items are the 
core needs discussed and basis for actions proposed within the next five (5) years. 
Included within the Consolidated Plan is the 2020-2021 Annual Action Plan for 



3 

Concord.  This defines the activities selected to be carried out using the CDBG 
allocation is $682,540 and HOME Consortium allocation is $1,304,995.  The Annual 
Plan and budget mirrors what were presented in the City's overall budget which was 
adopted June 11, 2020.   

Recommendation: Motion to approve the submission of the Consolidated Plan 
for FY 2020-2024 and FY 2020-2021 Action Plan to the US Department of 
Housing and Urban Development Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 
and HOME Investment Partnership (HOME) programs. 

E. Presentations of Petitions and Requests
1. Consider adopting a resolution of intent to schedule a public hearing on the

matter of abandon a portion of the right-of-way of the former location of
Wilshire Ave. SW between Old Charlotte Rd. SW and the new alignment of 
Wilshire Ave SW.  The proposal includes the abandonment of the right-of-way and 
the granting of a permanent public utility easement to the City. Chris Lucas has 
applied for the right-of-way abandonment. Mr. Lucas, via his firm New South 
Properties, LLC, owns the property on both sides of the right of way proposed for 
abandonment. The General Statutes require that the City 1) post signs in two (2) 
places along the right-of-way, 2) send copies of the approved resolution of intent to 
all neighboring owners after adoption, and 3) advertise in the newspaper once a 
week for four (4) consecutive weeks.  The notice requirement would allow the 
hearing to be conducted at the August City Council meeting. 

Recommendation: Motion to adopt a resolution of intent to set a public hearing 
for the August City Council Meeting to abandon a portion of the right-of-way of 
the former location of Wilshire Ave. SW between Old Charlotte Rd. SW and the 
new alignment of Wilshire Ave SW. 

2. Consider authorizing the City Manager to negotiate and execute a contract with
Talbert Bright and Ellington (TBE) to provide professional engineering
services to mitigate obstructions at Concord-Padgett Regional airport and to 
adopt the operating budget amendment for the project.  Federal Aviation 
Administration last year has issued a Notice to All Airman (NOTAM) regarding 
unreliable service for our Automated Weather Observing System (AWOS) at 
Concord-Padgett Regional Airport. This NOTAM is in effect when the Air Traffic 
Control Tower (ATCT) is closed and Instrument Flight Rules conditions exist. We 
have had on several occasions where are based tenants were unable to fly back to 
the Airport due to AWOS being unreliable.  This decision was due to changes from 
FAA regarding obstructions around the AWOS's nationwide.  The new rule dictates 
that AWOS must be 1000 feet radius free from any obstructions, the previous rule 
stated 500 feet radius free.  The AWOS is located on the east side of the runway and 
has been in place for the last 25 years.  The Airport has identified the locations of 
trees to be removed. In addition, ATCT has identified a line of site issue with Taxiway 
G that needs to be addressed as well.  Due to the extensive number of trees being 
removed a documented category exclusion will need to be conducted.  KDAR, LLC 
has provided the required Independent Fee Analysis and the FAA has approved the 
scope of work for the project and has agreed to fund obstruction removal in FY 21. 
The funding for the professional services will be from the NCDOT-aviation grant that 
will be available July 2020.  The airport will receive $2, 240,445. 

Recommendation: Motion to authorize the City Manager to negotiate and 
execute a contract with TBE not to exceed $155,000 and to adopt the operating 
budget amendment for the project. 

3. Consider approving Neighborhood Matching Grant requests submitted by
Recognized Neighborhoods. Through the City's Partnership for Stronger
Neighborhoods program, recognized neighborhoods have the opportunity to 
participate in the Neighborhood Matching Grant Program. The purpose of the 
Neighborhood Matching Grant Program is to assist recognized neighborhoods with 



4 

completion of projects and/or programs that will enhance their community or 
neighborhood association.  Neighborhood organizations must match the funds 
requested with cash, in-kind donations of goods and services, or contributions of 
volunteer time.  For Fiscal Year 2020 - 2021, the maximum grant amount that may 
be requested for any project is $3,000 and the program budget is $30,000. All 
eligible recognized neighborhood organizations were invited to apply for grant funds. 
The application deadline was May 22, 2020. Staff received ten applications 
requesting a total $27,378.00 to complete $60,723.40 in projects. A grant review 
committee made up of staff from Engineering, Buildings & Grounds, Planning, and 
Transportation reviewed and ranked the applications based on a 100-point rating 
matrix. Evaluations measured community involvement, tangible public and 
neighborhood benefit, project readiness, and neighborhood contribution/match in 
funds. As a result of these assessments, the committee recommends funding nine 
neighborhood requests. The attached memorandum includes a brief description of 
each project. 

Recommendation: Motion to award FY 2020-21 Neighborhood Matching Grants 
as requested by the following recognized neighborhoods (1) $3,000 – Logan 
Community Association, (2) $3,000 – Gibson Village Community Association, (3) 
$3,000. – Oak Park Homeowner’s Association, (4) $1,273 – Hidden Pond 
Homeowner’s Association, (5) $3,000 – Sapphire Hills Townhome Association, 
(6) $3,000 – Christenbury Homeowner’s Association, (7) $2,095 – Lanstone
Homeowner’s Association, (8) $3,000 – Moss Creek Homeowners Association,
(9) $3,000 – Highland Creek Homeowners Association.

4. Consider adopting a resolution to create temporary COVID-19 related policies
for the City's utility customers regarding utility shut-offs, late fees, and
reconnection fees upon expiration of the Governor's Executive Order No. 124 
& 142.  On March 31, 2020, Executive Order (EO) No. 124 was signed by the 
Governor of North Carolina.  This order expired on June 1, 2020 and Executive 
Order 142 was issued to continue that order for 60 more days.  Among other things, 
this order prohibited residential utility shut-offs, late fees, and reconnection fees.  The 
order will expire in 120 days, or July 29, 2020.  Staff is requesting that a resolution 
be adopted by City Council to be in effect upon the expiration of EO 142.  This 
resolution will create the procedures for the City's utility customers that qualify for the 
6 month agreement required by EO 124 and EO 142.  The resolution will expire, for 
utility customers who are enrolled in a COVID -19 related payment agreements, no 
later than 6 months from the date the customer signs the agreement.  The EO states 
that residential customers, who had a bill due date between the dates of March 30, 
2020 and  July 29, 2020, should be given at least 6 months to pay the amount due. 
This resolution will also continue to suspend penalties for customers until the six 
month period ends, which should be in February, 2021.  The City plans to send the 
attached Pay Plan letter as an insert with the utility bills for all 3 billing cycles.  This 
information will also be shared through social media and telephone calls. Several 
documents have been attached for your review, including the City's current process 
for payment agreements. 

Recommendation: Motion to adopt a resolution which will create the temporary 
COVID-19 related policies for the City's utility customers regarding utility shut-
offs, late fees, and reconnection fees upon expiration of the Governor's Executive 
Order No. 124 & 142. 

5. Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the exchange of certain parking
easements for other equal parking easements.  Central United Methodist Church
has requested that the City consider exchanging existing parking easements on 
church property off Church Street for other equal parking easements located in the 
church parking lot off Killarney Avenue. 



5 

Recommendation: Motion to adopt a resolution authorizing the abandonment of 
the parking easement areas off Church Street and conveyance of those 
easements back to Central United Methodist Church and the exchange of the 
new easements areas and directing the City Attorney to take all necessary 
actions to complete the exchange. 

6. Consider authorizing the City manager to negotiate and execute a contract with
Queen City Engineering for Rider Transit Driver Protection Barriers.  As part of
our response to the COVID-19 Public Health Emergency, Rider Transit is requesting 
approval to proceed with the procurement of Driver Protection Barriers to help 
ensure the health and safety of our Fixed Route bus and Demand Response 
Operators. These barriers would provide twofold protection for our vehicle Operators: 
a physical barrier for enhanced protection from Coronavirus transmission, as well as 
a security barrier to protect Operators from any unwanted physical contact from 
passengers or the general public. Rider Transit is required to spend a minimum of 
1% of our FTA 5307 grant funding allocations on security related items, for which 
these barriers would be an eligible item. We have 17 vehicles, 4 different vehicles 
types, each requiring a different size and shaped barrier system. Rider Transit staff 
recommends awarding Queen City Engineering a contract in the amount of $57,500 
to design, build and install protection barriers on our 17 buses, vans and Light 
Transit Vehicles. Under new authorizations from FTA related to the Coronavirus 
Pandemic, Rider Transit will be able to use Federal grant funds to pay 100% of the 
cost of this project. This recommendation was approved by the Concord Kannapolis 
Transit Commission at their 6/24/20 meeting. 

Recommendation: Motion to authorize the City Manager to negotiate and 
execute a contract with Queen City Engineering for Rider Transit Driver 
Protection Barriers. 

7. Consider approving the Concord Kannapolis Area Transit Public Transportation
Agency Safety Plan.  New this year, FTA is requiring all federally funded public
transit systems to develop and maintain an Agency Safety Plan. Rider Transit, 
considered a Small Agency (under 100 buses) by FTA, will be participating under 
NCDOT's Statewide System Safety Program Plan. FTA program requirements 
include that approval of the new plan by the Concord Kannapolis Transit 
Commission, the Cabarrus Rowan MPO, and Concord City Council be included 
within the plan document itself before submission to NCDOT and FTA for their final 
approval. The new plan was approved by the Concord Kannapolis Transit 
Commission at their 6/24/20 meeting. 

Recommendation: Motion to accept and approve the Concord Kannapolis Area 
Transit FTA Public Transportation Agency Safety Plan. 

8. Consider approving the Master Plan and Conceptual Design for a 6.97 acre
neighborhood park located at 106 Wilson Street, NE, trailhead parking for the
McEachern Greenway.  The Parks and Recreation Department is pleased to 
present a master plan and conceptual drawing for Council’s consideration for 
property located at 106 Wilson Street, NE along the McEachern Greenway, 
commonly referred to as “Wilson Street Park.” The property is approximately 6.97 
acres, and current serves as trailhead parking for the McEachern Greenway.  The 
gravel parking area was developed in 2017 with the construction of the McEachern 
Greenway Extension and has since been cleared and maintained as open space. 
Based on recent revisions to FEMA Flood maps, much of the area that was formerly 
within the 100-year floodplain was removed in 2016, which will allow the City to pave 
the parking and add a new restroom building for the McEachern Greenway 
Extension. In addition to and based on recommendations from the Comprehensive 
Parks and Recreation Master Plan and the Open Space Connectivity Analysis, the 
transformation of this space into a new, and unique neighborhood park experience 
along the greenway became a top priority for the Department. Parks and Recreation 



6 

contracted with the firm, Viz Design to create a vision for the space that incorporates 
several thematic elements including a nature and themed playground area, outdoor 
classroom space, pollinator garden, enchanted fairy door path, labyrinth maze, and 
many other areas for kids and families to relax, enjoy nature and enjoy the 
greenway.  This park site also offers the opportunity to increase program offerings for 
children of all ages with the addition of the restroom and outdoor classroom. 
Situated along the McEachern Greenway, it will be one of five (5) connected park 
sites, which include Les Myers Park, McGee Park, Wilson Street, Beverly Hills and 
the David Phillips Activity Center recently opened, and the surrounding property. 

Recommendation: Motion to approve the Master Plan for Wilson Street Park. 
9. Consider authorizing the City Manager to negotiate and execute a contract with

Woolpert, North Carolina, PLLC to complete the master plan, public input, and
conceptual design for the Northwest Park.  The property at 1252 Cox Mill Road in 
Concord, which totals approximately 28.6 acres and is adjacent to Cox Mill 
Elementary School, was recently purchased by the City to serve as the site of 
Concord's first Community Park in the Northwest.  Parks and Recreation submitted 
an RFQ seeking professional design firms in March.  A total of 19 firms submitted 
Statements of Qualification, and through the selection process, the firm Woolpert, 
North Carolina, PLCC located at 11301 Carmel Commons Blvd., Suite 300 in 
Charlotte, North Carolina was selected.  The contract amount is for $83,820, which 
will include meetings with stakeholders, public workshops and public participation 
including a needs assessment survey, master planning, conceptual design, and 
other reimbursable expenses including presentations to Council once the master 
plan document is complete. Funding was identified in the FY21 budget for master 
planning.  Development of a park in the Northwest region of Concord is a City 
Council Goal, and top priority goal of the Comprehensive Parks and Recreation 
Master Plan.  Amenities in this park may include a recreation center, community 
room, meeting space, sport fields and/or courts (tennis, pickleball, etc.), open space, 
splash pad, dog park, disc golf, playgrounds, shelters and greenways and/or trails for 
connectivity. 

Recommendation: Motion to authorize the City Manager to negotiate and 
execute a contract with Woolpert, North Carolina, PLLC for master plan 
development for the property under consideration for a Northwest Park. 

10. Consider authorizing the City Manager to negotiate and execute a contract
with TELICS, Inc. for on-call Real Estate Services to assist with the land
acquisition process for greenway development.  Parks and Recreation with
assistance from Legal and Engineering, submitted an RFQ for Real Estate
Acquisition Services for park and greenway projects, and has selected the firm
TELICS (Telecommunication & Industrial Consulting Services). TELICS has
experience with several components of the land acquisition process, including
property research, right-of-way/fee simple/easement acquisitions, property
negotiations, appraisals, and survey work on a parcel by parcel basis.  TELICS also
has experience working with NCDOT on right-of-way acquisitions for future road
projects, and experience working with Mecklenburg County on Greenway
acquisitions.  TELICS Scope will include acquisition services for four (4) primary
greenway corridors as referenced in the Open Space Connectivity Analysis, and the
City’s Capital Improvement Plan, including McEachern Greenway, Hector Henry
Greenway, Clarke Creek Greenway (Cox Mill Loop), and Irish Buffalo Creek
Greenway.  On average, a typical greenway project could have anywhere from only
a few easements to acquire to as much as 15 individual parcels depending on the
corridor location.  TELICS fee will be anywhere from $3,000 to $8,700 per parcel
depending on the service provided.



7 

Recommendation: Motion to authorize the City Manager to negotiate and 
execute a contract with TELICS, Inc. for Real Estate Services for greenway 
development. 

11. Consider adopting a resolution to convey a temporary construction easement
to Cabarrus Propco, LLC.  Cabarrus Propco, LLC is developing a site on Drake Mill
Lane, SW known as Rocky Mill Manor which is an assisted living facility.  The City
owns the site adjacent to their parcel which is used for a trail and trail head parking.
The property line runs in the middle of an old erosion control measure (sediment
pond) that was used during the original site grading.  Cabarrus Propco, LLC
proposes to fill in the old sediment pond.  Engineering and Parks and Recreation
staff have met on site to review the grading plan, comments and amendments were
proposed back to the developers engineer which has been accepted and
incorporated.

Recommendation: Motion to adopt a resolution to convey a temporary 
construction easement to Cabarrus Propco, LLC. 

12. Consider a Preliminary Application from Land Development Solutions.  In
accordance with City Code Chapter 62, Land Development Solutions has submitted
a preliminary application to receive water and sewer service outside the City limits.
The property is located at 3560 US Hwy 601S and is approximately 173 acres.   The
parcel is currently zoned LDR and the applicant proposes to develop with a mixed
use development.

Recommendation: Motion to accept the preliminary application and have the 
owner proceed to the final application phase including annexation. 

VII. Consent Agenda
A. Consider accepting an Offer of Dedication of an access easement and

approval of the maintenance agreement. In accordance with the CDO Article 4 the
following access easements and maintenance agreements are now ready for
approval: Blue Anchor, LLC (PIN 4680-96-4101) 8400 Westmoreland Drive NW.
Access easement and SCM maintenance agreement is being offered by the owners.

Recommendation:  Motion to approve the maintenance agreements and accept 
the offers of dedication on the following properties: Blue Anchor, LLC. 

B. Consider accepting an Offer of Dedication of utility easements and public
rights-of-ways in various subdivisions. In accordance with CDO Article 5, the
following final plats and easements are now ready for approval: Roberta Ridge
Phase 1 Map 7 and Dalton Woods. Various utility easements and public rights-of-
ways are offered by the owners.

Recommendation:  Motion to accept the offer of dedication on the following plat 
and easements: Roberta Ridge Phase 1 Map 7 and Dalton Woods. 

C. Consider adopting a budget ordinance to correct an error in the HOME budget.
Staff is requesting that the HOME budget be amended to correct an error.  The
adopted budget amount for HOME includes prior year funding for a position that is
already allocated and should not have been included in the FY21 adopted budget
amount.

Recommendation:  Motion to adopt a budget ordinance to correct an error in the 
HOME budget. 

D. Consider adopting a General Capital Reserve Project ordinance to close
completed transfers for FYE 2020. Staff is requesting approval to close completed
transfers for this fiscal year 2020.

Recommendation:  Motion to adopt a General Capital Reserve Project 
ordinance to close completed transfers for FYE 2020. 

E. Consider adopting a Utility Reserve fund capital project ordinance amendment
to close prior year completed transfers. Staff is requesting that prior year
completed transfers be closed in the utility project reserve fund in the amount of
$3,416,725.



8 

Recommendation:  Motion to adopt a Utility Reserve fund capital project 
ordinance amendment to close prior year completed transfers. 

F. Consider adopting a Water capital project ordinance to remove the Roberta
Road Line project. Staff is recommending that the Roberta Line project. $35,000,
be removed from the project list.  The project will not be done at this time and the
revenues associated with this project will be placed in reserves for future projects.

Recommendation:  Motion to adopt a Water capital project ordinance to remove 
the Roberta Road Line project. 

G. Consider adopting a Wastewater project ordinance to close projects that are
not currently planned. Staff is requesting that several projects be removed from the
wastewater project fund.  These projects were adopted in various prior years, but
there is no activity in the accounts.  Staff is recommending that these projects be
removed from the books and the revenue sources be reserved for future projects.

Recommendation:  Motion to adopt a Wastewater project ordinance to close 
projects that are not currently planned. 

H. Consider approving the City's semi-annual debt report as of July 1, 2020. Staff
has been asked to report on the City's debt semi-annually.  The attached report
represents the City's annual principal and interest requirements as well as the
outstanding debt as of July 1, 2020.

Recommendation:   Motion to accept the semi-annual debt report for the City of 
Concord as of July 1, 2020. 

I. Consider acceptance of the Tax Office reports for the month of May 2020. The
Tax Collector is responsible for periodic reporting of revenue collections for the Tax
Collection Office.

Recommendation:  Motion to accept the Tax Office collection reports for the 
month of May 2020. 

J. Consider approval of Tax Releases/Refunds from the Tax Collection Office for
the month of May 2020. G.S. 105-381 allows for the refund and/or release of tax
liability due to various reasons by the governing body.  A listing of various
refund/release requests is presented for your approval, primarily due to
overpayments, situs errors and/or valuation changes.

Recommendation:  Motion to approve the Tax releases/refunds for the month of 
May 2020. 

K. Receive monthly report on status of investments as of May 31, 2020. A
resolution adopted by the governing body on 12/9/1991 directs the Finance Director
to report on the status of investments each month.

Recommendation:  Motion to accept the monthly report on investments. 

VIII. Matters not on the agenda
• TAC
• MTC
• Centralina Council of Government (CCOG)
• Concord/Kannapolis Transit Commission
• WSACC
• Public Art Advisory Committee
• Concord Family Enrichment Association
• PTT Committee
• Barber Scotia Property Task Force Committee

IX. General comments by Council of non-business nature
X. Closed Session (if needed)
XI. Adjournment



9 

*IN ACCORDANCE WITH ADA REGULATIONS, PLEASE NOTE THAT ANYONE WHO
NEEDS AN ACCOMMODATION TO PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING SHOULD NOTIFY THE
CITY CLERK AT (704) 920-5205 AT LEAST FORTY-EIGHT HOURS PRIOR TO THE
MEETING.



13



14



15



16



17



Meeting Date 
July 9, 2020 
 
Background 
 
The subject property consists of +/- 56.83 acres on the northeast corner of Rocky River 
Road and Lower Rocky River Road.  The property is also adjacent to the southwest 
corner of the Mills at Rocky River project, and west of CC Griffin Middle School.  The 
subject petition is a resubmittal for a previously considered site.  The 2019 petition was 
submitted prior to the adoption of the Conservation Subdivision standards and the 
request was tabled until the ordinance could be adopted.  After the Conservation 
Subdivision Ordinance was adopted, the petitioner provided details on the intended use 
of the property, which included 113 homes on the +/- 56.83 acres.  Council held a public 
hearing on March 12th, 2020 and voted to decline annexation.  Subsequently, the 
applicant submitted the current annexation petition for the same property, now 
proposing 106 homes. 
 
As with all annexations, staff contacts both internal City departments and external 
agencies for input.  Previously, the Concord Fire Department stated that due to the 
location of the site in comparison to the primary corporate limits and the distance to 
nearest fire station, it would be necessary to contract out fire services for the site if 
annexation were approved.  Fire has recalculated the distance and believes they can 
serve the site without outside contracts.  However, the Police Department maintains 
that annexation would “stretch out the boundaries of Baker District and dilute resources 
further away from the more populated areas of that district,” and that if annexed, 
consideration should be given to future resource needs.  Cabarrus County Schools 
provided student enrollment numbers for the previous submittal but has not responded 
with modified calculations for the current proposal which provides a reduction in 
building units.  A reduction in unit counts would likely reduce the student impact on 
effected schools. 
 
Should annexation be adopted, the petitioner plans to request a rezoning to the CS 
(Conservation Subdivision) zoning classification.  Although site plans are not required for 
annexation hearings, the pretensioner has provided a preliminary site schematic which 
is attached to Council’s packet materials, indicating a maximum of 106 lots at 1.87 du/a.  
A preliminary review indicates that the plan can meet the minimum standards set forth 
for the CS zoning district.  If annexation is adopted, the plan will be required to go 
through technical site plan review prior to rezoning.  The City is required to place a 
zoning classification on all annexed property within 60 days of municipal incorporation.  
Should this or any property be annexed and the plan be insufficient for review by the 
Planning & Zoning Commission by that the required 60 days, City Staff will prepare an 
administrative zoning request.  In this instance, staff would recommend the RE 
(Residential Estate) zoning district. 
 
The property is currently zoned CR (Countryside Residential) in Cabarrus County which 
permits a density of up to one (1) dwelling unit per acre.  The subject property is also 
located within the Central Area Plan’s Very Low-Density development guide allowing 

18



density up to 1 unit per two acres or 2 units per acre with additional development 
standards.  Furthermore, the subject property is also within the 2030 Land Use Plan’s 
Suburban Neighborhood Land Use Category and Conservation District Character Area, 
also requiring enhanced development standards.   

 
CS (Conservation Subdivision Standard Highlights) 

1. Inventory and mapping of existing resources (including but not limited to): 
• soil type locations 
• hydrologic characteristics 
• trees with a caliper of more than thirty-two (32) inches 
• known critical habitat areas 
• views of the site 
• primary conservation areas 
• secondary conservation areas 
• existing forests of at least one contiguous acre, containing five trees or 

more per acre measuring 32”DBH 
• at least 80 percent of residential lots shall abut common open space 
• heritage tree preservation 
• scenic view protection 

 

19



20



56.83
_

21



22



23



24



25



STATE Of NORTH C,till.OLINA SECOND AMENDMENT TO 
AMENDED AND RESTATED 

COUNTY OFMECKL 1 URG TRUST AGREEMENT 

THIS SECOND AMENTMENT TO AMENDED A D REST ATED TR ST 
GREEME is executed this 24th day of May, 2012, by AN~ w. Tn~O of Mecklenburg 

County, orth Carolina, who is referred to in this S.;;!cond Amendment in the first person. 

I enter d into an Amended and R estated Trust Agre ment dated the 21 st day of July, 
2004, with ANNE W. TINO, Trustee. I executed a First Amendment to Amended and Restated 
Trust Agreement on the 14th day of December, 2004. 

nder Article X of the trust instrument, which Article was amended pursuant to the First 
Amendment to Amended and Restated Trust Agreement on December 14, 2004, I reserved the 
right at any time to amend th trust in whole or in part by notice delivered to the Trustee. I now 
desire to furth r exercise my right of amendment and amend the trust instrument as follows: 

FIRST: I amend Article IV, Section A. Paragraph 1, which appears on pages 4 and 5 of 
the Amended and Restated Trust Agreement so that as amended, Article IV, Section A. 
Paragraph 1 shall read in its ntirety as follows: 

1. 	 McDowell Propeny. Upon the death of Settlor, if the trust property includes Settlor's 
residence at 123 McDowell Street, Matthews, Mecklenburg County, _ orth Carolina, 
and designated as parcel number 227-024-30 (hereinafter the "McDowell Property"), 
the Trustee shall hold the McDowell Property in trust. STEPHE T °shall be 
allowed to continue to live and reside at the McDowell Property for so long as the 
Trust , in his sole discretion, deems that living situation to be appropriate and 
beneficial to STEPHEN T I 0 . 

In the event STEPHE r °does not live or re ide at the McDowell Property but 
the trust continues to own the McDowell Prop rty, the Trustee may, in his sole 
discretion, lease the cOowell Property to a third party for a monthly rental rate to be 
determined by the Trustee in his sole discretion. All net income generated from the 
lease of the McDowell Property, after the payment of maintenance, upkeep, taxes and 
other costs, shall be distributed at least quarterly to or for the ben tit of my sons 
STEPHEN TINO, MARK TINO and FRANK TINO, in equal shares . In the event 
any of my sons die while the McDowell Property is generating income. the periodic 
payments that would have been distributed to that son shall instead be divided equally 
among my survIVIng sons. 

When, in the sole discretion of the Trustee, the Trustee elects to sell the McDowell 
Propert , fifty percent (50%) of the net proceeds of said sale shall be distributed to 
the Trust for Settlor's Son, STEPH. N TINO, as stablished in Article IV, Section A, 
Paragraph 3 hereinbelow, and all amendments thereto, to be held, managed 

1 


26



administered and distributed in accordance with the terms of Article IV, Section B 
hereinbelow, and all amendments thereto. 

The r maining fifty percent (50%) shall be distributed outright, free and clear of trust, 
in equal shares to Settlor's sons MARK TINO and FRANK TINO, if they ar alive at 
the time of the sale of the McDowell Property. If MARK T ° is not alive at the 
time of the sale of the McDowell Property, his share shall instead be distributed to his 
issue. per stirpes. If FRANK TINO is not alive at the time of the sale of the 
McDowell Property, his share shall instead be distributed to his children. RYA T 

TINO and LAUREN TINO, per capita. If neither of such sons nor issue of either of 
such sons survives Settlor, the Trustee shall dispose of the remaining trust estate fo r 
the benefit of Settlor's issue and the other contingent beneficiaries in accordanc with 
the provisions of paragraph D below. 

I have intentionally chosen to omit my granddaughter A.rvIBER TINO from any 
distributions hereunder not for lack of love or affection but in an effort to pr serve her 
eligibility for benefits to which she is otherwise entitled. 

SECO D: I amend Article IV, Section A, Paragraph 2, which appears on pages 5 and 6 
of the Amended and Restated Trust Agreement, and which was amended pursuant to the First 
Amendment to Amended and Restated Trust Agreement on December 14, 2004, so that as 
amended, Art i ' Ie IV, Section A, Paragraph 2 shall read in its entirety as follows: 

2. 	 Rockv River Road Property. Upon the death of Settlor, if the trust property includes 
that certain approximately 20.5 acre tract along Rocky River Road, Han-isburg, 
Caban-LIS County orth Carolina and designated as parcel number 55274 16442 
(hereinafter the "Rocky River Road Property"), the Trustee shall hold the Rocky 
River Road Propeliy in trust for the benefit of S ttlor's sons, STEPl-IEI T O. 
MARK T 0 and FRA K TINO. 

The Trustee ma , in his sole discretion, lease all or any portion of the Rocky River 
Road Prop rty to a third party (or to third parties) for a monthly rental rate to be 
determined by the Trustee, in his sole discretion. All net income generated from the 
lease of the Rocky River Road Property, after the payment of maintenance, upkeep, 
taxes and other costs, shall be distributed at least qualierly to or for the ben fit of my 
s ns STEPHEN TINO, M. RK TINO and FRA K TINO, in equal shares. In the 
e ent any of my sons die while the Rocky River Road Property is generating income, 
the periodic payments that would have been distributed to that son shall instead be 
divided equally among my surviving sons. 

When in the sole discretion of the Trustee, the Trustee elects to sell the Rocky River 
Road Property, the net proceeds of said sale shall be distributed outright free and 
clear of trust, in equal shares to Settlor's sons MARK TINO and FRANK TINO, if 
they are alive at the time of the sale of the Rocky River Road Property . If MARK 
TINO is not alive at the time of the sale of the Rocky River Road PropeI1y, his share 

2 


27



shall ins tead be distributed to his issue, per stirpes. If FRANK INO is not alive at 
th time of the sale of the Rocky River Road Property, his share shall instead be 
distributed to his children, RYA TINO and LAUREN TINO, per stirpes. If neither 
of such sons nor issue of either of such sons survives Settlor, the Trustee shall di pose 
of the remaining trust estate for the ben~fit of Settlor ' s issue and the other contingent 
beneficiaries in accordance with the provisions of paragraph D below. 

I have intentionally chosen to omit my granddaughter AMBER TINO from any 
distributions hereunder not for lack of love or affection but in an effort to preserve her 
eligibility for benefit to which she is otherwise entitled. 

THIRD: I amend Article IV; Section A, Paragraph 4, which appears on page 7 of the 
Amended and Restated Trust greement, so that as amended, Article IV, Section A, Paragraph 4 
shall read in its entirety as follows: 

4. 	 Allocation of Balance of Trust Property . After the distribution made pursuant to 
paragraph 3 above, the Trustee shall then distribute the remaining trust estate to 
Settlor 's sons, MARK TINO and FRANK TINO, if both of them survive Settlor, in 
qual shares. If IvlARK TINO does not survive Settlor, his share shall instead be 

distributed to his issue, per stirpes. If FRANK T 0 does not survive Settlor, his 
share shall instead be distributed to his children, RYAN TINO and LAUREN TINO, 
per stirpes. If neither of such sons nor issue of either of such sons survives Settlor, 
the rustee shall dispose of the remaining trust estate for the benefit of Settlor 's issue 
and the other contingent beneficiaries in accordance with the provisions of paragraph 
D below. 

I have intentionally chosen to omit my granddaughter AMBER TINO from any 
distributions hereunder not fo r lack of love or affection but in an effort to preserve her 
eligibility for benefits to which she is otherwis entitled. 

FO RTH: I amend , ,ticle IV, Section B, Paragraph 2, which appears on page 8 of the 
Amended and Restated Trust Agreement, and which was amended pursuant to the First 
Amendment to Amended and Restated Trust greement on December 14, 2004, so that as 
amended, Article IV, Section B, Paragraph 2 shall read in its entirety as follows : 

3. 	 Distribution Upon Death of STEPHEK TI -0. Upon the death of Settlor' s son 
ST PHE TINO, the Trustee shall distribute the then-remaining principal balance 
and undistributed income of his trust to S Wor's sons, MARK T °and FRANK 
TINO, if both of them survive Settlor, in equal shares. If MARK TINO does not 
survive Settlor, his share shall instead be distributed to his issue, per stirpes. If 
FRA K TINO does not survive Settlor, his share shall instead be distributed to his 
children, RYAN TINO and LAUREN TINO, per stirpes. If neither of such sons nor 
issue of either of such sons survives Settlor, th Trustee shall dispose of the 
remaining trust estate for the benefit of Settlor ' s issue and the other contingent 
beneficiaries in accordance with the provisions of paragraph D below. 

3 

28



It is my desire that before the Trustee makes the distribution of the principal balance 
and undistributed income of STEPHE TINO's trust as directed in the paragraph 
immediately above that the Trustee donate a p011ion of the trust assets to a Christ ian 
charitable organization of the Trustee 's choosing. I ask my Trustee to take into 
account my beliefs and wishes and to consider organizations that have served me and 
my children during their lifetimes, but my Trustee is not bound by these wishes. 

I have intentionally chosen to omit my granddaughter AMBER TINO from any 
distributions hereunder not for lack of love or affection but in an effort to preserve her 
eligibility for benefits to which she is othern ise entitled. 

FIFTH: I amend Aliicle X, hich app ars on pages 23 and 24 of the Amended and 
Restated Trust Agreement, and which was amended pursuant to the First Amendment to 
Amended and Restated Trust Agreement on December 14, 2004, so that as amended, .Article X 
shall read in its entirety as follows: 

Settlor reserves th right and power to alter, amend or revoke this Agreement at any 
time, and from time to time, either in whole or in part, without the consent of the 
Trustee or any benefIciary hereunder or under any of said policies, by wrill~n notice 
to th Trustee to that effect; provide, however, that the duties, responsibilities and rate 
of compensation of the Trustee shall not be altered or modified without its written 
consent. 

Any successor Trustee is authorized and directed to accept from any prior Trustee the 
assets delivered by such predecessor on the basis of the predecessor ' s accounting for 
such assets without requiring an audit or other independent accounting of the 
transactions, acts or omissions of such prior Trustee, and any successor Trustee shall 
not have any duty, responsibility, obLigation or liability whatsoever for the acts or 
omissions of any prior Trustee. 

Upon the death,. removal, failure or inability to serve of AN E W. TINO as Trustee. 
Settlor's son, MARK TINO, shall serve as successor Trustee. I recommend that 
MARK TINO seek the advice of a fi nancial plann~r in managing the trust. Within 
thirty (30) days of accepting the responsibility of serving as successor Trustee, 
MARK TINO as successor Trustee shall designate a successor Trustee to serve in the 
event of his death or resignation as Trustee. The designation of a successor Trustee 
shall be in writing, executed by the Trustee and accepted by the written 
acknowledgement of the successor Trustee. The original designation and acceptance 
shall be attached to the original of the Trust Agreement. 

In the event that no successor Trustee shall be named to serve or all of the successor 
Trustees shall fail to serve as Trustee for any reason and no Trustee shall; then be 
named or serving, then in such event, a successor Trustee shall be named and 
appointed in a written instrument in recordable form signed by a majoEty of the adult 
beneficiaries who have capacity to consent and the parent(s) or guardian(s) of the mi 
nor and/or incompetent beneficiaris of the trust(s) created hereunder. 

4 

29



I have signed and sealed this instrument on the 24th day of May, 2012 .. 

STA E OF ORTH C ROLlNA 

/oUNTY OF wIECKL rBURG 

r. Kimberly A. Gossage, a Notary Public for said County and State. do bereby certify that 
ANNE W. TINO p rsonally appeared before me this day and acknowledge the due execution of 
the foregoine instrument. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal, this the 24th day of May, 2012. 

My commission expires: 5/2112016 

5 


30



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
RESJGNATION OF TRUSTEE 

COUNTY OF MECKLE BURG 

L ANNE W. TINO, Trustee under an Amended and Restated Tru!::'i Agreement dated the 

2 1st day of July, 2004, as subsequently amended, p rs uant to Article X, hereby resign as Trustee. 

I understand that upon my resignation, MARK 

successor Truslee. 

This the 24mday of .:vIay, 2012. 

_ _____ ____ .____(SEAL) 

ANNE W. TINO, Trustee 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLlNA 
~~ A(t~ ~1 /tv\~ (.AI. ~ }'" 

i?~ u 6wf ~~.o;j~ ~.1n;. 

COUNTY OF JVIECKLENBURG. 

I, Kimberly A. Gossage, a Notary Public for said County and State, do hereby certiJy that 
At"\JNE W. TL 0 personally appeared before me this day and acknowledge the due execution of 
the foregoing instrument. 

W ITNESS m y hand and oftl cial seal, this the 24th day of M ay, 20 12. 

My commission expires: 5/2112016 

31



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 

APPOINTMENT OF SUCCESSOR 

COUNTY OF MECKLENB RG CO-TRUSTEES 

I, MARK TINO, Trustee under an Amended and Restated Trust Agreement dated the 

21 st day of July, 2004, as subsequently amended, having accepted appointment as successor 

Trustee upon the resignation of the initial Trustee on May 24, 2012, pursuant to Article X, 

hereby appoint my brother FRANK TINO, my nephew RYAN ANTHONY TINO and rny son, 

BRIAN ANT HONY TINO, to serve jointly as successor co-trustees in the event of my death, 

removaL failure or inability to serve. In the event FRANK TINO, RYAN ANTHONY TINO 

or BRIAN ANTHONY TINO is unable or unwilling to serve as a co-trustee hereunder, the 

survivors shall serve as the co-trustees. In the event two of these individuals are unable or 

unwilling to serve as co-trustees, the survivor shall serve as sole trustee. 

All other rights, responsibilities and duties of the trustees as defined in the Amended and 

Restated Trust Agreement shall remain in effect and shall apply to the successor co-trustees in 

the event they are called upon to serve in said capacity. 

Thistbe~dayof ~tJ/le...- :t4-vi:Z=Z
(SE L) 

MARK TINO, Trustee 

COMMO 'vVE ALTl-I OF PE NSYLVANIA 

CO -NTY OF ~~Ia 
I, Uebl,)1 0.."" :X . \l o...LUlr -e 110 , a Notary Public for said County and State, do hereby 

certify that MARK TINO personally appeared before me this day and acknowledge the due 
execution of the foregoing instrument. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal , this the ~ tL day of ~\d , 2012. 

MOl(}~9\)o...L ~ 
Notary Public 

My commission expires: ~~~J.l..J-'::~G.:l~---+==CO=MM~O:.:.;N:.:.;WEAL:=::=JH=O-:::= F=PEN~N::.SYL:..::..:.:VAN~IA~ 
Not!r1a1 Seal 

Oeboran l . Vaccarello, Notary Public 
Green Tree Born, AIIegt1eny County 

My Commission ExpIres Oct. 8, 2013 
Member, Pennsvtvanli! Assodatkln ~ NotaI1es 

32



33



34



Being located in Number 1 Township of Cabarrus County, North Carolina and 

being more particularly described as follows: 

Beginning at a point in the centerline of Rocky River Road having NC Grid 

Coordinates of N: 571,116.61, E: 1,523,716.96, said point being the northwestern 

corner of Roberta Gail Ritchie Linker as recorded in DB 11386 PG 198 and runs 

thence from the point of beginning along the center line of Rocky River Road the 

following three (3) calls: 1) thence N 38˚ 54’ 42” E 325.60’ to a computed point; 2) 

thence N 38˚ 54’ 42” E 250.79’ to a computed point; 3) thence N 37˚ 58’ 41” E 

364.66’ to a computed point, said point being the southwestern corner of Nao 

Kha Vang and Dia X. Vang as recorded in DB 6489 PG 117; thence leaving said 

centerline along the south line of said Vang parcel S 51˚ 17’ 41” E 393.08’ to a 

computed point; thence along the east line of said Vang parcel the following two 

calls: 1) thence N 38˚ 40’ 12” E 146.00’ to a found iron rod; 2) thence N 07˚ 27’ 30” 

W 215.37’ to a computed point (passing a found iron rod at 214.77’) and being the 

northwestern corner of Anne W. Tino as recorded in DB 7074 PG 164; thence 

along the north line of said Tino parcel N 82˚ 19’ 08” E 499.31’ to a found iron rod 

on the western line of Green Street Land Co. L.L.C. as recorded in DB 13394 PG 

152; thence along said west line S 11˚ 58’ 09” E 870.23’ to a found iron rod being 

the northwestern corner of Cabarrus County as recorded in DB 3127 PG 55; 

thence along the west line of said Cabarrus County tract S 11˚58’ 31” E 937.93’ to 

a found iron rod on the east line of said Cabarrus County tract and being the 

northeastern corner of Bric A. Elswick and Laurie A. Elswick; thence along the 

north line of said Elswick tract the following five (5) calls: 1) thence S 76˚ 38’ 37” 

W 906.31’ to a found iron rod; 2) thence N 47˚ 35’ 02” W 238.75’ to a found iron 

rod; 3) thence S 75˚ 06’ 12” W 542.95’ to a found iron rod; 4) thence S 10˚ 31’ 58” E 

208.17’ to a found iron rod; 5) S 73˚ 03’ 23” W 331.43’ to the centerline of Lower 

Rocky River Road (passing a found iron rod at 300.49’) and being the 

northwestern corner of said Elswick tract; thence along the centerline of said 

Lower Rocky River Road the following six (6) calls: 1)  thence N 38˚05’ 33” W 

2.60’ to a computed point; 2) thence along a circular curve to the right having a 

radius of 1093.48’, an arch length of 201.98’, and a chord bearing and distance of 

N 33˚ 52’ 46” W 201.70’ to a computed point; 3) thence N 27˚ 12’ 42” W 15.60’ to a 

computed point; 4) thence N 27˚ 12’ 42” W 128.28’ to a computed point; 5) thence 

along a circular curve to the left having a radius of 904.13’, an arch length of 

140.52’, and a chord bearing and distance of N 30˚ 45’ 53” W 140.38’ to a 

computed point; 6) thence N 34˚ 20’ 30” W 11.21’ to a computed point and being 

the southwestern corner of Rocky River Presbyterian Church (deed not found); 

thence leaving said centerline along the south line of Rocky River Presbyterian 

Exhibit A

35



Church N 47˚ 48’ 10” E 243.63’ to an found iron rod being the northeast corner of 

said Rocky River Presbyterian Church parcel and being on the west line of said 

Roberta Gail Ritchie Linker parcel; thence with the west line of said tract S 30˚ 43’ 

00” E 261.67’ to a found iron rod at the southwest corner of said tract; thence 

along the south line of said Linker tract for the following two (2) calls: 1) thence 

N 66˚ 41’ 13” E 186.34’ to a found iron rod; 2) thence N 43˚ 29’ 25” E 636.80’ to a 

found iron rod being the northeast corner of said tract: thence with the northern 

line of said tract N 50˚ 23’ 32” W 406.29’ to a found iron rod at the southwest 

corner of Rocky River Presbyterian Church Cemetery (no deed found); thence 

with three (3) lines of said cemetery the following calls: 1) thence N 31˚ 05’ 01” E 

108.86’ to a computed point; 2) thence N 47˚ 44’ 53” W 165.00’ to a computed 

point; 3) thence S 36˚ 48’ 27” W 114.70’ to a found iron rod being the southwest 

corner of said cemetery and on the north line of said Linker tract; thence with 

said north line N 61˚ 10’ 27” W 208.36’ to the place of BEGINNING. Said parcel 

contains 56.83 acres, more or less.  

36



Exhibit B and C

37



38



39



DESCRIPTIONS DATE

REVISIONS

SCALE

HORIZONTAL:

VERTICAL:

DRAWING NUMBER

STATUS:

DRAWN

PROJ. MGR. 

DESIGNED

CHECKED

DATE:

MCE PROJ. #

APRIL 2020

07816-0001

SKETCH PLAN

REV.NO.

This electronic document is the

property of

McKim & Creed, Inc.

and is not to be used for any

purpose without the written consent

of the engineer whose seal appears

on the original certified document.

DO NOT REMOVE FROM

ELECTRONIC FILE

REVISION

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

www.mckimcreed.com

NC License# F-1222

8020 Tower Point Drive

Phone: (704) 841-2588, Fax: (704) 841-2567

Charlotte, North Carolina 28227

1"=100'

NA

CITY OF CONCORD, NC

LOWER ROCKY RIVER  ROAD

SKETCH PLAN

CONSERVATION AREAS

3

PROPOSED 30'

SSWR EASEMENT

PROPOSED 20'

STORM EASEMENT

PROPOSED 30' PERIMETER BUFFER YARD

TYPE B (COS)(TYP)

SECONDARY CONSERVATION

CONTIGUOUS FOREST

25% SLOPES

1.84 ACRES

20' CONSERVATION

EASEMENT (TYP)

PROPOSED 30' THOROUGHFARE

 BUFFER TYPE D (COS)

DJS

DJS

TMM

TMM

PROPOSED BMP#2

PROPOSED BMP#1

SECONDARY CONSERVATION

CONTIGUOUS FOREST

1.25 ACRES

PRIMARY CONSERVATION

WETLAND AND

STREAM WITH BUFFER

2.41 ACRES

PRIMARY CONSERVATION

100 YEAR

FLOOD PLAIN

7.04 ACRES

PROPOSED FOOT PATH

 (TYP)

HERITAGE TREE

TO  BE REMOVED

HERITAGE TREE

TO  BE REMOVED

PROPOSED GREENWAY

DEDICATION FOR FUTURE

DEVELOPMENT BY OTHERS

100' 50' 0 100' 200'

1"=100'

R

what 
Call

below.
before

Know
you dig.

s

PARCEL LINE (PROPOSED)

PROPERTY LINE (ADJOINING)

PROJECT BOUNDARY (SITE)

EASEMENT (OTHER)

EASEMENT (STORM DRAINAGE)

BUFFER

BUILDING SETBACK

MAJOR TOPO CONTOUR

MINOR TOPO CONTOUR

FEATURE EXISTING PROPOSED

EASEMENT (SEWER)

FENCE LINE

RIGHT-OF-WAY (ROAD)

OVERHEAD UTILITY

SANITARY SEWER

STORM

UNDERGROUND GAS

UNDERGROUND TELEPHONE

UNDERGROUND WATERLINE

TOP OF BANK

BOTTOM OF BANK

TREE SAVE AREA

COMMON OPEN SPACE (COS)

EASEMENT (SIDEWALK)

POND / WATER FEATURE

SANITARY EASEMENT

RAIL ROAD

EASEMENT (TEMP. CONSTRUCTION)

TREE LINE

WETLAND BOUNDARY

648

650

C ROAD

 L

C DITCH/SWALE

 L

C CREEK/STREAM

 L

FEMA 100-YR FLOOD ZONE

FEMA FLOODWAY

FEMA FINGE LINE (Zone-X)

PRIMARY CONSERVATION

SECONDARY CONSERVATION

CONSERVATION EASEMENT

BUFFER, PERIMETER AND

THOROUGHFARE

C

O

L

L

E

C

T

O

R

 
R

D

 
"

A

"

6

0

'
 
P

U

B

L

I
C

 
R

/
W

L

O

C

A

L

 

C

O

U

R

T

 

"

C

"

5

0

'

 

P

U

B

L

I

C

 

R

/

W

LOCAL ROAD "F"

50' PUBLIC R/W

LOCAL ROAD "E"

50' PUBLIC R/W

C

O

L

L

E

C

T

O

R

 

R

D

 

"

B

"

6

0

'

 

P

U

B

L

I

C

 

R

/

W

L

O

C

A

L

 
R

O

A

D

 
"
G

"

5
0
'
 
P

U

B

L

I
C

 
R

/
W

L

O

C

A

L

 
C

O

U

R

T

 
"
D

"

5

0

'
 
P

U

B

L

I
C

 
R

/
W

PROPOSED 15'

TRAIL EASEMENT

 (TYP)

HERITAGE TREE

TO  BE REMOVED

SECONDARY CONSERVATION

CONTIGUOUS FOREST

1.19 ACRES

PRIMARY CONSERVATION

CONTIGUOUS FOREST

W/ HERITAGE TREES

1.12 ACRES

NOTES:

1- ALL AREAS DESIGNATED AS TREE SAVE, PRIMARY CONSERVATION OR SECONDARY

CONSERVATION ARE TO REMAIN UNDISTURBED.

2- BMP AREAS ARE NOT UTILIZED IN COS CALCULATIONS.

3- GREENWAY DEDICATION FOR FUTURE DEVELOPMENT BY OTHERS.

APPROXIMATE LOCATION

OF PROPOSED SITE

VICINITY MAP

N.T.S.

1

2

22

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

41

42

38

43

44

45

46

47

48

50

51

52

57

58

59

60

65

66

88

87

89
90

92

83

84

53

85

64

61

68

70

69

71

72

75

76

78

79

80

81

82

3

5

6

7

11

9

10

12

13

14

91

93 94

106
105

104

103 102

100
101

99

9695

21

20

19

18

16

67

63

56

73

77

15

8

4

23

39

40

49

54

86

97

98

74

55

62

17

PARCELS (PIN14): 55274164420000

55274064970000

55274011480000

55263989130000

PARCEL AREA: ±56.83 ACRES

DUA: 1.87 UNITS/ACRE

CURRENT ZONING: CR (CABARRUS COUNTY)

PROPOSED ZONING: CS (CITY OF CONCORD)

-DESIGNED AS CONSERVATION SUBDIVISION

TOTAL UNITS: 106 UNITS

LOT SIZE: 54 x 120

SETBACKS:

FRONT 24'

SIDE 7'

REAR 5'

TOTAL COS REQUIRED 22.73 ACRES (40%)

TOTAL COS PROVIDED 23.78 ACRES (41.8%)

BUFFER 4.92 ACRES

DEDICATION 6.95  ACRES

ALL OTHER 11.91 ACRES

ROADS (ROLLING & LEVEL TERRAIN)

MINOR COLLECTOR (60'R/W) 2770 LIN.FT.

LOCAL RESIDENTIAL (50'R/W) 2468 LIN.FT.

TREE SAVE PROVIDED 11.49 ACRES

HERITAGE TREES PRESERVED 13 (81%)

CONSERVATION AREAS PROVIDED 14.86 ACRES

PRIMARY CONSERVATION 10.58 ACRES

SECONDARY CONSERVATION 4.28  ACRES

LOTS ADJACENT TO COS

REQUIRED 85  (80%)

PROVIDED 91  (86%)

EXISTING IMPERVIOUS ±16000 SF

-GIS ESTIMATED

40



TR
IFE

CT
A C

T

POMPANO

RD

SE
WA

LL
AV

E S
W

ROCKY
RIVER RD

RAYLEE

AVE SW

BAILIFFCT SW

CA
TT

AI
L

CT
 SW

DOVER
MILL

DR
SW

NEWSOME
CT SW

MI
LL

TO
WN

CT
 SW

VAN BUREN
AVE SW

MILLSTONE
CIR SW

MILL
CR

EE
K

LN
SW

WI
NT

ER
GA

RD
EN

 DRMOSS CREEK DR

SEQUOIAHILLS DR

SA
ND

OW
N 

CT

DRAKE MILL
LN SW

HO
LD

EN
AV

E S
W

LOWER ROCKY

RIVER RD

ELBENS
LN SW

GRIST MILLDR SW

SC
AR

BR
OU

GH
CI

R
SW

PEMBROOK RD

PHARR MILL RD

AD
DI

SO
N 

DR

PA
UL

LIN
KE

R P
L

GRIFFINS
GATE DR SW

PINE GROVE CHURCH RDSource: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS,
USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS User Community

²

Subject Property 
Map

ANX-08-20

Keith Rains
NE Corner of the 
Rocky River Rd & 
Lower Rocky River 
Road Intersection

PINs:
5527-41-6442,
5527-40-6497,
5527-40-1148,
5526-39-8913

Source: City of Concord
Planning Department

These maps and products are designed for general
reference only and data contained herein is subject 
to change. The City Of Concord, it's employees or 
agents make no warranty of merchantability or fitness 
for any purpose, expressed or implied, and assume no 
legal responsibility for the information contained therein. 
Data used is from multiple sources with various scales 
and accuracy. Additional research such as field surveys 
may be necessary to determine actual conditions.

Disclaimer
Legend

Subject Property
Concord City Limits

41



AN ORDINANCE TO EXTEND THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
CONCORD, NORTH CAROLINA TO INCLUDE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 7785 

ROCKY RIVER ROAD, 8041 LOWER ROCKY ROAD, 8063 ROCKY RIVER 
ROAD AND ADDITIONAL UNADRESSED PARCELS 

 
 WHEREAS, the City Council has been petitioned under G.S. 160A-58.1 by 
Keith Rains, PE, McKim and Creed, on July 7, 2020 to annex the area described 
below; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council has by resolution directed the City Clerk to 
investigate the sufficiency of the petitions; and   
 
 WHEREAS, the City Clerk has certified the sufficiency of the petitions and 
a public hearing on the question of this annexation was held via an electronic 
digital media platform, on July 7, 2020 after due notice by The Independent 
Tribune on June 26, 2020; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the petitions meet requirements of 
G.S. 160A-58.1; 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 
Concord, North Carolina, that: 
 
 SECTION 1. By virtue of the authority granted by G.S. 160A-58.1, the 
following described territory is hereby annexed and made part of the City of 
Concord, as of the 9th day of July 2020: 
 
Being located in Number 1 Township of Cabarrus County, North Carolina and 
being more particularly described as follows: 
 

Beginning at a point in the centerline of Rocky River Road having NC Grid 
Coordinates of N: 571,116.61, E: 1,523,716.96, said point being the northwestern 
corner of Roberta Gail Ritchie Linker as recorded in DB 11386 PG 198 and runs 
thence from the point of beginning along the center line of Rocky River Road the 
following three (3) calls: 1) thence N 38˚ 54’ 42” E 325.60’ to a computed point; 
2) thence N 38˚ 54’ 42” E 250.79’ to a computed point; 3) thence N 37˚ 58’ 41” E 
364.66’ to a computed point, said point being the southwestern corner of Nao 
Kha Vang and Dia X. Vang as recorded in DB 6489 PG 117; thence leaving said 
centerline along the south line of said Vang parcel S 51˚ 17’ 41” E 393.08’ to a 
computed point; thence along the east line of said Vang parcel the following two 
calls: 1) thence N 38˚ 40’ 12” E 146.00’ to a found iron rod; 2) thence N 07˚ 27’ 
30” W 215.37’ to a computed point (passing a found iron rod at 214.77’) and 
being the northwestern corner of Anne W. Tino as recorded in DB 7074 PG 164; 
thence along the north line of said Tino parcel N 82˚ 19’ 08” E 499.31’ to a found 
iron rod on the western line of Green Street Land Co. L.L.C. as recorded in DB 
13394 PG 152; thence along said west line S 11˚ 58’ 09” E 870.23’ to a found 
iron rod being the northwestern corner of Cabarrus County as recorded in DB 
3127 PG 55; thence along the west line of said Cabarrus County tract S 11˚58’ 
31” E 937.93’ to a found iron rod on the east line of said Cabarrus County tract 
and being the northeastern corner of Bric A. Elswick and Laurie A. Elswick; 
thence along the north line of said Elswick tract the following five (5) calls: 1) 
thence S 76˚ 38’ 37” W 906.31’ to a found iron rod; 2) thence N 47˚ 35’ 02” W 
238.75’ to a found iron rod; 3) thence S 75˚ 06’ 12” W 542.95’ to a found iron rod; 
4) thence S 10˚ 31’ 58” E 208.17’ to a found iron rod; 5) S 73˚ 03’ 23” W 331.43’ 
to the centerline of Lower Rocky River Road (passing a found iron rod at 300.49’) 
and being the northwestern corner of said Elswick tract; thence along the 
centerline of said Lower Rocky River Road the following six (6) calls: 1)  thence 
N 38˚05’ 33” W 2.60’ to a computed point; 2) thence along a circular curve to the 
right having a radius of 1093.48’, an arch length of 201.98’, and a chord bearing 
and distance of N 33˚ 52’ 46” W 201.70’ to a computed point; 3) thence N 27˚ 12’ 
42” W 15.60’ to a computed point; 4) thence N 27˚ 12’ 42” W 128.28’ to a 
computed point; 5) thence along a circular curve to the left having a radius of 

42



904.13’, an arch length of 140.52’, and a chord bearing and distance of N 30˚ 45’ 
53” W 140.38’ to a computed point; 6) thence N 34˚ 20’ 30” W 11.21’ to a 
computed point and being the southwestern corner of Rocky River Presbyterian 
Church (deed not found); thence leaving said centerline along the south line of 
Rocky River Presbyterian Church N 47˚ 48’ 10” E 243.63’ to an found iron rod 
being the northeast corner of said Rocky River Presbyterian Church parcel and 
being on the west line of said Roberta Gail Ritchie Linker parcel; thence with the 
west line of said tract S 30˚ 43’ 00” E 261.67’ to a found iron rod at the southwest 
corner of said tract; thence along the south line of said Linker tract for the 
following two (2) calls: 1) thence N 66˚ 41’ 13” E 186.34’ to a found iron rod; 2) 
thence N 43˚ 29’ 25” E 636.80’ to a found iron rod being the northeast corner of 
said tract: thence with the northern line of said tract N 50˚ 23’ 32” W 406.29’ to a 
found iron rod at the southwest corner of Rocky River Presbyterian Church 
Cemetery (no deed found); thence with three (3) lines of said cemetery the 
following calls: 1) thence N 31˚ 05’ 01” E 108.86’ to a computed point; 2) thence 
N 47˚ 44’ 53” W 165.00’ to a computed point; 3) thence S 36˚ 48’ 27” W 114.70’ 
to a found iron rod being the southwest corner of said cemetery and on the north 
line of said Linker tract; thence with said north line N 61˚ 10’ 27” W 208.36’ to the 
place of BEGINNING. Said parcel contains 56.83 acres, more or less. 

 
SECTION 2. Upon and after the 9th day of July, 2020 the above described 

territory and its citizens and property shall be subject to all debts, laws, 
ordinances and regulations in force in the City of Concord and shall be entitled to 
the same privileges and benefits as other parts of the City of Concord.  Said 
territory shall be subject to municipal taxes according to G.S. 160A-58.10. 

 
SECTION 3. The Mayor of the City of Concord shall cause to be recorded 

in the office of the Register of Deeds of Cabarrus County, and in the Office of the 
Secretary of State in Raleigh, North Carolina, an accurate map of the annexed 
territory, described in Section 1 above, together with a duly certified copy of this 
ordinance.  Such a map shall also be delivered to the County Board of Elections, 
as required by G.S. 163-288.1. 
 

SECTION 4. Notice of adoption of this ordinance shall be published once, 
following the effective date of annexation, in a newspaper having general 
circulation in the City of Concord.  
 

Adopted this 9th day of July 2020. 
 

 
CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF CONCORD 
NORTH CAROLINA 

 
___________________  

William C. Dusch, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:               APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
____________________ ___          _______________________  
Kim Deason, City Clerk VaLerie Kolczynski, City 

Attorney 

43



   

 

SUMMARY OF RESOURCES & PROPOSED USES OF FUNDS 
 

 
The City of Concord’s FY 2020 resource allocation will be utilized to address housing and community 
development needs through programs implemented by the City and its partners.  The City of 
Concord will have $680,540 in Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds plus $2,000.00 
in program income for a total of $680,540.00. 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT 2020-2021 
Source of Funding Funding Level Proposed 

Funding 
FY 2020 Entitlement Grant $680,540.00  
Estimated Program Income FY 2020 2,000.00  

                  Total CDBG Funds Available $682,540.00  

PROPOSED USE OF FUNDS   
Clearance Activities  0.00 

Acquisition   50,000.00 

Artisans’ Village (Clearwater Artist Studios)  343,532.00 

Emergency Repairs (with Program Income)  25,000.00 

Substantial Rehab  43,000.00 

Infrastructure  0.00 

Public Services (CDBG Subrecipients)  38,500.00 

Neighborhood Grant  6,000.00 

National Registry Study – Logan Community  40,000.00 

CDBG Program Administration (20% of grant)  136,508.00 

   

  CDBG ACTIVITY TOTAL  $682,540.00 

44



   

 

HOME INVESTMENTS PARTNERSHIP PROGRAM 
 
 
 The Cabarrus/Iredell/Rowan HOME Consortium has been awarded $1,304,995.00 in Home 
Investment Partnership funds.  The total amount of funds available for FY 2021, including 
anticipated program income of $131,006.00 is $1,436,001.00.  
 
Each year the Consortium sets aside fifteen percent (15%) of HOME funds for specific activities to 
be undertaken by Community Housing Development Organizations (CHDOs).  Of the $1,304,995.00 
allocation, the Consortium plans to allocate $195,750.00 for CHDO HOME eligible activities.  
 
 
 
 HOME CONSORTIUM BUDGET 2020-2021 

     
Source of Funding Funding Level Proposed 

Funding 

FY 2020 Entitlement Grant $1,304,995.00  

Estimated Program Income FY 2019 131,006.00  

Cash Match Contributions (Concord only) 0.00  

Total HOME Funds Available $1,436,001.00 
 

 

PROPOSED USE OF FUNDS 

Activities   

Acquisition  0.00 

Down Payment Assistance   100,000.00 

New Construction;  0.00 

    Single Family Housing  411,401.00 

Owner-Occupied single-family rehab  534,101.00 

Acquire/Rehab/Resell  260,000.00 

Program Administration  130,499.00 

HOME Activity Total  $1,436,001.00 

   

45



   

 

CITY OF CONCORD PROPOSED USE OF HOME FUNDS  
 
 
The City will use their portion of the HOME allocation, along with program income and use the 
City’s Affordable Housing allocation as local match funds, to carry out the following activities: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Concord HOME Budget 2020- 2021 

Source of Funding Funding Level Proposed 
Funding 

FY 2020 Home Allocation $177,750.00  
Estimated Program Income (Transfer from Public 
H i ) 

131,006.00  

Local Match  0.00  

HOME Program Administration 82,438.00  

   

          Total Funds Available   $391,194.00  

Proposed Use of Funds   
 

HOME Activities     
  Down payment Assistance   $50,000.00 

Owner-Occupied Housing Rehab (Whole House)  58,740.00 

Acquisition   0.00 

New Construction – Single Family  200,016.00 

Program Administration  82,438.00 

          Total HOME Activities   $391,194.00 

   

46



  Consolidated Plan Concord     1 

 

  

 

Cabarrus/Iredell/Rowan Consortium 
Consolidated Plan 
FY2020 – FY2024 

 
  

 
 

   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 

City of Concord 
Planning & Neighborhood Development Department 

 
 

35 Cabarrus Avenue West 
Concord, NC 28025 

Prepared for the U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development 

   

    

47



  Consolidated Plan Concord     2 

 

Executive Summary 

ES-05 Executive Summary – 24 CFR 91.200(c), 91.220(b) 

1. Introduction 

The City of Concord and the Cabarrus/Iredell/Rowan HOME Consortium must submit a consolidated 

plan every five years to illustrate to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) not 

only the housing and community development needs in the City of Concord and surrounding 

Consortium areas, but also a coordinated plan to meet those needs.  The Consolidated Plan establishes a 

unified, coordinated vision for community development actions for the upcoming five years.  Key 

elements of this consolidated plan are its emphasis on citizen participation and the collaborative nature 

of the process. The City of Concord uses the input from citizens and its community development 

partners to determine their housing and community development needs, to develop strategies for 

addressing those needs, and to undertake specific actions consistent with those strategies.  In response 

to the needs identified through the citizen participation process, the strategic plan outlines the overall 

goals for addressing area housing and community development needs in the coming five years. The plan 

will identify how the City and HOME Consortium intend to use their Federal resources to address 

priority needs. As a prerequisite to funding, the City and the HOME Consortium must conduct a 

comprehensive assessment of its housing and community development needs every five years. 

The specific resources to be discussed include the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 

Program and the HOME Investment Partnership Program (HOME). Through the public participation and 

consultation process, the City and Consortium have to identify housing, homeless, community, and 

economic development needs and resources in their respective service areas.  For each subsequent 

program year, the City has to develop and submit an Annual Action Plan to HUD, this document, 

therefore, also contains the consortium’s first Annual Action Plan of the Five-Year Consolidated Plan that 

covers the period of July 1, 2020 through June 20, 2024.  

This plan was developed using a comprehensive process as required by HUD to identify housing, 

homeless, community, and economic development needs and resources. In summary, the intent of the 

Consolidated Plan is to promote a comprehensive approach to local community economic development 

programming by requiring communities in the City of Concord and the HOME Consortium, to improve 

the process of developing effective community economic  development strategies and by providing 

more user-friendly information to citizens and local groups on whether these priorities are being met. 

 

48



  Consolidated Plan Concord     3 

 

 
 

2. Summary of the objectives and outcomes identified in the Plan Needs Assessment 

Overview 

The Consolidated Plan proposes that over the next five years HOME and CDBG funds will be used to 

support efforts that address affordable housing, homelessness, and community services for special 

needs populations.  To arrive at these priorities, citizens were asked to complete a Needs Assessment 

Survey and rate various scaled activities while identifying and prioritizing community needs.  

See attached tables – Section NA-10 Housing Needs Assessment 

49



  Consolidated Plan Concord     4 

 

3. Evaluation of past performance 

Performance measurement is a program tool that can help housing and community development 

practitioners collect data, track progress, and report on program results in a way that speaks to the 

impact a specific program has on a community. Performance measurement is an organized process for 

gathering information to determine how well programs and activities are meeting the established needs 

and goals. There are three (3) primary components to the Outcome Performance Measurement System: 

They are (1) Objectives, (2) Outcomes, and (3) Indicators. 

1) Objectives: 

Performance Measurement offers three possible objectives for each activity. These objectives are based 

on the broad statutory purposes of the three (3) Community Planning and Development programs:  

a.  Creating Suitable Living Environments 

This objective relates to activities that are designed to benefit communities, families, or individuals by 

addressing issues in their living environment. The activities are intended to address a wide range of 

issues faced by low to moderate-income persons, from physical problems with their environment, such 

as inferior infrastructure, to social issues such as crime prevention, literacy, or elderly health services.  

b.   Providing Decent Housing 

This objective focuses on housing activities whose purpose is to meet individual family or community 

housing needs.  

c.  Creating Economic Opportunities 

This applies to activities related to economic development, commercial revitalization or job creation.  

2) Outcomes:  

The second component of the system is outcomes, which are closely related to objectives. The program 

outcome helps further refine the objectives and is designed to capture the nature of the change or the 

expected result of the objective to achieve. The following are the three identifiers:  

a.     Availability/Accessibility 

This applies to activities that make infrastructure, public services, public facilities, housing or shelter 

available or accessible to low to moderate-income people, including persons with disabilities. 

 

50



  Consolidated Plan Concord     5 

 

b.   Affordability 

These are activities that provide affordability in a variety of ways to low to moderate-income people. It 

can include the creation or maintenance of affordable housing, basic infrastructure hook-ups or services 

such as transportation or day care.  

c.   Sustainability 

This applies to activities that are aimed at improving communities or neighborhoods, helping to make 

them livable or viable by providing benefit to persons of low and moderate income by removing or 

eliminating slums or blighted areas, through multiple activities or services that sustain communities or 

neighborhoods.  

3) Indicators:  

Once the program purpose (objective) has been established and intended result (outcome), the next 

step is to identify how to measure progress towards achieving the intended results.  

4. Summary of citizen participation process and consultation process 

The City of Concord as well the HOME Consortium continues to acknowledge the importance of citizen 

participation when developing activities for each upcoming year. There were revisions made in 2003 to 

the Citizen Participation Plan in an effort to increase public awareness. Despite the changes to the plan, 

the City will always seek out new avenues to increase the level of participation by the community. 

Furthermore, the City will seek guidance from HUD, other municipalities, and most importantly people 

from target communities. 

 In the past, the City has also encouraged participation in developing the Five (5) Year Consolidated Plan 

and the Annual Action Plan by making a copy of the plan assessable and available for community review 

at the Planning and Neighborhood Development Office, Public Library, and on the City Website. 

The first virtual community meeting was held online from the City of Concord website May 3 to May 15, 

2020. The general public, boards and commissions, non-profits, and other interested parties are asked 

to review plan drafts and submit comments from June 15 – June 26, 2020. In addition, to the two (2) 

virtual community meetings, public electronic surveys were open on the City website from March 1 to 

April 30 and a second was available June 15 to June 26. The last public hearing will be held on July 7th at 

City Hall at 6:00 PM. These meetings were held so the community would have input on the Plan. 

5. Summary of public comment 

The following comments and feedback identifying areas of citizen concerns were from the 1st and 2nd 

Virtual Community Meetings and surveys.  The results are given in priority order:  

51



  Consolidated Plan Concord     6 

 

• Affordable Housing: Building affordable housing for first time homebuyers with low to moderate 

incomes 

• Affordable Housing: Building affordable rental housing opportunities for low to moderate 

households 

• Affordable Housing: Low-interest loans and down payment assistance for first-time homebuyers 

with low to moderate incomes 

• Affordable Housing: Need for budgeting and credit education 

• Economic Development: Workforce development programs 

• Economic Development: Projects that increase employment opportunities 

• Economic Development: Low-interest business development loans to people with low to 

moderate incomes 

• Neighborhood Revitalization: Providing assistance to neighborhoods for the development of 

plans and strategies to encourage development 

• Neighborhood Revitalization: Repairing rental and owner housing stock 

• Neighborhood Revitalization: Providing support and resources for neighborhood organizing and 

leadership development 

• Neighborhood Revitalization: Incentives for investment in low to moderate income 

neighborhoods  

6. Summary of comments or views not accepted and the reasons for not accepting them 

All public comments were valid, and staff made notes of each. Staff reviewed all comments after each 

meeting was over, and noted that all comments should be accepted. 

7. Summary 

The Consolidated Plan is designed to help the City of Concord and the Cabarrus/Iredell/Rowan HOME 

Consortium to assess their affordable housing and community development needs and market 

conditions, and to make data-driven, place-based investment decisions. The consolidated planning 

process serves as the framework for a community-wide dialogue to identify housing and community 

development priorities that align and focus funding from the: Community Development Block Grant 

(CDBG), and the HOME Investment Partnership (HOME). Key components of the Consolidated Plan 

include: 

• Consultation and Citizen Participation: Allows the City and staff to both consult and collaborate 

with other public and private entities, non-profits, and other community stakeholders to align 

and coordinate community economic development programs with a range of other plans, 

programs and resources to achieve a greater impact in the neighborhoods, communities, and 

target service areas. 

• The Consolidated Plan. The Five (5) Year Consolidated Plan describes the jurisdiction's 

community development priorities and multiyear goals based on a needs’ assessment of 

52



  Consolidated Plan Concord     7 

 

housing and community development, a strategic plan, and a market analysis of housing and 

economic market conditions and available resources. 

• The Annual Action Plan. The Consolidated Plan is carried out through Annual Action Plans, 

which provides a concise summary of the actions, activities, and the specific federal and non-

federal resources that will be used each year to address the priority needs and specific goals 

identified by the Consolidated Plan. 

• Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report (CAPER). In the CAPER, grantees 

report on projects, activities, accomplishments and progress toward Consolidated Plan goals in 

the prior year.   

53



  Consolidated Plan Concord     8 

 

The Process 

PR-05 Lead & Responsible Agencies - 91.200(b) 

 

1. Describe agency/entity responsible for preparing the Consolidated Plan and those 

responsible for administration of each grant program and funding source 

The following are the agencies/entities responsible for preparing the Consolidated Plan and 

those responsible for administration of each grant program and funding source. 

Agency Role Name Department/Agency 

   

CDBG Administrator Concord City of Concord 

HOME Administrator Concord City of Concord 

Table 1 – Responsible Agencies 

 
Narrative 

The Cabarrus/Iredell/ Rowan HOME Consortium was established in 1996 and is funded through the U.S. 

Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD).  The City of Concord, as the lead entity, is 

authorized to request, submit and receive HOME Investment Partnerships Program funding from the 

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development on behalf of the Consortium.  The Consortium was 

formed for the purposes of cooperatively providing and promoting the development of safe, decent and 

affordable housing for low to moderate-income citizens living in six incorporated municipalities and 

three counties: Cabarrus, Iredell and Rowan counties and the cities/towns of Concord, Kannapolis, 

Mooresville, Salisbury and Statesville. There are also three Community Housing Development 

Organizations (CHDOs) that receive 15% of the annual HOME allocation.  The CHDOs are located in 

Salisbury, Mooresville, and Kannapolis.  HOME members engage in HOME eligible activities intended to 

respond to specific community needs.  Eligible activities include acquisition and/or rehabilitation of 

rental housing; new construction of rental housing; acquisition and/or rehabilitation of homebuyer 

properties; new construction of homebuyer properties; and down payment assistance to purchasers of 

HOME-assisted housing sponsored or developed with HOME funds. DPA and owner-occupied rehab are 

not HOME eligible activities for CHDOs. 

In recent years, most member governments have experienced growth: growth that is expected to 

continue throughout the impending five years.  With this growth, there will be an increase in the 

demand for quality, affordable housing opportunities to the citizens of these jurisdictions. 

 

 

54



  Consolidated Plan Concord     9 

 

Consolidated Plan Public Contact Information 

Pepper Bego 

Federal Programs Coordinator 

City of Concord, NC 

35 Cabarrus Ave., West 

Concord, NC, 28026 

Office: 704-920-5133 

Email: begop@concordnc.gov 

Website: www.concordnc.gov 

PR-10 Consultation - 91.100, 91.110, 91.200(b), 91.300(b), 91.215(l) and 

91.315(I) 

1. Introduction 

The City of Concord staff consulted with consortium members and other service providers to provide 

input on housing and other community development issues. The City of Concord is recognizes that 

partnerships, sharing resources, and coordinated efforts from service providers will become more 

important than ever before. Despite cuts in funding, the demand for assistance and services remain high 

in addressing the needs of the low to moderate community. The need for leveraging dollars and 

resources among partners and community stakeholders is the only solution in maintaining and possibly 

expanding services. 

Provide a concise summary of the jurisdiction’s activities to enhance coordination between 

public and assisted housing providers and private and governmental health, mental health 

and service agencies (91.215(I)). 

The City works with other public and private agencies to identify and prioritize community needs, 

develop strategies, create action plans, identify key community resources, and promote the 

coordination/collaboration of those resources. Representatives from public and private agencies, as well 

as the private sector involved in assisted housing, health services, and social services participate in 

individual and group meetings to obtain information and provide input to the development of the 

Consolidated Plan. 

55

mailto:begop@concordnc.gov
http://www.concordnc.gov/


  Consolidated Plan Concord     10 

 

Describe coordination with the Continuum of Care and efforts to address the needs of 

homeless persons (particularly chronically homeless individuals and families, families with 

children, veterans, and unaccompanied youth) and persons at risk of homelessness 

The Piedmont Regional Continuum of Care (PRCoC), established in February 2005, consists of five 

counties: Cabarrus, Davidson, Rowan, Stanly and Union. The PRCoC is a collaborative effort among 

stakeholders to reduce and eliminate homelessness. The PRCoC assesses the housing needs and works 

collaboratively with HUD and the State of North Carolina, County, and City agencies to secure grants and 

request funding to develop affordable housing opportunities for the chronically homeless throughout 

the five-county area.  The vision for the PRCC is to provide leadership and direction in the analysis of 

community needs and while developing solutions to attack the multi-faceted causes of homelessness. 

The objectives are to provide opportunities for residents to; gain access to nourishment, health care, 

education, employment, recreation, self-sufficiency, safe affordable housing and a good quality of 

life.  Preventing homelessness throughout the community is one of the City’s priorities, as indicated in 

the Five-year Consolidated Plan.  Although the City of Concord does not directly address homelessness, 

it supports and funds agencies that actively address the needs of the homeless population.   

Describe consultation with the Continuum(s) of Care that serves the jurisdiction's area in 

determining how to allocate ESG funds, develop performance standards and evaluate 

outcomes, and develop funding, policies and procedures for the administration of HMIS 

Cabarrus County, as well as Iredell and Rowan County, are part of the NC Balance of State Continuum of 

Care (Regional CoC) which is organized into Regional Committees. Each Regional Committee is 

represented by a Regional Lead, who organizes local meetings and sits on the Balance of State Steering 

Committee.  The Regional Lead is the Piedmont Regional Continuum of Care (PRCoC).  Applicants 

seeking ESG funds submit their request through the regional committee, which ranks them and makes 

recommendations.  Carolina Homeless Information Network (CHIN) administers the local HMIS. 

Consultation occurs through periodic attendance at Community Link’s monthly meetings. Staff also 

periodically meets with representatives serving the homeless to discuss housing and service needs.  

2. Describe Agencies, groups, organizations and others who participated in the process 

and describe the jurisdictions consultations with housing, social service agencies and other 

entities 

56



  Consolidated Plan Concord     11 

 

Table 2 – Agencies, groups, organizations who participated 

1 Agency/Group/Organization Concord 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Planning organization 

What section of the Plan was addressed 

by Consultation? 

Housing Need Assessment 

How was the 

Agency/Group/Organization consulted 

and what are the anticipated outcomes 

of the consultation or areas for improved 

coordination? 

The Concord Planning and Neighborhood 

Development Department staff consulted 

neighborhood and community stakeholders through 

public meetings, neighborhood meetings, and 

housing needs surveys 

2 Agency/Group/Organization Concord Housing Authority 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Housing 

PHA 

Services-homeless 

Services-Education 

What section of the Plan was addressed 

by Consultation? 

Housing Need Assessment 

Homeless Needs - Chronically homeless 

Homeless Needs - Families with children 

How was the 

Agency/Group/Organization consulted 

and what are the anticipated outcomes 

of the consultation or areas for improved 

coordination? 

The Concord Public Housing Department was 

consulted through one-on-one meetings and phone 

conversations.  The CPHD is a city department and 

have always been great partners in decent 

affordable housing. Over the next five (5) years this 

partnership will continue. The anticipated outcome 

will be the production of new affordable housing 

units. 

3 Agency/Group/Organization CENTRALINA COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Consultant 

What section of the Plan was addressed 

by Consultation? 

Housing Need Assessment 

57



  Consolidated Plan Concord     12 

 

How was the 

Agency/Group/Organization consulted 

and what are the anticipated outcomes 

of the consultation or areas for improved 

coordination? 

Centralina was consulted through the CONNECT 

Regional Meetings. A meeting with city staff and 

several Regional Stakeholders as well as a Western 

Economic Services consultant in attendance. After 

several discussions, stakeholder meetings, 

community surveys and public forums, the analysis 

of Impediments to Fair Housing Choice was 

developed 

 

Identify any Agency Types not consulted and provide rationale for not consulting 

All agencies were contacted. 

Other local/regional/state/federal planning efforts considered when preparing the Plan 

Name of Plan Lead 
Organization 

How do the goals of your Strategic Plan overlap with the goals 
of each plan? 

Continuum of 

Care 

Piedmont 

Regional 

Continuum of 

Care 

The Piedmont Regional Continuum of Care was consulted over 

the phone and by proxy. Staff consulted with Community Link 

that represented local the CoC and the 10-year project to end 

homelessness. The anticipated outcomes are an increase in 

beds for transitional and supportive housing. 

Table 3 – Other local / regional / federal planning efforts 

 

Describe cooperation and coordination with other public entities, including the State and any 

adjacent units of general local government, in the implementation of the Consolidated Plan 

(91.215(l)) 

The City of Concord will work with the State and other local government agencies to ensure that the 

goals and objectives discussed in the Consolidated Plan are implemented in the most effective and 

efficient way possible. The planning and implementation of housing and community 

development strategies relies on formal and informal coordination among public and private entities.   

58



  Consolidated Plan Concord     13 

 

PR-15 Citizen Participation - 91.105, 91.115, 91.200(c) and 91.300(c) 

 

1. Summary of citizen participation process/Efforts made to broaden citizen participation 
Summarize citizen participation process and how it impacted goal-setting 

COVID-19 forced the City and the Consortium to use a variety of methods to glean input from citizen participation. Staff created and sent out 

two housing needs surveys. We also conducted two virtual housing hearings where we presented PowerPoints and drafts on our website for the 

community to review and comment. Staff placed ads in the newspaper to advertise the virtual public hearings for the community to provide 

responses to the plan. Input from citizens was used to develop priorities in the area of Affordable Housing, Homeless, Suitable Living 

Environment, Special Needs Housing, Public Services, Public Facilities and Improvements, and Special Populations.  

Responses gleaned from the survey, the meetings, and hearings provided input and identified community needs for a consolidated plan. 

Citizen Participation Outreach 

(Tables below) 

59



  Consolidated Plan Concord     14 

 

Sort Order Mode of Outreach Target of Outreach Summary of  
response/attendance 

Summary of  
comments received 

Summary of comments 
not accepted 
and reasons 

URL (If 
applicable) 

1 Virtual Public 

Meeting 

LMI 

neighborhoods 

 1. Affordable housing 

for first time home-

buyers. 

2. Building affordable 

rental housing 

opportunities. 

3. Low-interest loans 

and down payment 

assistance. 

4. Need for budgeting 

and credit education. 

5. Workforce 

development 

programs. 

6. Projects that increase 

employment 

opportunities. 

7. Providing assistance 

to neighborhoods for 

the development of 

plans and strategies 

to encourage 

developments. 

N/A   

Table 4 – Citizen Participation Outreach 

60



  Consolidated Plan Concord     15 

 

Needs Assessment 

NA-05 Overview 

Needs Assessment Overview 

The City of Concord as well as the HOME Consortium have experienced growth in population and 

median income since the last plan. The positive growth provided a mixture of housing opportunities, but 

the lower wealth households continue to experience a lack of affordable housing opportunities. Low to 

Moderate Income household median Incomes have not kept pace with the rise in housing costs thus 

resulting in a lack of affordable housing for the lower wealth community. 

Rental property stock in the geographic area covered by the Consortium largely consists of small 

apartment complexes and single-family rental homes.  The housing construction boom in recent years 

primarily consisted of single-family homes for owner occupancy.  In fact, in Concord there were no 

apartment complexes that catered to the LMI community built between 2015 and 2020.   

A large percentage of extremely low-income individuals and low-income households in the City of 

Concord and Consortium area experience one (1) or more housing problems. The lack of good 

affordable housing options caused many low-income households to pay more than 30% of their monthly 

household income for housing resulting in many of those households to be cost burdened.  

NA-10 Housing Needs Assessment - 24 CFR 91.405, 24 CFR 91.205 (a,b,c) 

Summary of Housing Needs 

Demographics Base Year:  2013 Most Recent Year:  2018 % Change 

Population 490, 097 531,039 9% 

Households 176,481 195,885 9% 

Median Income $48,458 $58,351 8% 

Table 5 - Housing Needs Assessment Demographics 

 
Data Source: 2010 Census (Base Year), 2018 ACS (Most Recent Year) 

Number of Households Table 

 0-30% 
HAMFI 

>30-50% 
HAMFI 

>50-80% 
HAMFI 

>80-100% 
HAMFI 

>100% 
HAMFI 

Total Households 17,510 17,954 26,590 15,690 84,385 

Small Family Households 6,290 5,410 10,065 6,559 50,585 

Large Family Households 1,360 1,030 2,680 1,724 6,900 

61



  Consolidated Plan Concord     16 

 

 0-30% 
HAMFI 

>30-50% 
HAMFI 

>50-80% 
HAMFI 

>80-100% 
HAMFI 

>100% 
HAMFI 

Household contains at least one 

person 62-74 years of age 2,762 4,004 5,577 3,329 14,063 

Household contains at least one-

person age 75 or older 2,423 4,068 3,707 1,495 4,760 

Households with one or more 

children 6 years old or younger 3,840 2,652 5,435 2,908 11,822 

Table 6 - Total Households Table 
Data 
Source: 

2014-2018 CHAS 

 

Housing Needs Summary Tables 

1. Housing Problems #1 (Households with one of the listed needs) 

 Renter Owner 

0-30% 
AMI 

>30-
50% 
AMI 

>50-
80% 
AMI 

>80-
100% 
AMI 

Total 0-30% 
AMI 

>30-
50% 
AMI 

>50-
80% 
AMI 

>80-
100% 
AMI 

Total 

NUMBER OF HOUSEHOLDS 

Substandard 

Housing - 

Lacking 

complete 

plumbing or 

kitchen 

facilities 239 4 160 25 428 60 135 45 50 290 

Severely 

Overcrowded - 

With >1.51 

people per 

room (and 

complete 

kitchen and 

plumbing) 63 110 135 140 448 0 55 65 65 185 

Overcrowded - 

With 1.01-1.5 

people per 

room (and 

none of the 

above 

problems) 395 160 444 145 1,144 169 127 385 145 826 

62



  Consolidated Plan Concord     17 

 

 Renter Owner 

0-30% 
AMI 

>30-
50% 
AMI 

>50-
80% 
AMI 

>80-
100% 
AMI 

Total 0-30% 
AMI 

>30-
50% 
AMI 

>50-
80% 
AMI 

>80-
100% 
AMI 

Total 

Housing cost 

burden greater 

than 50% of 

income (and 

none of the 

above 

problems) 5,960 2,628 434 20 9,042 3,570 3,140 2,164 773 9,647 

Housing cost 

burden greater 

than 30% of 

income (and 

none of the 

above 

problems) 945 2,795 3,280 608 7,628 1,004 2,449 4,854 2,693 

11,00

0 

Zero/negative 

Income (and 

none of the 

above 

problems) 1,385 0 0 0 1,385 809 0 0 0 809 

Table 7 – Housing Problems Table 
Data 
Source: 

2014-2018 CHAS 

 

2. Housing Problems #2 (Households with one or more Severe Housing Problems: Lacks kitchen 

or complete plumbing, severe overcrowding, severe cost burden) 

 Renter Owner 

0-30% 
AMI 

>30-
50% 
AMI 

>50-
80% 
AMI 

>80-
100% 
AMI 

Total 0-30% 
AMI 

>30-
50% 
AMI 

>50-
80% 
AMI 

>80-
100% 
AMI 

Total 

NUMBER OF HOUSEHOLDS 

Having 1 or 

more of four 

housing 

problems 6,670 2,913 1,174 330 11,087 3,790 3,464 2,634 1,029 10,917 

Having none 

of four 

housing 

problems 2,414 4,460 8,719 3,993 19,586 2,464 7,124 14,035 10,360 33,983 

63



  Consolidated Plan Concord     18 

 

 Renter Owner 

0-30% 
AMI 

>30-
50% 
AMI 

>50-
80% 
AMI 

>80-
100% 
AMI 

Total 0-30% 
AMI 

>30-
50% 
AMI 

>50-
80% 
AMI 

>80-
100% 
AMI 

Total 

Household 

has negative 

income, but 

none of the 

other housing 

problems 1,385 0 0 0 1,385 809 0 0 0 809 

Table 8 – Housing Problems 2 
Data 
Source: 

2014-2018 CHAS 

 

3. Cost Burden > 30% 

 Renter Owner 

0-30% 
AMI 

>30-50% 
AMI 

>50-80% 
AMI 

Total 0-30% 
AMI 

>30-50% 
AMI 

>50-80% 
AMI 

Total 

NUMBER OF HOUSEHOLDS 

Small Related 3,324 2,125 1,939 7,388 1,363 1,984 2,973 6,320 

Large Related 728 375 203 1,306 404 438 913 1,755 

Elderly 1,185 948 399 2,532 1,877 2,213 1,967 6,057 

Other 2,178 2,139 1,324 5,641 1,067 1,184 1,307 3,558 

Total need by 

income 

7,415 5,587 3,865 16,867 4,711 5,819 7,160 17,690 

Table 9 – Cost Burden > 30% 
Data 
Source: 

2014-2018 CHAS 

 

4. Cost Burden > 50% 

 Renter Owner 

0-30% 
AMI 

>30-50% 
AMI 

>50-
80% 
AMI 

Total 0-30% 
AMI 

>30-50% 
AMI 

>50-80% 
AMI 

Total 

NUMBER OF HOUSEHOLDS 

Small Related 3,084 895 165 4,144 1,174 1,145 983 3,302 

Large Related 604 135 0 739 390 183 144 717 

Elderly 735 453 100 1,288 1,130 1,019 540 2,689 

Other 1,904 1,170 174 3,248 978 854 492 2,324 

Total need by 

income 

6,327 2,653 439 9,419 3,672 3,201 2,159 9,032 

Table 10 – Cost Burden > 50% 
Data 
Source: 

2014-2018 CHAS 

64



  Consolidated Plan Concord     19 

 

 

5. Crowding (More than one person per room) 

 Renter Owner 

0-
30% 
AMI 

>30-
50% 
AMI 

>50-
80% 
AMI 

>80-
100% 
AMI 

Total 0-
30% 
AMI 

>30-
50% 
AMI 

>50-
80% 
AMI 

>80-
100% 
AMI 

Total 

NUMBER OF HOUSEHOLDS 

Single family 

households 339 205 394 210 1,148 139 122 315 140 716 

Multiple, 

unrelated family 

households 103 30 175 75 383 30 60 130 70 290 

Other, non-family 

households 50 30 15 0 95 0 0 0 0 0 

Total need by 

income 

492 265 584 285 1,626 169 182 445 210 1,006 

Table 11 – Crowding Information - 1/2 
Data 
Source: 

2014-2018 CHAS 

 

 Renter Owner 

0-
30% 
AMI 

>30-
50% 
AMI 

>50-
80% 
AMI 

Total 0-
30% 
AMI 

>30-
50% 
AMI 

>50-
80% 
AMI 

Total 

Households with 

Children Present 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Table 12 – Crowding Information – 2/2 

 

Describe the number and type of single person households in need of housing assistance. 

Data not available 

Estimate the number and type of families in need of housing assistance who are disabled or 

victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault and stalking. 

Data not available 

What are the most common housing problems? 

The most common housing problems are households with housing cost greater than 30% of their 

monthly gross income.  The rising cost of housing have burdened many low-income families. A lack of 

affordable rental and ownership housing is a significant hardship for low-income households that 

65



  Consolidated Plan Concord     20 

 

prevent them from meeting other basic needs, such as nutrition and healthcare, having reserves, or 

saving for the future. 

Are any populations/household types more affected than others by these problems? 

The data in the tables above do show that there are a couple of target population/ household types that 

are more affected by the housing problems. The data illustrates that the degree of housing problems 

increases as household income decreases.  Extremely low-income households are more than twice as 

likely to have housing problems than low income households. 

Describe the characteristics and needs of Low-income individuals and families with children 

(especially extremely low-income) who are currently housed but are at imminent risk of 

either residing in shelters or becoming unsheltered 91.205(c)/91.305(c)). Also discuss the 

needs of formerly homeless families and individuals who are receiving rapid re-housing 

assistance and are nearing the termination of that assistance 

Many low to moderate-income individuals and families with children, who are currently housed but are 

at imminent risk of either residing in shelters or becoming unsheltered, include those whom are under-

employed working in a service-based industry; and those that lack education and employment to 

support themselves and their children.  Formerly homeless families and individuals who are receiving 

rapid re-housing assistance and are nearing the termination of their assistance are in need of living wage 

employment, job training, affordable childcare, financial literacy intervention, and education regarding 

budgeting/finances.  Without these needs being addressed, they will find themselves back in the same 

situation. 

If a jurisdiction provides estimates of the at-risk population(s), it should also include a 

description of the operational definition of the at-risk group and the methodology used to 

generate the estimates: 

The operational definition that the City of Concord as well as the HOME Consortiums use for the "at-

risk" population is: Anyone living at 50% or below of median income could be considered “at risk”. This 

is also a standard benchmark for other HUD housing assistance programs. 

The amount of people living in the City of Concord as well as the Charlotte, NC MSA considered “at risk” 

can be generated by looking at the 2014 – 2018 ACS data.  For a single individual in Charlotte, NC MSA – 

50% AMI is equal to $29,250 and for a family of four (4) 50% AMI is equal to $41,750. 

 

 

66



  Consolidated Plan Concord     21 

 

Specify particular housing characteristics that have been linked with instability and an 

increased risk of homelessness 

The housing side of the instability of occupancy relates to availability of living wage jobs, education, cost 

of healthcare, and affordability of the unit. The particular housing characteristics that have been linked 

with instability and an increased risk of homelessness include, but are not limited to: affordability of 

rent, utilities costs, and rent-to-income ratios.  Other factors include transportation barriers; landlords; 

poor credit history; legal issues/evictions; financial literacy, and lack of or misinformation about housing. 

NA-15 Disproportionately Greater Need: Housing Problems - 91.405, 91.205 
(b)(2) 

Assess the need of any racial or ethnic group that has disproportionately greater need in comparison to 

the needs of that category of need as a whole. 

Introduction 

 According to HUD, a disproportionate greater need exists when the members of a racial or ethnic group 

at an income level experience housing problem at a greater rate (10 percent or more) than the income 

level as a whole.  Based on this definition, White households across all median income levels experience 

housing problems at a disproportionately greater percentage than other racial or ethnic 

groups.  However, Black/African American households also experience needs above 10 percentage 

points.  These groups will require housing assistance. 

A large percentage of very low and low-income households in the City of Concord experience one (1) or 

more housing problems. The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development define housing 

problems as (1) Lack of complete kitchen facilities, (2) Lack of complete plumbing facilities, (3) More 

than one (1) person per room, and (4) Cost burden greater than 30%. 

0%-30% of Area Median Income 

Housing Problems Has one or more 
of four housing 

problems 

Has none of the 
four housing 

problems 

Household has 
no/negative 

income, but none 
of the other 

housing problems 

Jurisdiction as a whole 12,420 2,913 2,189 

White 7,679 2,047 1,264 

Black / African American 3,140 670 685 

Asian 150 15 0 

American Indian, Alaska Native 0 10 0 

Pacific Islander 0 0 0 

Hispanic 1,259 95 240 

Table 13 - Disproportionally Greater Need 0 - 30% AMI – Data Source: 2014-2018 CHAS 

67



  Consolidated Plan Concord     22 

 

 

30%-50% of Area Median Income 

Housing Problems Has one or more 
of four housing 

problems 

Has none of the 
four housing 

problems 

Household has 
no/negative 

income, but none 
of the other 

housing problems 

Jurisdiction as a whole 11,650 6,309 0 

White 7,780 5,040 0 

Black / African American 2,539 754 0 

Asian 70 10 0 

American Indian, Alaska Native 39 14 0 

Pacific Islander 20 0 0 

Hispanic 1,119 440 0 

Table 14 - Disproportionally Greater Need 30 - 50% AMI 
Data 
Source: 

2014-2018 CHAS 

 
*The four housing problems are:  
1. Lacks complete kitchen facilities, 2. Lacks complete plumbing facilities, 3. More than one person per 

room, 4. Cost Burden greater than 30% 
 

50%-80% of Area Median Income 

Housing Problems Has one or more 
of four housing 

problems 

Has none of the 
four housing 

problems 

Household has 
no/negative 

income, but none 
of the other 

housing problems 

Jurisdiction as a whole 11,985 14,620 0 

White 7,630 11,325 0 

Black / African American 2,799 1,974 0 

Asian 230 90 0 

American Indian, Alaska Native 10 35 0 

Pacific Islander 0 0 0 

Hispanic 1,148 1,090 0 

Table 15 - Disproportionally Greater Need 50 - 80% AMI 
Data 
Source: 

2014-2018 CHAS 

 
*The four housing problems are:  
1. Lacks complete kitchen facilities, 2. Lacks complete plumbing facilities, 3. More than one person per 

room, 4. Cost Burden greater than 30% 

 

68



  Consolidated Plan Concord     23 

 

80%-100% of Area Median Income 

Housing Problems* Has one or more 
of four housing 

problems 

Has none of the 
four housing 

problems 

Household has 
no/negative 

income, but none 
of the other 

housing problems 

Jurisdiction as a whole 4,649 11,050 0 

White 3,559 8,845 0 

Black / African American 679 1,239 0 

Asian 85 149 0 

American Indian, Alaska Native 40 44 0 

Pacific Islander 0 0 0 

Hispanic 215 654 0 

Table 16 - Disproportionally Greater Need 80 - 100% AMI 
Data 
Source: 

2014-2018 CHAS 

 
*The four housing problems are:  
1. Lacks complete kitchen facilities, 2. Lacks complete plumbing facilities, 3. More than one person per 

room, 4. Cost Burden greater than 30% 

69



  Consolidated Plan Concord     24 

 

 

70



  Consolidated Plan Concord     25 

 

NA-20 Disproportionately Greater Need: Severe Housing Problems - 91.405, 

91.205 (b)(2) 

Assess the need of any racial or ethnic group that has disproportionately greater need in comparison to 

the needs of that category of need as a whole. 

Introduction 

According to HUD, a disproportionate greater need exists when the members of a racial or ethnic group 

at an income level experience housing problem at a greater rate (10 percent or more) than the income 

level as a whole.  Based on this definition, with the exception of households earning between 30% and 

50% of AMI, both White and Black/African American households across all median income levels 

experience severe housing problems at a similar disproportionate rate when compared to other 

groups.  However, White households earning between 30% and 50% AMI experience severe housing 

problems at disproportionately greater rate than all other groups in this category.  These groups will 

require housing assistance to address their severe housing problems. 

0%-30% of Area Median Income 

Severe Housing Problems* Has one or more 
of four housing 

problems 

Has none of the 
four housing 

problems 

Household has 
no/negative 

income, but none 
of the other 

housing problems 

Jurisdiction as a whole 10,460 4,895 2,189 

White 6,284 3,475 1,264 

Black / African American 2,745 1,065 685 

Asian 150 15 0 

American Indian, Alaska Native 0 10 0 

Pacific Islander 0 0 0 

Hispanic 1,159 195 240 

Table 17 – Severe Housing Problems 0 - 30% AMI 
Data 
Source: 

2014-2018 CHAS 

 
*The four severe housing problems are:  
1. Lacks complete kitchen facilities, 2. Lacks complete plumbing facilities, 3. More than 1.5 persons per 
room, 4. Cost Burden over 50%  
 
 

71



  Consolidated Plan Concord     26 

 

30%-50% of Area Median Income 

Severe Housing Problems* Has one or more 
of four housing 

problems 

Has none of the 
four housing 

problems 

Household has 
no/negative 

income, but none 
of the other 

housing problems 

Jurisdiction as a whole 6,389 11,589 0 

White 4,230 8,610 0 

Black / African American 1,449 1,834 0 

Asian 25 60 0 

American Indian, Alaska Native 35 18 0 

Pacific Islander 0 20 0 

Hispanic 559 1,000 0 

Table 18 – Severe Housing Problems 30 - 50% AMI 
Data 
Source: 

2014-2018 CHAS 

 
*The four severe housing problems are:  
1. Lacks complete kitchen facilities, 2. Lacks complete plumbing facilities, 3. More than 1.5 persons per 
room, 4. Cost Burden over 50%  
 
 

50%-80% of Area Median Income 

Severe Housing Problems* Has one or more 
of four housing 

problems 

Has none of the 
four housing 

problems 

Household has 
no/negative 

income, but none 
of the other 

housing problems 

Jurisdiction as a whole 3,829 22,765 0 

White 2,144 16,810 0 

Black / African American 830 3,945 0 

Asian 180 140 0 

American Indian, Alaska Native 10 35 0 

Pacific Islander 0 0 0 

Hispanic 644 1,610 0 

Table 19 – Severe Housing Problems 50 - 80% AMI 
Data 
Source: 

2014-2018 CHAS 

 
*The four severe housing problems are:  
1. Lacks complete kitchen facilities, 2. Lacks complete plumbing facilities, 3. More than 1.5 persons per 
room, 4. Cost Burden over 50%  
 
 

72



  Consolidated Plan Concord     27 

 

80%-100% of Area Median Income 

Severe Housing Problems* Has one or more 
of four housing 

problems 

Has none of the 
four housing 

problems 

Household has 
no/negative 

income, but none 
of the other 

housing problems 

Jurisdiction as a whole 1,360 14,340 0 

White 974 11,430 0 

Black / African American 130 1,803 0 

Asian 20 214 0 

American Indian, Alaska Native 0 84 0 

Pacific Islander 0 0 0 

Hispanic 185 679 0 

Table 20 – Severe Housing Problems 80 - 100% AMI 
Data 
Source: 

2014-2018 CHAS 

 

*The four severe housing problems are:  
1. Lacks complete kitchen facilities, 2. Lacks complete plumbing facilities, 3. More than 1.5 persons per 
room, 4. Cost Burden over 50%  

 

NA-25 Disproportionately Greater Need: Housing Cost Burdens - 91.405, 91.205 
(b)(2) 

Assess the need of any racial or ethnic group that has disproportionately greater need in comparison to 

the needs of that category of need as a whole. 

Introduction 

According to HUD, a disproportionate greater need exists when the members of a racial or ethnic group 

at an income level experience housing problem at a greater rate (10 percent or more) than the income 

level as a whole.  

Based on this definition, White households across all median income levels experience housing cost 

burdens at a disproportionately greater percentage than other racial or ethnic groups.  However, 

Black/African American households also experience needs above 10 percentage points.  

With the expected growth of the Hispanic population and the known disproportionate needs of the 

population; the City of Concord must plan for this issue appropriately. These groups may need 

rental assistance to afford housing. 

73



  Consolidated Plan Concord     28 

 

Housing Cost Burden 

Housing Cost Burden <=30% 30-50% >50% No / negative 
income (not 
computed) 

Jurisdiction as a whole 36,732 19,386 19,322 2,274 

White 94,870 18,475 13,625 1,358 

Black / African 

American 11,487 4,868 4,798 685 

Asian 1,185 440 215 0 

American Indian, 

Alaska Native 296 54 35 0 

Pacific Islander 0 20 0 0 

Hispanic 5,318 1,535 1,518 240 

Table 21 – Greater Need: Housing Cost Burdens AMI 
Data 
Source: 

2014-2018 CHAS 

 

74



  Consolidated Plan Concord     29 

 

 
 

75



  Consolidated Plan Concord     30 

 

NA-30 Disproportionately Greater Need: Discussion - 91.205 (b)(2) 

Are there any Income categories in which a racial or ethnic group has disproportionately 

greater need than the needs of that income category as a whole? 

Income categories in which a racial or ethnic group has disproportionately greater need? 

The Hispanic population showed a disproportionately greater need in both housing problems and severe 

housing problem throughout the 0% - 80% AMI range. Meanwhile, the other groups did show a great 

need within the same range, but not at the same rate. It was clear after conducting the calculations 

from the 2013-2018 CHAS data, that the Hispanic population shows the greatest need. 

If they have needs not identified above, what are those needs? 

The Hispanic population has many of the same needs that all other individuals and families who are low 

income face. Everyone within the low-moderate income ranges face the same barriers to affordable 

housing 

Are any of those racial or ethnic groups located in specific areas or neighborhoods in your 

community? 

The 2018 ACS data shows that the vast majority of the Hispanic population in Concord and the HOME 

Consortium Service lives in areas/neighborhoods that are identified as low to moderate neighborhoods. 

NA-35 Public Housing - 91.405, 91.205 (b) 

Introduction 

Families below 30% of the Area Median Income are typically those served by public housing. The 

Concord Housing Department Housing Authority owns and operates 174 units of public housing. The 

CHD receives federal funds annually. These funds have been cut over the past five (5) years. These funds 

are used for programming, administration, modernization, and repairs. The next five (5) years may trend 

the same way. If this is the case, many of the families and individuals on the waiting list may never have 

the opportunity to benefit from CHD services. 

The Concord Housing Department is currently at 100 % of Fair Market Rent with their Section 8 

vouchers. This is a strategic move on the part of the Concord Housing Department staff - by doing so, 

the vouchers are able to extend to more families. 

76



  Consolidated Plan Concord     31 

 

 Totals in Use 

Program Type 

 Certificate Mod-
Rehab 

Public 
Housing 

Vouchers 

Total Project 
-based 

Tenant 
-based 

Special Purpose Voucher 

Veterans 
Affairs 

Supportive 
Housing 

Family 
Unification 

Program 

Disabled 
* 

# of 

units 

vouchers 

in use 0 0 152 565 38 527 0 0 0 

Table 22 - Public Housing by Program Type 
*includes Non-Elderly Disabled, Mainstream One-Year, Mainstream Five-year, and Nursing Home Transition 

 
Data 
Source: 

PIC (PIH Information Center) 

 

 
 

77



  Consolidated Plan Concord     32 

 

 Characteristics of Residents 

Program Type 

 Certificate Mod-
Rehab 

Public 
Housing 

Vouchers 

Total Project 
-based 

Tenant 
-based 

Special Purpose Voucher 

Veterans 
Affairs 

Supportive 
Housing 

Family 
Unification 

Program 

Average 

Annual 

Income 0 0 6,234 11,722 12,008 11,702 0 0 

Average 

length of stay 0 0 6 6 0 6 0 0 

Average 

Household 

size 0 0 2 2 1 2 0 0 

# Homeless at 

admission 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

# of Elderly 

Program 

Participants 

(>62) 0 0 25 102 38 64 0 0 

# of Disabled 

Families 0 0 16 93 0 93 0 0 

# of Families 

requesting 

accessibility 

features 0 0 152 565 38 527 0 0 

# of HIV/AIDS 

program 

participants 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

# of DV 

victims 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Table 23 – Characteristics of Public Housing Residents by Program Type - Data Source: PIC (PIH Information 
Center) 

 

  

 

78



  Consolidated Plan Concord     33 

 

 Race of Residents 

Program Type 

Race Certificate Mod-
Rehab 

Public 
Housing 

Vouchers 

Total Project 
-based 

Tenant 
-based 

Special Purpose Voucher 

Veterans 
Affairs 

Supportive 
Housing 

Family 
Unification 

Program 

Disabled 
* 

White 0 0 9 61 0 61 0 0 0 

Black/African 

American 0 0 142 504 38 466 0 0 0 

Asian 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

American 

Indian/Alaska 

Native 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Pacific 

Islander 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

*includes Non-Elderly Disabled, Mainstream One-Year, Mainstream Five-year, and Nursing Home Transition 

Table 24 – Race of Public Housing Residents by Program Type - Data Source: PIC (PIH Information Center) 

 

Ethnicity of Residents 

Program Type 

Ethnicity Certificate Mod-
Rehab 

Public 
Housing 

Vouchers 

Total Project 
-based 

Tenant 
-based 

Special Purpose Voucher 

Veterans 
Affairs 

Supportive 
Housing 

Family 
Unification 

Program 

Disabled 
* 

Hispanic 0 0 2 7 0 7 0 0 0 

Not 

Hispanic 0 0 150 558 38 520 0 0 0 

*includes Non-Elderly Disabled, Mainstream One-Year, Mainstream Five-year, and Nursing Home Transition 

Table 25 – Ethnicity of Public Housing Residents by Program Type – Data Source: PIC (PIH Information Center) 

 

79



  Consolidated Plan Concord     34 

 

Section 504 Needs Assessment: Describe the needs of public housing tenants and applicants 

on the waiting list for accessible units: 

Many of those families and individuals discussed in the disproportionate needs section are the same 

people that are describe in this section. Families and individuals that are 0% - 30% primarily reside in 

public housing, and if they do not - many of them are on the waiting list. Concord Housing Department 

reports a public housing waiting list of six hundred seventy-two (672) families at or below the 30% AMI 

range. There is an annual turnover of about 15%. 

There are a range of needs for families in public housing. Many of these needs are addressed through 

programs that CHD already has in place. These are programs such as the Pathways to Self-Sufficiency, 

Neighborhood Networks, and Home Ownership Classes. 

What are the number and type of families on the waiting lists for public housing and section 8 

tenant-based rental assistance? Based on the information above, and any other information 

available to the jurisdiction, what are the most immediate needs of residents of public 

housing and Housing Choice voucher holders? 

The Concord Housing Department reports a public housing waiting list of over six hundred seventy-two 

(672) families at or below 30% of Area Median Income for Section 8 assistance. The annual turnover rate 

is over 15%. 

 There are a range of needs for families in public housing. Many of these needs are addressed through 

programs that CHD already has in place. These are programs such as the Pathways to Self-Sufficiency, 

Neighborhood Networks, and Home Ownership Classes 

How do these needs compare to the housing needs of the population at large? 

The majority of Concord/Consortium’s population does not have to deal with the housing problems that 

the low-moderate income individuals and families do. The four (4) housing problems are mostly 

affecting low income households. The 80% and above AMI may have to deal with these issues on a small 

scale, but data shows that there is a direct correlation between annual income and housing conditions.   

The City of Concord staff as well as Consortium Members will continue to promote education programs, 

job creation programs, and job training programs. These types of programs have the ability to help 

individuals and families increase their annual income. 

 

80



 

  Consolidated Plan Concord     35 

 

NA-40 Homeless Needs Assessment - 91.405, 91.205 (c) 

Introduction: 

The 2018 Balance of State Point-in-Time Count reported that there’s one hundred fifty (150) homeless 

persons in Cabarrus County, one hundred sixty-four (164) in Iredell County, and one hundred fifty-four 

(154) in Rowan County for a total of four hundred sixty-eight (468) are in the HOME consortium service 

area. 

The City of Concord has been a partner in the homeless strategic planning process. As a financial 

supporter of Cooperative Christian Ministry’s (CCM) Plan to End Chronic Homelessness in Cabarrus 

County – there are two (2) main goals that we intend to partner in. 

• Assist in providing community-based services and support to prevent homelessness prior to it 

happening, and mitigate the reoccurrences of homelessness. 

• Assist in the creation of short-term housing options and supportive housing for those who are 

chronically homeless or at risk of becoming homeless. 

Many persons or families threatened with homelessness lack problem-solving skills or management 

abilities.  The primary factor that causes homelessness is the loss of employment.  Programs and training 

are often needed to provide the client(s) with the skills they need to maintain a stable 

home.  Cooperative Christian Ministries, City of Concord Public Housing, The Salvation Army, 

Opportunity House, CVAN and Prosperity Unlimited offer programs and training in life skills, budgeting, 

childcare, and many other areas to help clients learn the skills needed for independence. 

As part of the strategic plan, the City has supported CCM’s efforts in the development of programs that 
provide expanded services to homeless. The City of Concord will continue to support these programs 
with up to 15% of our CDBG budget to fund Public Service agencies – of which CCM, The Salvation Army, 
Opportunity House and Prosperity Unlimited are included.   

If data is not available for the categories "number of persons becoming and exiting 

homelessness each year," and "number of days that person’s experience homelessness," 

describe these categories for each homeless population type (including chronically homeless 

individuals and families, families with children, veterans and their families, and 

unaccompanied youth): 

No data available 

Estimate the number and type of families in need of housing assistance for families with 

children and the families of veterans. 

81



 

  Consolidated Plan Concord     36 

 

The Point-in-Time Survey was conducted over a six (6) year period. There were an estimated six hundred 

(600) individuals that were experiencing homelessness over that time within the HOME Consortium 

jurisdiction. On average that means about one hundred (100) homeless individuals per year 

Describe the Nature and Extent of Homelessness by Racial and Ethnic Group. 

The vast majority of homeless families and individuals are "Not Hispanic'", according to the Point-in-

Time Survey conducted. CCM reports that the majority of homeless families and individuals are White 

(approximately 47 percent) and Black (approximately 44 percent). Percentages for Asian, Hispanic, and 

Multi-racial are in the single digits 

Describe the Nature and Extent of Unsheltered and Sheltered Homelessness. 

Accurately capturing data on the nature and extent of homeless persons is challenging.  However, data 

from the Annual Point-in-Time count provides a snapshot of the extent of homelessness in our 

community. The Point-in-Time Survey data shows that the vast majority of homeless are sheltered 

within many local public service organizations i.e. Salvation Army and CCM. 

 

NA-45 Non-Homeless Special Needs Assessment - 91.405, 91.205 (b,d) 

Introduction 

This section describes the specific housing and supportive service needs of certain population groups 

that are not homeless.  In an effort to identify non-homeless special needs, staff utilized a survey 

approach.  A Needs Assessment Survey was distributed during community meetings, distributed to non-

profit organizations and it was also made available online.  The goal of the survey was to identify 

priorities in the areas of affordable housing, homelessness, suitable living environment, special needs 

housing, and special populations.  Although there are a number of agencies and groups that provide 

services designed to improve the quality of life for special needs populations, it is difficult to produce 

precise numbers. 

Describe the characteristics of special needs populations in your community: 

According to Needs Assessment Survey, characteristics of the special needs’ population in order of 

priority with the top three receiving priority for funding consideration; neglected/abused children, 

elderly persons, veterans, victims of domestic violence; persons with disabilities; at-risk youth, homeless 

persons, persons with HIV/AIDs, and ex-offenders.   

What are the housing and supportive service needs of these populations and how are these 

needs determined?    

82



 

  Consolidated Plan Concord     37 

 

Based on the results of the Needs Assessment Survey the housing and supportive service needs of these 

populations are: 

• Tenant-Based Rental Assistance; 

• Access to quality public services such as transportation, senior activities, youth activities, child 

care services, health services, legal services, anti-crime programs and job training; 

• Supportive housing for the elderly, disabled veterans, disabled persons, and victims of domestic 

violence; and 

• Supportive services for neglected/abuse children, elderly persons and veterans. 

The City of Concord will not differentiate between the already homeless and those individuals and 

families who are on the brink of becoming homeless. The City will provide resources and funding to both 

the Salvation Army and CCM to assist both types of the aforementioned cases. The City agrees that both 

transitional housing and supportive housing has the ability to assist with breaking down the barriers to 

affordable housing. 

Discuss the size and characteristics of the population with HIV/AIDS and their families within 

the Eligible Metropolitan Statistical Area:  

Although specific data is not available on the characteristics of the HIV/AIDs population for the HOME 

Consortium service area, according to the 2017 North Carolina HIV/STD Surveillance Report, of the HIV 

disease cases diagnosed in 2017, within the state, African American's represented 64.8 percent of all 

cases with a rate of 45.5 per 100,000 adult/adolescent population.  The highest rate (78.0 per 100,000) 

was among adult/adolescent African American males.  

According to the Cabarrus Health Alliance staff, there are currently no supportive housing and only 

limited special needs services in Cabarrus County solely for persons with HIV and/or AIDS; however, they 

do work with various agencies/groups that provide limited supportive services such as medical 

assistance and medications. The Alliance provides some rental assistance as well.  The Cabarrus Health 

Alliance does not differentiate the supportive housing needs of persons with HIV/AIDS from other types 

of disabilities; however, the supportive housing needs are the same as other persons with disabilities 

that are on fixed incomes. 

 

NA-50 Non-Housing Community Development Needs - 91.415, 91.215 (f) 

Describe the jurisdiction’s need for Public Facilities: 

The US Housing and Urban Development Department list examples of public facilities as senior, 

handicapped, youth, or neighborhood centers, shelters for the homeless, and child care centers. The 

City of Concord as well as the HOME Consortium Service Area has several centers around the 

community that cater to a wide array of demographics. 

83



 

  Consolidated Plan Concord     38 

 

Public facilities serve the community in many different capacities. These facilities are necessary to 

support and maintain the high quality and standards of social, physical and economic health, safety, 

comfort, and general well- being. ClearWater Arts Center and Studios is a community development 

project utilizing CDBG funds to enable inspiration, creative expression and community connections 

through providing access to top-notch artists, their teaching and their works; as well as affordable space 

for working artists to build their practice and community, and for the community to hold private or 

public events and to gather.  The City's Recreation and Parks Department also enhances the quality of 

life for residents by managing park systems, greenways, and public grounds in a manner that provides 

residents with safe, clean, and attractive indoor facilities and outdoor spaces.  Collaboration between 

the Planning and Neighborhood Development and departments such as Parks and Recreation evaluate 

opportunities to leverage CDBG funds to meet the needs of low-income areas.   

How were these needs determined? 

These needs were suggested at both public meetings as well as the Needs Survey for the Consolidated 

Plan. 

Describe the jurisdiction’s need for Public Improvements: 

Describe the jurisdiction’s need for Public Improvements: 

The City of Concord continually evaluates the need for public improvements.  These provide benefits to 

communities as a whole, rather than very specific individuals and families. When public improvement 

needs exist in low-to moderate income areas, the City takes the opportunity to collaborate and partner 

with City departments. The partnership allows us to explore CDBG funding leverage opportunities. The 

City of Concord has and will continue to provide Infrastructure improvements. These include street, 

sidewalk, water, sewer, flood, and drainage improvements. 

 The primary criterion for investment in infrastructure should be a positive social net benefit/cost ratio. 

That is, the overall equation between net benefits and costs for the community as a whole – subject to 

there being budgetary scope to fund the servicing costs of the public component of the investment. 

How were these needs determined? 

These needs were suggested at both public meetings as well as the Needs Survey for the Consolidated 

Plan. 

Describe the jurisdiction’s need for Public Services: 

The City of Concord has a need for a variety of public services and strives to meet these needs by 

providing allocation of general funds, and up to 15 percent of CDBG funds, to non-profit organizations. 

The public service category is an extremely valuable tool that every Planning and Neighborhood 

84



 

  Consolidated Plan Concord     39 

 

Development Department should capitalize on. Non-profits can be a great resource for getting programs 

out in the community. Public service activities include housing referral and counseling services, personal 

budget classes, homeownership counseling, food distribution (food bank services), health education, or 

workforce development. Based on the results of the Needs Survey, citizens indicated that public 

services were a priority in enhancing the quality of life. These needs include but are not limited to: 

transportation, senior activities, youth activities, child care services, health services, legal services, anti-

crime programs and job training.  Feedback received during the community input meetings also 

highlighted the need for financial literacy training. The entire city and the target areas can benefit from 

the services that non-profits provide. Each year, the City allows non-profit organizations to competitively 

apply for funding.  Applications are reviewed and recommendations for funding are submitted to City 

Council for final approval.  

How were these needs determined? 

These needs were suggested at both public meetings as well as the Needs Survey for the Consolidated 

Plan. Also, additional public services were identified through consultations with non-profit organizations 

and service providers.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

85



 

  Consolidated Plan Concord     40 

 

Housing Market Analysis 

MA-05 Overview 

Housing Market Analysis Overview: 

The City of Concord as well as the HOME Consortium Service Area lies within the Charlotte, NC MSA. The 

three-county Consortium has a total land area of 1,485.20 square miles.  The City of Concord is the 

principal urban center (2019 population estimate –96,341), followed by the City of Kannapolis with an 

estimated 50,841.   The City of Concord is located in the piedmont of North Carolina, in the western half 

of Cabarrus County, approximately 20 miles from downtown Charlotte.  Concord serves as the county 

seat.  

 According to 2014-2018 Census data, there are 140,870 owner occupied housing units and 55,015 

renter occupied housing units within the HOME Consortium Service Area. Sixty-five percent of the 

housing units within the HOME Consortium Service Area are owner occupied. Twelve percent of the 

available housing stock is vacant. Most of the housing stock was built between 1980 and 1999 

(approximately 35 percent) and approximately 22 percent of the housing stock was built between 1960 

and 1979. Thus, the housing stock is becoming more and more in adequate. 

 The housing market has suffered all throughout the nation, and we have seen some of this here within 

the City of Concord. However, our market has made significant progress over the past year. Staff will 

continue to monitor the condition of the market over the next five (5) years, and strategically implement 

activities accordingly. 

MA-10 Housing Market Analysis: Number of Housing Units - 91.410, 

91.210(a)&(b)(2) 

Introduction 

The City of Concord as well as the HOME Consortium Service Area has many rental units available within 

the tri-county area. However, the number is very deceiving due to the fact that a number of those units 

may not be affordable to many low to moderate income households.  Likewise, many of these units are 

also substandard in condition. 

 Moreover, there are a significant amount of affordable rental properties that were built prior to 1980. 

Therefore, over the next five (5) years their age may adversely affect their ability to be rented. As noted 

in the tenure table below, there is a significant amount of three (3) or more bedroom units which are 

outdated and for renters - the two (2) bedroom units are very popular, but out-of-date. Also note, the 

two (2) bedroom is by far the most utilized, but the amount of new two (2) bedroom units on the 

market are few. 

86



 

  Consolidated Plan Concord     41 

 

All residential properties by number of units 

Property Type Number % 

1-unit detached structure 132,663 73% 

1-unit, attached structure 2,906 2% 

2-4 units 7,078 4% 

5-19 units 10,904 6% 

20 or more units 3,786 2% 

Mobile Home, boat, RV, van, etc 25,611 14% 
Total 182,948 100% 

Table 26 – Residential Properties by Unit Number 
Data Source: 2014-2018 ACS 

 

 
 

Unit Size by Tenure 

 Owners Renters 

Number % Number % 

No bedroom 374 0.3% 1859 3.4% 

87



 

  Consolidated Plan Concord     42 

 

 Owners Renters 

Number % Number % 

1 bedroom 1,522 1.1% 6221 11.3% 

2 bedrooms 19,130 13.6% 22,853 41.5% 

3 bedrooms 77,450 55% 18,709 34% 
4 bedrooms 32,045 22.7 4,533 8.2% 
5 bedrooms 10,349 7.3 840 1.5% 
Total 140,870 100% 55,015 100% 

Table 27 – Unit Size by Tenure 
Data Source: 2014-2018 ACS 

 

Describe the number and targeting (income level/type of family served) of units assisted with 

federal, state, and local programs. 

The City looks to provide up to 10 houses to address the affordable housing needs of low to moderate - 

income families that utilize federal funds. Families typically need two (2) - three (3) bedroom units. We 

can utilize our CHDOs and other private groups to leverage additional dollars with construction or 

rehabilitation. 

Provide an assessment of units expected to be lost from the affordable housing inventory for 

any reason, such as expiration of Section 8 contracts. 

In consultation with the Concord Housing Department, staff didn’t project nor expect any units to be 

lost from inventory. Furthermore, the Section 8 waiting list is at six hundred plus (600+) individuals. 

Does the availability of housing units meet the needs of the population? 

No, the housing does not meet the needs of the population in two (2) very contrasting ways. First, the 

housing stock appears to be aging more rapidly than new housing is being developed. Second, the 

amount of available affordable housing is limited. 

 

 

Describe the need for specific types of housing: 

Over the past five (5) years the market conditions have changed dramatically. The nation has witnessed 

a sharp incline in demand for all housing types while the supply has recognized a very small lapse.   

The City of Concord recognizes the flux in the market, and we have made a conscience effort to be 

proactive in pursuing affordable housing development opportunities. The Planning and Neighborhood 

88



 

  Consolidated Plan Concord     43 

 

Development Department will continue to advocate and promote homeownership, but we will also 

evaluate other options for affordable housing.  

Within the City of Concord, there are several housing needs for low to moderate income families and 

individuals.  They are; (1) Home Ownership Opportunities, (2) Lease-Purchase Programs for Single-

Family Homes, (3) Rental Housing Opportunities for Single-Family Homes, and (4) Multi-Family Housing 

Rental Opportunities.  Staff will explore the feasibility of each. 

MA-15 Housing Market Analysis: Cost of Housing - 91.410, 91.210(a) 

Introduction 

According to 2014-2018 ACS 4-year estimate data, the cost of housing is one of the major barriers to 

affordable housing. From 2014 - 2018 the median home value has increased $56,100 in Cabarrus 

County, $32,800 in Iredell County, and $6,000 in Rowan County- that is a respective change of 26, 16, 

and 5 percent. During that same period, Cabarrus, Iredell, and Rowan Counties experienced increases in 

the median contract rents of 16, 13, and 14 percent respectively. These increases in rent can become a 

barrier to affordable housing for those who are on fixed incomes - such as the elderly. 

Cost of Housing (average costs for Cabarrus, Iredell, and Rowan)  

 Base Year:  2000 Most Recent Year:  2018 % Change 

Median Home Value 109,833 185,567 41% 

Median Contract Rent 448 671 33% 

Table 28 – Cost of Housing 

 
Data Source: 2000 Census (Base Year), 2014-2018 ACS (Most Recent Year) 

 

 
Rent Paid Number % 

Less than $500 4,695 9.3 

$500-999 30,114 59.4 

$1,000-1,499 10,694 21.1 

$1,500-1,999 3,536 7.0 

$2,000-2,499 997 2 

2,500-2,999 440 .9 

3,000 or more 212 .4 
Total 50,688 100.0% 

Table 29 - Rent Paid 
Data Source: 2014-2018 ACS 

 
 

89



 

  Consolidated Plan Concord     44 

 

Housing Affordability 

% Units affordable to Households 
earning  

Renter Owner 

30% HAMFI 3,229 No Data 

50% HAMFI 12,115 8,306 

80% HAMFI 29,747 25,047 

100% HAMFI No Data 38,276 
Total 55,015 71,629 

Table 30 – Housing Affordability 
Data Source: 2014-2018 CHAS 

 

 
Monthly Rent  

Monthly Rent ($) Efficiency (no 
bedroom) 

1 Bedroom 2 Bedroom 3 Bedroom 4 Bedroom 

Fair Market Rent 907 934 1063 1378 1518 

High HOME Rent 907 934 1063 1378 1,518 

Low HOME Rent 731 783 940 1085 1211 

Table 31 – Monthly Rent 
Data Source: HUD FMR and HOME Rents 

 
 

Is there sufficient housing for households at all income levels? 

According to the 2014 -2018 ACS 5-year estimates, there are a total of 218,451 housing units within the 

Cabarrus, Iredell, and Rowan Counties. The same data notes that 66,057 of the aforementioned units 

were built prior to 1980. Approximately, twenty-two percent of the total housing units available are 

almost twenty-five (25) years of age. 

 The total number of rental-occupied units is 55,015. There are 50,320 total rental units with the 

estimated gross rent at or above $500.00. The 2018 corresponding median contract rent for Cabarrus, 

Iredell, and Rowan is $730, $680, and $613 respectively. 

 There is not enough housing for all income levels. Furthermore, the housing that is available is already 

out-of-date, or will quickly become out-of-date 

How is affordability of housing likely to change considering changes to home values and/or 

rents? 

The median rent contract in 2000 for Cabarrus, Iredell, and Rowan according to ACS was $509, $419, 

and $416 respectively. Then in 2018 ACS the median rent contract was $720, $680, and $613. ACS the 

data showed that the median rent contracts within the three counties increase by 29, 38, and 32 

90



 

  Consolidated Plan Concord     45 

 

percent. This data alone suggests that over the next five (5) years we should expect our rent percentage 

increases to move even higher than was reported in the 2000-2018 ACS data. 

According to ACS, the median home values for Cabarrus, Iredell, and Rowan County in 2000 was 

$118,200, $116,100, and $95,200 respectively. The 2000-2018 ACS respective median home values were 

$219,700, $200,000, and $137,000 in the three counties. Over the past decade, the respective three 

counties have observed approximately a 46, 41, and 30 percent increase in median home values. 

Despite the economic downturn, the counties have been very fortunate in the sense that they all have 

observed increases in the median home values. This data alone suggests that over the next five (5) years 

we should expect our home values to increase. 

How do HOME rents / Fair Market Rent compare to Area Median Rent? How might this 

impact your strategy to produce or preserve affordable housing? 

According to the HUD FMR and HOME rents table above, the Fair Market Rents for the two (2) - three 

(3) bedroom units are $1,063 and 1,378 respectively in the Charlotte MSA (that includes Cabarrus 

County). As noted in the 2004 - 2018 ACS survey the median rent contracts for HOME Consortium 

Service Area are in the $850 range. The vast majority of clients that the counties serve are at or below 

the 50% AMI level. Thus, the data suggests that there is a large gap in the FMR and the Low Home Rent. 

 

MA-20 Housing Market Analysis: Condition of Housing - 91.410, 91.210(a) 

Introduction 

This section describes the characteristics of the existing housing supply, including age and condition and 

the risk posed by lead-based paint. The term "condition" refers to one or more of the following housing 

problems and is identical to the categories set forth in the Housing Needs Summary found at section NA-

10. 

 The City of Concord Minimum Housing Code notes that a "dilapidated shall mean that a dwelling is unfit 

for human habitation and cannot be repaired, altered or improved to comply with all of the minimum 

standards established by this article at a cost not in excess of 50% of its value." 

 The code also notes that "deteriorated shall mean that a dwelling is unfit for human habitation and can 

be repaired, altered, or improved to comply with all of the minimum standards established by this 

article at a cost not in excess of 50% of its value." 

Describe the jurisdiction's definition for "substandard condition" and "substandard condition 

but suitable for rehabilitation: 

91



 

  Consolidated Plan Concord     46 

 

The City of Concord uses two (2) terms to describe both; substandard condition NOT suitable for 

rehabilitation, and substandard condition suitable for rehabilitation. These two (2) terms are 

"dilapidated structures" and "deteriorated structures." Our Code Enforcement Department uses these 

terms to note in a case not only the condition of the structure, but the priority in which these structures 

will be addressed. 

The City of Concord Minimum Housing Code notes that a "dilapidated shall mean that a dwelling is unfit 

for human habitation and cannot be repaired, altered or improved to comply with all of the minimum 

standards established by this article at a cost not in excess of 50% of its value." 

The code also notes that "deteriorated shall mean that a dwelling is unfit for human habitation and can 

be repaired, altered, or improved to comply with all of the minimum standards established by this 

article at a cost not in excess of 50% of its value." 

Substandard Housing: Lacking complete plumbing or kitchen facilities; 

Condition of Units 

Condition of Units Owner-Occupied Renter-Occupied 

Number % Number % 

With one selected Condition 28,964 25% 18,512 42% 

With two selected Conditions 614 1% 870 2% 

With three selected Conditions 23 0% 35 0% 

With four selected Conditions 0 0% 0 0% 

No selected Conditions 88,389 75% 24,760 56% 
Total 117,990 101% 44,177 100% 

Table 32 - Condition of Units 
Data Source: 2014-2018 ACS 

 
 
 
 

Year Unit Built 

Year Unit Built Owner-Occupied Renter-Occupied 

Number % Number % 

2000 or later 30,086 26% 7,679 17% 

1980-1999 41,646 35% 15,637 35% 

1950-1979 33,656 29% 14,025 32% 

Before 1950 12,602 11% 6,836 15% 
Total 117,990 101% 44,177 99% 

Table 33 – Year Unit Built 
Data Source: 2014-2018 CHAS 

 
 

92



 

  Consolidated Plan Concord     47 

 

Risk of Lead-Based Paint Hazard 
Risk of Lead-Based Paint Hazard Owner-Occupied Renter-Occupied 

Number % Number % 

Total Number of Units Built Before 1980 46,258 39% 20,861 47% 

Housing Units build before 1980 with children present 13,690 12% 5,631 13% 

Table 34 – Risk of Lead-Based Paint 
Data Source: 2014-2018 ACS (Total Units) 2014-2018 CHAS (Units with Children present) 

 
 

Vacant Units 

 Suitable for 
Rehabilitation 

Not Suitable for 
Rehabilitation 

Total 

Vacant Units 0 0 0 

Abandoned Vacant Units 0 0 0 

REO Properties 0 0 0 

Abandoned REO Properties 0 0 0 

Table 35 - Vacant Units 
Data Source: 2014-2018 CHAS 

 
 

Describe the need for owner and rental rehabilitation based on the condition of the 

jurisdiction's housing. 

The City of Concord has many old homes which need rehabilitation. Many of these homes are within 

areas that Community Development has deemed as focus areas. The City of Concord has been 

conducting owner-occupied rehabilitation since the early 1980's. It is our intention and goal to continue 

this service over the next five (5) years. Every year the list for owner-occupied rehabilitation grows. Staff 

is currently is implementing the list based on a first come first served basis, based on need and 

availability of funds 

Estimate the number of housing units within the jurisdiction that are occupied by low- or 

moderate-income families that contain lead-based paint hazards. 91.205(e), 91.405 

Based on housing stock information provided in the 2010 Census for the tri-county area, there are 

67,119 housing units built before 1980. There is no data on the number of housing units that are 

occupied by low to moderate income families with LBP Hazards. It can be estimated that the number of 

low-income households in Section NA-20, reporting severe housing problems, with one or more of four 

housing problems may contain lead-based paint.  

 

MA-25 Public and Assisted Housing - 91.410, 91.210(b) 

93



 

  Consolidated Plan Concord     48 

 

Introduction 

The City of Concord “local” public housing authority is a department within the municipality.  The 

Housing Authority operates 174 units within Cabarrus County.  All of the units are classified as “low 

rent.”    There is a need for additional affordable housing units, as indicated by the 672 families on the 

wait list for these units.  There are no plans in the immediate future to construct any more public 

housing units in Concord or Cabarrus County.  

Also, there are currently 672 families currently on the waiting list for Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher 

program. Obviously, the waiting lists for public housing and vouchers reflect the need for more 

affordable housing.  The wait time for these households is 24 to 48 months based on the current 

turnover rate.   

Totals Number of Units 

Program Type 

 Certificate Mod-
Rehab 

Public 
Housing 

Vouchers 

Total Project -
based 

Tenant -
based 

 

Special Purpose Voucher 

Veterans 
Affairs 

Supportive 
Housing 

Family 
Unification 

Program 

Disabled 
* 

# of units 

vouchers 

available 0 0 174 541 39 502 0 143 0 

# of accessible 

units                   

*includes Non-Elderly Disabled, Mainstream One-Year, Mainstream Five-year, and Nursing Home Transition 

Table 36 – Total Number of Units by Program Type 
Data 
Source: 

PIC (PIH Information Center) 

 

Describe the supply of public housing developments: 

Describe the number and physical condition of public housing units in the jurisdiction, 

including those that are participating in an approved Public Housing Agency Plan: 

The Concord Housing Department (CHD) operates a total of 174 public housing units. CHD annually 

receives Federal funds to modernize and repair public housing units. The CHD renovates a number of 

units annually and largely replaces floor tile, kitchen cabinets, countertops, water heaters, and complete 

bathroom renovations along with painting. The CHD has a replacement cycle on all appliances, and has 

installed roofs, A/C siding, and security doors on much of the housing stock over the past several years. 

94



 

  Consolidated Plan Concord     49 

 

Describe the restoration and revitalization needs of public housing units in the jurisdiction: 

Although the Concord Housing Department has a replacement and restoration cycle on its units, much of their housing stock is already or quickly 

becoming out dated. Over the next five (5) years it is going to be tough to sustain their current cycle - due to funding cuts. The CHD must 

continue to apply for grant funds to both construct new units, and renovate its current stock. 

Describe the public housing agency's strategy for improving the living environment of low to moderate-income families residing 

in public housing: 

The Concord Housing Department does have a strategy to improve the living environments of the families who utilized their services. They will 

continue to seek funding from a variety of sources to construct new units and renovate the current units. The CHD seek to provide educational 

and training opportunities in the areas of pre-homeownership, basic financial management, and workforce development. CHD also hopes to 

implement measures to de-concentrate poverty by participating in mixed income developments, and to work with local Law Enforcement to 

make communities more safe and secure. 

A-30 Homeless Facilities and Services - 91.410, 91.210(c) 

Introduction 

According to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), a person is considered homeless only when he or she: (1) Resides 

in places not meant for human habitation, such as cars, parks, sidewalks, and abandoned buildings, (2) Resides in an emergency shelter, (3) 

Resides in transitional housing for persons who originally came from the streets or emergency shelters, (4) Resides in any of the aforementioned 

places but is spending a short time (up to thirty (30) consecutive days) in a hospital or other institution, (5) Is being evicted within a week from a 

private dwelling unit and no subsequent residence has been identified and the person lacks the resources and support networks needed to 

obtain housing, (6) Is being discharged within a week from an institution, such as mental health or substance abuse treatment facility or a 

jail/prison, in which the person has been a resident for more than thirty (30) consecutive days and no subsequent residence has been identified, 

and (7) Is fleeing a domestic violence situation and no subsequent residence has been identified.  

The City of Concord intends to continue to support and assist those organizations that help mitigate and abolish homelessness 

95



 

  Consolidated Plan Concord     50 

 

Facilities Targeted to Homeless Persons 

 Emergency Shelter Beds Transitional 
Housing Beds 

Permanent Supportive Housing 
Beds 

Year-Round Beds 
(Current & New) 

Voucher / 
Seasonal / 

Overflow Beds 

Current & New Current & New Under 
Development 

Households with Adult(s) and 

Child(ren) 25 0 14 0 0 

Households with Only Adults 0 0 0 0 0 

Chronically Homeless Households 0 0 0 0 0 

Veterans 0 0 0 0 0 

Unaccompanied Youth 0 0 0 0 0 

Table 37 - Facilities Targeted to Homeless Persons 
Data Source Comments:  

 

96



 

  Consolidated Plan Concord     51 

 

Describe mainstream services, such as health, mental health, and employment services to the 
extent those services are used to complement services targeted to homeless persons 

The lower earning households that we see are normally candidates for SNAP benefits, Medicaid, child 

care subsidies, etc. Since they don’t normally have health insurance other than Medicaid many of them 

may be eligible for the Affordable Healthcare plans. The community needs more navigators with a 

broader presence to enroll persons into plans and provide education that people can understand. 

List and describe services and facilities that meet the needs of homeless persons, particularly 
chronically homeless individuals and families, families with children, veterans and their 
families, and unaccompanied youth. If the services and facilities are listed on screen SP-40 
Institutional Delivery Structure or screen MA-35 Special Needs Facilities and Services, 
describe how these facilities and services specifically address the needs of these populations. 

Chronically homeless individual is defined as "an unaccompanied, disabled individual who has been 

persistently homeless for more than a year or who has been homeless for four (4) or more episodes 

over a period of three (3) years." Professionals in the field of homelessness note that, "people who are 

chronically homeless are highly likely to cycle in and out of housing, the streets, emergency shelters, 

hospitals, mental health facilities, and/or jails for varying periods of time. Within the Consortium Area 

Are there are several services and facilities that meet the needs of the homeless population. Those 

facilities include: Community Link- Rapid rehousing, Permanent Supportive Housing, Supportive Services 

for Veteran Families, Cardinal Innovations- Permanent Supportive Services, Cooperative Christian 

Ministry, Rowan Helping Ministries, CVAN, Salisbury VAMC, Carolinas Care Partnership- HOPWA serves 

Persons with HIV/ AIDS in Rowan and Iredell Counties, The Salvation Army Night Shelter, Opportunity 

House, Family Crisis Council of Rowan (serves victims homeless as a result of domestic violence and 

sexual assault) The wide varieties of services and facilities have the ability to provide several levels of 

resources to those in need. These resources range from emergency housing and transitional housing to 

workforce development and medical services. 

MA-35 Special Needs Facilities and Services - 91.410, 91.210(d) 

Introduction 

As the City of Concord as well as the HOME Consortium Service Area becomes a larger community, the 

need for facilities and services for the special needs’ population will increase. The latest data shows that 

the Consortium area has nearly 531,039 people within its service areas. With an increase of 

approximately 55,163 people since 2010, the HOME Consortium service area needs to develop 

partnerships and strategies to address and mitigate potential issues as it relates to facilities and services 

for the growing special needs population 

 

Including the elderly, frail elderly, persons with disabilities (mental, physical, developmental), 
persons with alcohol or other drug addictions, persons with HIV/AIDS and their families, 

97



 

  Consolidated Plan Concord     52 

 

public housing residents and any other categories the jurisdiction may specify, and describe 
their supportive housing needs 

The City of Concord as well as the HOME Consortium Members will partner with several agencies in 

their respective areas to provide services to populations mentioned above. The City of Concord and the 

Concord Housing Department have programs and services to support the elderly. The City provides 

assistance to the elderly through the homeowner rehabilitation program and the Concord Housing 

Department provides both housing and services for this particular population. Over the next five (5) 

years the City of Concord will pursue new partnerships with the medical community and non-profit 

groups who are working with the elderly population. 

The special needs populations in the City need access to decent, safe, and affordable supportive housing 

units.  Many who fall within these categories, are on fixed-incomes which impact their ability to afford 

decent housing or to rehabilitate their existing homes. The City, in the past, has been able to address the 

needs of the elderly by providing funding to support the development of affordable rental 

units.  Opportunities will be sought in the coming years. 

The City will also provide assistance to those non-profits whose mission is to provide housing and 

supportive services to individuals with disabilities.  

Describe programs for ensuring that persons returning from mental and physical health 

institutions receive appropriate supportive housing 

Through the work of the 10-Year Plan to End Homelessness and the Piedmont Regional Continuum of 

Care Committee of the NC Balance of State; agencies within and around the City of Concord have 

expanded housing options for homeless individuals by increasing bed inventories of permanent 

supportive housing. Keep in mind that those individuals who are chronically homeless may be 

experiencing some mental health and/or substance abuse problems. When these individuals return 

from institutional rehabilitation, supportive housing is necessary. 

Specify the activities that the jurisdiction plans to undertake during the next year to address 

the housing and supportive services needs identified in accordance with 91.215(e) with 

respect to persons who are not homeless but have other special needs. Link to one-year 

goals. 91.315(e) 

Supportive housing certainly benefits those who are homeless. However, supportive housing can also 

act as a means to prevent homelessness. Many individuals with disabilities and other special needs can 

benefit for the preventative nature of this program. The City of Concord intends on partnering and 

assisting those organizations whose mission is to support those in danger of becoming homeless. The 

City will continue to allocate funding to assist organizations that provide housing and supportive service 

activities. 

98



 

  Consolidated Plan Concord     53 

 

In our annual goals, the City states that we shall provide resources to the special needs’ population. 

Those resources include, but are not limited to transitional housing assistance, supportive housing 

assistance, and counseling 

For entitlement/consortia grantees: Specify the activities that the jurisdiction plans to 
undertake during the next year to address the housing and supportive services needs 
identified in accordance with 91.215(e) with respect to persons who are not homeless but 
have other special needs. Link to one-year goals. (91.220(2)) 

Supportive housing certainly benefits those who are homeless. However, supportive housing can also 

act as a means to prevent homelessness. Many individuals with disabilities and other special needs can 

benefit for the preventative nature of this program. The City of Concord intends on partnering and 

assisting those organizations whose mission is to support those in danger of becoming homeless. The 

City and other entitlements in the Consortium will continue to allocate up to 15% of their CDBG funds to 

Public Service agencies that address housing and supportive service needs of their respective 

jurisdictions.  

MA-40 Barriers to Affordable Housing - 91.410, 91.210(e) 

Describe any negative effects of public policies on affordable housing and residential 

investment 

There are many complex factors which prevent low to moderate-income households from obtaining 

affordable housing.  Many of these factors are influenced by elements which are beyond the control of 

government.  These factors include, economic conditions, interest rates, wage levels and home purchase 

prices and rental rates.  In addition, there are low to moderate-income residents that have the ability to 

afford a mortgage payment, but they cannot secure a mortgage because they lack sufficient capital for 

the down payment and closing costs.  Misinformation, financial mismanagement, and poor credit 

histories are also a barrier to homeownership and in many cases, is a barrier to renting. There are no 

specific public policies that have a negative effect on affordable housing and residential investment. 

 

 

99



 

  Consolidated Plan Concord     54 

 

MA-45 Non-Housing Community Development Assets - 91.410, 91.210(f) 

Introduction 

The nation is looking in the face of a recession due to COVID-19 that may have an impact on the affordable housing market. As a result, the 

recession and recovery of the affordable housing market may have major economic impact within Concord and the HOME Consortium Service 

Area. During the economic downturn, unemployment rates have been very high. When the economy recovers, unemployment rates are 

expected to gradually decline. In addition, commercial growth will also reflect the area’s economic growth and the creation of employment 

opportunities. 

Economic Development Market Analysis 

Business Activity 

Business by Sector Number of 
Workers 

Number of Jobs Share of Workers 
% 

Share of Jobs 
% 

Jobs less workers 
% 

Agriculture, Mining, Oil & Gas Extraction 171 65 1 0 -1 

Arts, Entertainment, Accommodations 3,576 7,984 16 25 9 

Construction 1,420 1,541 6 5 -1 

Education and Health Care Services 3,022 3,413 13 11 -2 

Finance, Insurance, and Real Estate 2,337 1,293 10 4 -6 

Information 681 810 3 3 0 

Manufacturing 2,538 3,311 11 10 -1 

Other Services 772 1,024 3 3 0 

Professional, Scientific, Management Services 2,530 1,639 11 5 -6 

Public Administration 0 0 0 0 0 

Retail Trade 3,253 7,735 14 24 10 

Transportation and Warehousing 952 831 4 3 -1 

Wholesale Trade 1,589 1,972 7 6 -1 

Total 22,841 31,618 -- -- -- 

Table 38 - Business Activity – Data Source: 2014-2018 ACS (Workers), 2011 Longitudinal Employer-Household Dynamics (Jobs) 

100



 

  Consolidated Plan Concord     55 

 

Labor Force 

Total Population in the Civilian Labor Force 41,107 

Civilian Employed Population 16 years and 

over 36,805 

Unemployment Rate 10.47 

Unemployment Rate for Ages 16-24 26.55 

Unemployment Rate for Ages 25-65 7.10 

Table 39 - Labor Force 
Data Source: 2014-2018 ACS 

 

Occupations by Sector Number of People 

Management, business and financial 8,771 

Farming, fisheries and forestry occupations 1,463 

Service 2,785 

Sales and office 9,775 

Construction, extraction, maintenance and 

repair 3,676 

Production, transportation and material 

moving 2,608 

Table 40 – Occupations by Sector 
Data Source: 2014-2018 ACS 

 

Travel Time 

Travel Time Number Percentage 

< 30 Minutes 21,269 63% 

30-59 Minutes 10,416 31% 

60 or More Minutes 2,301 7% 
Total 33,986 100% 

Table 41 - Travel Time 
Data Source: 2014-2018 ACS 

 

Education: 

Educational Attainment by Employment Status (Population 16 and Older) 

Educational Attainment In Labor Force  

Civilian Employed Unemployed Not in Labor 
Force 

Less than high school graduate 3,031 485 1,556 

101



 

  Consolidated Plan Concord     56 

 

Educational Attainment In Labor Force  

Civilian Employed Unemployed Not in Labor 
Force 

High school graduate (includes 

equivalency) 6,908 912 2,043 

Some college or Associate's degree 11,206 1,287 2,376 

Bachelor's degree or higher 10,365 276 1,191 

Table 42 - Educational Attainment by Employment Status 
Data Source: 2014-2018 ACS 

 

Educational Attainment by Age 

 Age 

18–24 yrs 25–34 yrs 35–44 yrs 45–65 yrs 65+ yrs 

Less than 9th grade 250 427 675 615 837 

9th to 12th grade, no diploma 968 1,125 836 1,394 1,669 

High school graduate, GED, or 

alternative 2,149 2,289 2,531 5,078 2,492 

Some college, no degree 2,416 2,769 2,996 4,110 1,362 

Associate's degree 246 1,021 1,679 2,331 305 

Bachelor's degree 432 2,655 2,458 3,042 770 

Graduate or professional degree 0 636 1,370 1,671 443 

Table 43 - Educational Attainment by Age 
Data Source: 2014-2018 ACS 

 

Educational Attainment – Median Earnings in the Past 12 Months 

Educational Attainment Median Earnings in the Past 12 Months 

Less than high school graduate 20,500 

High school graduate (includes equivalency) 27,498 

Some college or Associate's degree 35,002 

Bachelor's degree 47,541 

Graduate or professional degree 65,123 

Table 44 – Median Earnings in the Past 12 Months 
Data Source: 2014-2018 ACS 

 

 

Based on the Business Activity table above, what are the major employment sectors within 

your jurisdiction? 

The three (3) largest employment sectors in HOME Consortium Service Area are (1) Retail Trade, (2) 

Other Services-Management, and (3) Construction. 

102



 

  Consolidated Plan Concord     57 

 

Describe the workforce and infrastructure needs of the business community: 

The overwhelmingly high number of people in the age group 18-65 is definitely the area’s greatest 

resources. This depicts an available and willing workforce for area. Economic development has many 

driving factors. One of the most important factors in economic development is human capital. In 2018, 

approximately 31% of people in the HOME Consortium Service Area had college, some college or 

associate’s degrees. This means that approximately 164,622 had college degrees in 2018. Current 

employment sectors all benefit from a workforce having a variety of skills, education and knowledge. 

 Concord is well served by an extensive roadway network.  Transportation is a key component for 

economic development and growth.  Recognizing the need for quality, well-maintained streets, the City 

includes street maintenance and construction projects in their Capital Improvement Plan. 

 When industries are searching for a site to locate their business, they take into account the current 

stock of human capital and potential stock of human capital (Area colleges, universities, and Community 

Colleges in Cabarrus, Rowan, and Iredell County). We also have the ability to train the labor force to suit 

each business through our community college system. 

Describe any major changes that may have an economic impact, such as planned local or 

regional public or private sector investments or initiatives that have affected or may affect 

job and business growth opportunities during the planning period. Describe any needs for 

workforce development, business support or infrastructure these changes may create. 

Over the next five (5) years, Concord, NC expects to have numerous local and regional private 

investments that will generate a great deal of economic activity. 

The respondents that completed the primary needs survey cited economic development as an 

important priority. Job creation was a primary concern. Providing financial assistance for job training 

programs also cited in the needs’ assessment. Underserved communities expressed the need for   

appropriate economic development in their areas. The City works in conjunction with the Cabarrus 

County Economic Development Corporation to keep the tax base low. The City looks to work with 

Cabarrus Economic Development Corporation as they look to continue to expand and diversify economy 

opportunities, create a positive business environment, support existing businesses, maintain and expand 

community infrastructure and provide resources to new and expanding business. The program is 

structured to benefit greenfield sites and encourage re-use of existing building like the City owned 

Clearwater Arts Center & Studios. 

Clearwater Arts Center & Studios is an economic and community development project that have helped 

to revitalize the low to moderate-income neighborhood known as Gibson Village. The City owned 

buildings located on Kerr Street has been renovated through 4 phases to provide space for artists and 

the community to use. The area in which the building is located is a predominately low to moderate-

income neighborhood (60% LMI) called Gibson Village. Gibson Village is identified in the City's Center 

103



 

  Consolidated Plan Concord     58 

 

City Master Plan as one of the key revitalization areas in the city. The Gibson Village Neighborhood 

Association proposed the idea of an "Artist Village" and is very excited about its progress. 

 

Another infrastructure asset is the influx of business within the Downtown Opportunity Zone.   During 

the next five (5) years the addition of a 166-unit affordable housing project, rehabilitation of two (2) 

currently unused buildings and the rework of the streetscape on Union Avenue will bring in various 

commercial and residential pieces to Downtown Concord.  Total investment for the housing project 

alone will be over $50,000,000.   

 

How do the skills and education of the current workforce correspond to employment 

opportunities in the jurisdiction? 

The HOME Consortium Service Area is very fortunate to have four (2) higher educational institutions 

within the service area. These educational institutions help develop both technical and professional 

skills. This combination works great because the community has jobs for both workforces. The 

community colleges in Iredell and Rowan County provide continuing educational opportunities while 

also helping to address the needs of the workforce that finish high school or did not go to college. 

Describe any current workforce training initiatives, including those supported by Workforce 

Investment Boards, community colleges and other organizations. Describe how these efforts 

will support the jurisdiction's Consolidated Plan. 

The Centralina Workforce Development Board serves as the governing body for a variety of programs, 

including the Job Training Partnership Act, Work First (JOBS) welfare and placement programs, the Older 

Worker Americans Act Job Training and Employment Program, etc. 

Local community colleges and Goodwill industries will provide occupational skills training and 

educational training. They all provide free educational options along with job-specific training. 

Occupational Skills training is designed to meet the special requirements of a business and that is 

conducted with employer commitment to continue to employ all trained individuals upon successful 

completion of the training. Secondly, educational training including workplace literacy, basic skills, “soft” 

skills, and English as a second language 

Does your jurisdiction participate in a Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy 

(CEDS)? 

Yes 

If so, what economic development initiatives are you undertaking that may be coordinated 

with the Consolidated Plan? If not, describe other local/regional plans or initiatives that 

impact economic growth. 

104



 

  Consolidated Plan Concord     59 

 

The City works closely with the Cabarrus Economic Development Corporation to support existing 

business and recruit new business. Concord invests in a strong infrastructure that accommodates 

growth. To help stimulate job growth of new of existing industries in the City of Concord, the City 

offers tax credits, competitive grants and discretionary funds available to assist in attracting 

business to the region. It is these types of financial incentives and training programs that help to 

spur growth and create jobs by establishing a healthy and competitive environment with which to 

do business.  In addition to the incentives mentioned above, the City also offers the following; 

• Ready Labor Force & Training through the NC Manufacturing Institute 
 

• Streamlined Permitting Process 
 

• Favorable Municipal & County Tax Rates 
 

• Increasingly Competitive Electric Rates 
 

MA-50 Needs and Market Analysis Discussion  

Are there areas where households with multiple housing problems are concentrated? 

(include a definition of "concentration") 

For the purposes of the Five-year Consolidated Plan and this section, the term concentration will be 

used to refer to the low-to moderate income census tracts within the HOME Consortium Service Areas 

Are there any areas in the jurisdiction where racial or ethnic minorities or low-income 

families are concentrated? (include a definition of "concentration") 

Yes, for the purposes of the Five-year Consolidated Plan and this section, the term concentration will be 

used to refer to the low-to moderate income census tracts within the HOME Consortium Service Areas. 

What are the characteristics of the market in these areas/neighborhoods? 

These "concentrated" areas are typically characterized by old housing stock, low and fixed-incomes, and 

specified racial demographic. Another characteristic that can be assumed through data is a lower 

educational attainment level. 

Are there any community assets in these areas/neighborhoods? 

There are a significant number of community assets in these neighborhoods. These include schools, 

churches, parks and recreation facilities, access to trails and bus stops. However, of particular concern in 

some of these areas is a lack of a grocery store or other mainstream retail stores.   

Are there other strategic opportunities in any of these areas? 

105



 

  Consolidated Plan Concord     60 

 

Both of the aforementioned areas have a tremendous amount of opportunity. These neighborhoods in 

Concord are within close proximity to the downtown areas. The same holds true with low wealth 

communities in the HOME consortium service area. The opportunity for housing development, 

commercial development, and job growth are endless. 

MA-60 Broadband Needs of Housing occupied by Low to moderate-income 

Households - 91.210(a)(4), 91.310(a)(2) 

 

Describe the need for broadband wiring and connections for households, including low to 

moderate-income households and neighborhoods. 

Based on survey data, over 90% od Concord residents have internet service access.  

Describe the need for increased competition by having more than one broadband Internet 

service provider serve the jurisdiction. 

Jurisdictions all have more than one broadband internet service provider. 
 

MA-65 Hazard Mitigation - 91.210(a)(5), 91.310(a)(3) 
 
Describe the jurisdiction’s increased natural hazard risks associated with climate change. 

NA 

Describe the vulnerability to these risks of housing occupied by low to moderate-income 

households based on an analysis of data, findings, and methods. 

NA 

 

 

 

 

 

 

106



 

  Consolidated Plan Concord     61 

 

Strategic Plan 

SP-05 Overview 

Strategic Plan Overview 

The mission of the City as well as the HOME Consortium is to extend and strengthen partnerships among 

the public and private sector to provide decent housing, establish and maintain a suitable living 

environment, and expand economic opportunities. The Consolidated Plan establishes a unified, 

coordinated vision of community development actions for the upcoming five (5) years. Key elements of 

the Consolidated Plan are its emphasis on citizen participation and the collaborative nature of the 

process. The City uses the input from citizens and its community development partners to determine its 

housing and community development needs, and to undertake specific actions consistent with those 

strategies.  Specifically, the City and the HOME Consortium will be actively involved with, and obtains 

significant input from specialized organizations, agencies, and committees focused on the needs of the 

Citynd its residents. Input is also gathered throughout the year through public meetings, citizen 

participation, and interaction with residents, businesses, and community stakeholders.   

SP-10 Geographic Priorities - 91.415, 91.215(a)(1) 

Geographic Area 

Table 45 - Geographic Priority Areas 

1 Area Name: Concord HOME 

Consortium Service Area 

Area Type: 3 counties 

Other Target Area Description: 3 counties 

HUD Approval Date:   

% of Low/ Mod:   

Revital Type:    

Other Revital Description:   

Identify the neighborhood boundaries for this target area.   

Include specific housing and commercial characteristics of this target 

area. 

  

How did your consultation and citizen participation process help you 

to identify this neighborhood as a target area? 

  

Identify the needs in this target area.   

What are the opportunities for improvement in this target area?       

107



 

  Consolidated Plan Concord     62 

 

Are there barriers to improvement in this target area?   

 

General Allocation Priorities 

Describe the basis for allocating investments geographically within the state 

Our focus will remain in the Lower Wealth communities. These areas have been underserved. This 

geographic location will serve as a great asset in the future for housing, business, senior programs, and 

educational opportunities. 

 The City of Concord has always conducted scattered site activities. Low income households are not 

limited to one (1) or two (2) portions of the city. These households can be in many places throughout 

the city limits.   

SP-25 Priority Needs - 91.415, 91.215(a)(2) 

Priority Needs 

Table 46 – Priority Needs Summary 

1 Priority Need Name Reduce substandard housing and blight 

Priority Level High 

Population Extremely Low to Moderate 
Low 
Middle 
Disabled 
Large Families 
Families with Children 
Elderly 
Public Housing Residents 

Geographic Areas 

Affected 

3 counties 

Associated Goals Creation of decent affordable housing 

Description Creation of decent and affordable housing 

Basis for Relative 

Priority 

Community need based on needs assessment 

2 Priority Need Name Preserve and increase affordable housing 

Priority Level High 

108



 

  Consolidated Plan Concord     63 

 

Population Extremely Low 

Low 

Moderate 

Middle 

Large Families 

Families with Children 

Elderly, Disabled 

Public Housing Residents 

Geographic Areas 

Affected 

3 counties 

Associated Goals Creation of decent affordable housing 

Description Creation of decent affordable housing 

Basis for Relative 

Priority 

Community need based on needs assessment 

3 Priority Need Name Improve public infrastructure 

Priority Level High 

Population Extremely Low 

Low 

Moderate 

Middle 

Large Families 

Families with Children 

Elderly 

Public Housing Residents 

Geographic Areas 

Affected 

3 counties 

Associated Goals Economic Development Opportunities for low to mod 

Description Creation economic opportunities for low to mod 

Basis for Relative 

Priority 

Community need based on needs assessment 

4 Priority Need Name Increase economic opportunities 

Priority Level High 

109



 

  Consolidated Plan Concord     64 

 

Population Extremely Low 

Low 

Moderate 

Middle 

Large Families 

Families with Children 

Elderly 

Public Housing Residents 

Geographic Areas 

Affected 

3 counties 

Associated Goals Economic Development Opportunities for low to mod 

Description Create economic opportunities for low to mod 

Basis for Relative 

Priority 

Community need based on needs assessment 

5 Priority Need Name Scattered site rehabilitation 

Priority Level Low 

Population Extremely Low 

Low 

Moderate 

Middle 

Large Families 

Families with Children 

Elderly 

Public Housing Residents 

Geographic Areas 

Affected 

3 counties 

Associated Goals Creation of decent affordable housing 

Description Rehabilitation of sub-standard and un-safe housing 

Basis for Relative 

Priority 

Community need based on needs assessment 

6 Priority Need Name Produce affordable housing 

Priority Level Low 

110



 

  Consolidated Plan Concord     65 

 

Population Extremely Low 

Low 

Moderate 

Middle 

Large Families 

Families with Children 

Elderly 

Public Housing Residents 

Geographic Areas 

Affected 

3 counties 

Associated Goals Creation of decent affordable housing 

Description Creation of decent affordable housing 

Basis for Relative 

Priority 

Community need based on needs assessment 

7 Priority Need Name Elimination of environmental hazards 

Priority Level Low 

Population Extremely Low 

Low 

Moderate 

Middle 

Large Families 

Families with Children 

Elderly 

Public Housing Residents 

Geographic Areas 

Affected 

3 counties 

Associated Goals   

Description Eliminate environmental hazards 

Basis for Relative 

Priority 

Community need based on needs assessment 

8 Priority Need Name Support Public Service non-profits 

Priority Level Low 

111



 

  Consolidated Plan Concord     66 

 

Population Extremely Low 

Low 

Moderate 

Middle 

Large Families 

Families with Children 

Elderly 

Public Housing Residents 

Rural 

Chronic Homelessness 

Individuals 

Families with Children 

Mentally Ill 

Chronic Substance Abuse 

veterans 

Persons with HIV/AIDS 

Victims of Domestic Violence 

Elderly 

Frail Elderly 

Persons with Mental Disabilities 

Persons with Physical Disabilities 

Persons with Developmental Disabilities 

Persons with Alcohol or Other Addictions 

Persons with HIV/AIDS and their Families 

Victims of Domestic Violence 

Non-housing Community Development 

Geographic Areas 

Affected 

3 counties 

Associated Goals Creation of decent affordable housing 

Provide resources to special needs population 

Description Support valuable programs and provide resources to public service 

providers 

Basis for Relative 

Priority 

Community need based on needs assessment 

 

 

112



 

  Consolidated Plan Concord     67 

 

SP-30 Influence of Market Conditions - 91.415, 91.215(b) 

Influence of Market Conditions 

Affordable 
Housing Type 

Market Characteristics that will influence  
the use of funds available for housing type 

Tenant Based 

Rental Assistance 

(TBRA) 

N/A 

TBRA for Non-

Homeless Special 

Needs 

N/A 

New Unit 

Production 

The City of Concord recognizes the flux in the market, and we have already 

made a conscience effort to pivot. Over the past five (5) years we have targeted 

some areas for new home construction. For the most part, these homes have 

sold within a reasonable amount of time 

Rehabilitation The Planning and Neighborhood Development Department understands that 

our current housing stock is aging, and the need of owner-occupied 

rehabilitation will continue to increase. Since we plan on being more strategic 

with our new home construction - this should free up some resources for 

rehabilitation. 

Acquisition, 

including 

preservation 

Staff will continue to pursue properties for acquisition. These properties will be 

both residential and commercial in use. It is always our intention to keep the 

character and design of the neighborhood intact. In many cases, the properties 

we purchase are damaged beyond repair. In those cases, we will demolish and 

rebuild with past character in mind. 

Table 47 – Influence of Market Conditions     
 

 

SP-35 Anticipated Resources - 91.420(b), 91.215(a)(4), 91.220(c)(1,2) 
 

Introduction  

The City of Concord is the lead entity of the Cabarrus/Iredell/Rowan HOME Consortium.  The City also 

receives annual allocations of funding for Housing and Community Development activities under the 

Community Development Block Grant Program (CDBG).    

It is anticipated that Concord will have a total of $680,540 in CDBG entitlement funds and approximately 

$2,000 in program income for a total of $682,540 to carry out the activities included in this first-year 

action plan.  The anticipated allocation total of $1,304,995, estimated program income of $131,006 will 

total $1,436,001 in funding for HOME activities for the HOME Consortium in the first year of the plan. 

The City of Concord will utilize approximately $391,194 in HOME funding for HOME activities. The total 

113



 

  Consolidated Plan Concord     68 

 

includes: HOME allocation of $177,750, estimated program income of $131,006, and $82,438 in 

program administration. 

Anticipated Resources 

Program Source 
of 

Funds 

Uses of Funds Expected Amount Available Year 1 Expected 
Amount 

Available 
Remainder 
of ConPlan  

$ 

Narrative 
Description Annual 

Allocation: 
$ 

Program 
Income: 

$ 

Prior Year 
Resources: 

$ 

Total: 
$ 

CDBG public 

- 

federal 

Acquisition 

Admin and 

Planning 

Economic 

Development 

Housing 

Public 

Improvements 

Public 

Services 680,540 2000 0 682,540 0 

   

HOME public 

- 

federal 

Acquisition 

Homebuyer 

assistance 

Homeowner 

rehab 

Multifamily 

rental new 

construction 

Multifamily 

rental rehab 

New 

construction 

for ownership 

TBRA 177,750 131,006 0 308,756 0 

   

Table 48 - Anticipated Resources 

 

Explain how federal funds will leverage those additional resources (private, state and local 

funds), including a description of how matching requirements will be satisfied 

Staff intends on leveraging the U.S. Housing and Urban Development Funds when and where projects 

prove themselves to be feasible. Over the next five years, City council approved funds will be used to 

support affordable housing activities.  

114



 

  Consolidated Plan Concord     69 

 

If appropriate, describe publicly owned land or property located within the jurisdiction that 

may be used to address the needs identified in the plan 

Over the past five (5) years staff has strategically invested in properties within our target/focus areas. 

These properties are slated to address the affordable housing needs for those seeking homeownership, 

rehabilitation, or rental opportunities. 

SP-40 Institutional Delivery Structure - 91.415, 91.215(k) 

Explain the institutional structure through which the jurisdiction will carry out its consolidated plan 

including private industry, non-profit organizations, and public institutions. 

Responsible Entity Responsible Entity 
Type 

Role Geographic Area 
Served 

PROSPERITY 

UNLIMITED, INC. 

CHDO Ownership 

Rental 

Other 

SALISBURY 

COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT 

CORPORATION 

CHDO Ownership 

Rental 

Other 

Concord Government Ownership 

Rental 

Jurisdiction 

HABITAT FOR 

HUMANITY CABARRUS 

COUNTY 

Non-profit 

organizations 

Homelessness 

Ownership 

Rental 

Jurisdiction 

Concord Housing 

Authority 

PHA Ownership 

Public Housing 

Rental 

Jurisdiction 

Table 49 - Institutional Delivery Structure 

 

Assess of Strengths and Gaps in the Institutional Delivery System 

The delivery structure for CDBG and HOME services within the City of Concord are developing as 

planned. Staff has cultivated many programs through sub-recipient dollars and partnerships with non-

profits. We have also increased our partnerships with other institutional organizations and government 

agencies throughout the years 

 

 

115



 

  Consolidated Plan Concord     70 

 

Availability of services targeted to homeless persons and persons with HIV and mainstream 

services 

Homelessness Prevention 
Services 

Available in the 
Community 

Targeted to 
Homeless 

Targeted to People 
with HIV 

Homelessness Prevention Services 

Counseling/Advocacy X X   

Legal Assistance X  X X  

Mortgage Assistance X     

Rental Assistance X X    

Utilities Assistance X     

Street Outreach Services 

Law Enforcement X X     

Mobile Clinics X   X 

Other Street Outreach Services   X     

Supportive Services 

Alcohol & Drug Abuse X X      

Child Care X X      

Education X X      

Employment and Employment 

Training X X      

Healthcare X   X    

HIV/AIDS X    X 

Life Skills X   X X   

Mental Health Counseling X X    

Transportation X X   X   

Other 

Transitional Housing 

Opportunities X X    

Table 50 - Homeless Prevention Services Summary 

 

Describe how the service delivery system including, but not limited to, the services listed 

above meet the needs of homeless persons (particularly chronically homeless individuals and 

families, families with children, veterans and their families, and unaccompanied youth) 

Services to the homeless populations, including families with children, are generally coordinated 

through the Piedmont Regional CoC, Salvation Army, Opportunity House, Rowan Helping Ministries, and 

Cooperative Christian Ministries (CCM).  Services for homeless veterans are provided by VA Medical 

Center to address their medical needs and the local housing authorities assist with their housing 

needs.  Services for unaccompanied youth are coordinated through CCM and the Samaritan House 

116



 

  Consolidated Plan Concord     71 

 

Shelter.  Services to persons with HIV are generally coordinated through the respective County Health 

Departments. 

Service delivery is usually coordinated through the Piedmont Regional CoC where families and 

individuals are matched with agencies or organizations to provide services, programs, and opportunities 

to assist individuals 

Describe the strengths and gaps of the service delivery system for special needs population 

and persons experiencing homelessness, including, but not limited to, the services listed 

above 

There are agencies that provide domestic violence programs, substance abuse programs, education 

programs, and health services programs. Furthermore, the emergency shelter and transitional housing 

inventory is good. However, where gaps do exist, it is primarily due to a lack of funding and in very 

limited cases, non-profit capacity 

Provide a summary of the strategy for overcoming gaps in the institutional structure and 

service delivery system for carrying out a strategy to address priority needs 

As stated above, one of our community’s largest gaps is the capacity of our service providers. Our 

responsibility as the PJ is to try to help build this capacity. We will continue to provide resources to 

existing service providers in an effort to address capacity concerns. We will also partner with all capable 

and effective agencies that provide the public service programs for low-mod communities. 

117



 

  Consolidated Plan Concord     72 

 

SP-45 Goals - 91.415, 91.215(a)(4) 

Goals Summary Information  

Sort 
Order 

Goal Name Start 
Year 

End 
Year 

Category Geographic 
Area 

Needs 
Addressed 

Funding Goal Outcome 
Indicator 

1 Creation of 

decent 

affordable 

housing 

2020 2025 Affordable 

Housing 

Public 

Housing 

Concord 

HOME 

Consortium 

Service 

Area 

Preserve and 

increase 

affordable 

housing 

Produce 

affordable 

housing 

Reduce 

substandard 

housing and 

blight 

Scattered site 

rehabilitation 

Support 

Public Service 

non-profits 

CDBG: 

$354,508 

HOME: 

$177,750 

Rental units 

constructed: 

10 Household 

Housing Unit 

  

Homeowner 

Housing Added: 

12 Household 

Housing Unit 

  

Homeowner 

Housing 

Rehabilitated: 

25 Household 

Housing Unit 

  

Direct Financial 

Assistance to 

Homebuyers: 

30 Households 

Assisted 

118



 

  Consolidated Plan Concord     73 

 

Sort 
Order 

Goal Name Start 
Year 

End 
Year 

Category Geographic 
Area 

Needs 
Addressed 

Funding Goal Outcome 
Indicator 

2 Economic 

Development 

Opportunities 

for low to 

mod 

2020 2025 Non-Housing 

Community 

Development 

Concord 

HOME 

Consortium 

Service 

Area 

Improve 

public 

infrastructure 

Increase 

economic 

opportunities 

CDBG: 

$326,032 

Public Facility or 

Infrastructure 

Activities other 

than 

Low/Moderate 

Income Housing 

Benefit: 

Persons Assisted 

  

Jobs 

created/retained: 

Jobs 

  

Businesses 

assisted: 

Businesses 

Assisted 

3 Provide 

resources to 

special needs 

population 

2015 2020 Homeless 

Non-

Homeless 

Special 

Needs 

Concord 

HOME 

Consortium 

Service 

Area 

Support 

Public Service 

non-profits 

Up to 

15% of 

allocation  

  

Table 51 – Goals Summary 

 

Goal Descriptions 

 

1 Goal Name Creation of decent affordable housing 

Goal 

Description 

Reduce substandard housing and blight, Preserve and increase affordable 

housing, Scattered Site Rehabilitation, produce affordable housing, Maintain 

housing for special needs population 

2 Goal Name Economic Development Opportunities for low to mod 

Goal 

Description 

Improve public infrastructure, Increase economic opportunities with job training 

and placement, work with Chamber of Commerce, County Economic Development 

and Downtown Development 

119



 

  Consolidated Plan Concord     74 

 

3 Goal Name Provide resources to special needs population 

Goal 

Description 

Provide financial support to local public service agencies that assist with the 

health and wellness programs, substance abuse, food for the needy, shelter for 

homeless and afterschool programs 

 

Estimate the number of extremely low-income, low-income, and moderate-income families 

to whom the jurisdiction will provide affordable housing as defined by HOME 91.315(b)(2) 

The City of Concord as well as the HOME Consortium will do its best to serve all the very low, low, and 

moderate-income families within the HOME Consortium Service Area (s). We will continue to focus our 

services and resources within our low to moderate income neighborhoods. SP-50 Public Housing 

Accessibility and Involvement - 91.415, 91.215(c) 

Need to Increase the Number of Accessible Units (if Required by a Section 504 Voluntary 

Compliance Agreement)  

The Concord Housing Department has a gap in the number of available units and the number of 

applicants on the waiting list. 

Activities to Increase Resident Involvements 

The Concord Housing Department already provides several avenues for resident involvement. They 

would like to continue and increase some of these programs. For example, they provide residents with 

(1) neighborhood networking opportunities (2) Home-ownership counseling, and (3) classes to self-

sufficiency. 

Is the public housing agency designated as troubled under 24 CFR part 902? 

No 

Plan to remove the ‘troubled’ designation  

The Concord Housing Department does not have the “troubled” designation 

 

 

120



 

  Consolidated Plan Concord     75 

 

SP-55 Strategic Plan Barriers to Affordable Housing - 91.415, 91.215(h) 

Barriers to Affordable Housing 

There are many complex factors which prevent low- and moderate-income households from obtaining 

affordable housing.  Many of these factors are influenced by elements which are beyond the control of 

government.  These factors include, economic conditions, interest rates, wage levels and home purchase 

prices and rental rates.  In addition, there are low- and moderate-income residents that have the ability 

to afford a mortgage payment, but they can secure a mortgage because they lack sufficient capital for 

the down payment and closing costs.  Misinformation, financial mismanagement, and poor credit 

histories are also a barrier to homeownership and in many cases, is a barrier to renting. There are no 

specific public policies that have a negative effect on affordable housing and residential investment. 

Strategy to Remove or Ameliorate the Barriers to Affordable Housing 

The City of Concord, in partnership with other agencies and organizations will both implement and 

support programs that help eliminate and mitigate the barriers to affordable housing. 

• Provide and assist in the construction, rehabilitation, and planning of low to moderate income 

communities and housing. 

 

• Promote, implement, and assist with educational programs that will provide future 

opportunities for home-ownership, job options, and family stability. 

 

• Support non-profits who help those that have made bad decisions in the past, to work towards 
better opportunities. Provide and Assist in down-payment assistance programs, workforce 
development programs, and financial management programs 
 

• Partner with lending institutions to provide a wide variety of financing options for low-moderate 
income households.  

 

• Plan for at least one (1) homebuyer education workshop that will be held completely for the 

Spanish speaking population.   

121



 

  Consolidated Plan Concord     76 

 

SP-60 Homelessness Strategy - 91.415, 91.215(d) 

Describe how the jurisdiction's strategic plan goals contribute to: 

Reaching out to homeless persons (especially unsheltered persons) and assessing their 

individual needs 

The City of Concord partners with the Piedmont Regional Continuum of Care and local public service 

agencies to combat homelessness and provide assistance for the creation of a seamless continuum of 

housing and support services. It is the ultimate goal to provide services and housing to all homeless and 

subpopulations of homeless in the city and county. However, as the system stands today, there are 

multiple agencies and coalitions working on this issue. Over the course of the next five (5) years, the city 

and its partners must strengthen the coordination of homeless prevention activities by taking a 

comprehensive approach to the issue. This is not a housing issue, nor is it a support service issue. We 

must begin to treat homelessness as a community development activity - meaning workforce 

development, job creation, support services, and housing all combined. 

 There will continue to be Point-in-Time surveys conducted to identify both sheltered and unsheltered 

persons. Through these surveys, the COC and partners will implement strategies that will: 

• Identify the chronically homeless persons within the City of Concord and HOME Consortium 

Service Area (s) 

• Create programs that prevent homelessness prior to it occurring 
 

• Provide supportive and transitional housing for those in need 

Addressing the emergency and transitional housing needs of homeless persons 

The City will continue to provide funding to support shelter operations. In addition, the City is working 

with the local homeless shelter to identify a more suitable location that will help to enhance the delivery 

of services to homeless persons.   The City will collaborate with organizations seeking to provide 

transitional and rapid housing for homeless persons 

Helping homeless persons (especially chronically homeless individuals and families, families 

with children, veterans and their families, and unaccompanied youth) make the transition to 

permanent housing and independent living, including shortening the period of time that 

individuals and families experience homelessness, facilitating access for homeless individuals 

and families to affordable housing units, and preventing individuals and families who were 

recently homeless from becoming homeless again. 

122



 

  Consolidated Plan Concord     77 

 

The Piedmont Regional CoC and CCM has built in timelines that will facilitate families’ movement 

through the system if resources are available. Their housing staff identifies affordable housing units in 

the community, provide tenant education and helps to mediate potential landlord issues for customers. 

For veterans, the CCM and Samaritan House Shelter program provides rehousing for veterans and their 

families who may be in the emergency shelter as well as prevention services to help stabilize veterans in 

their existing housing. There are limited Permanent supportive housing resources in our community for 

persons with disabilities. Also, CCM’s program serves the Unaccompanied Youth demographic. 

Opportunity house provides a day shelter, but they often refer families or individuals to other service 

providers. 

Help low-income individuals and families avoid becoming homeless, especially extremely 

low-income individuals and families who are likely to become homeless after being 

discharged from a publicly funded institution or system of care, or who are receiving 

assistance from public and private agencies that address housing, health, social services, 

employment, education or youth needs 

The cause, nature and full extent of the homeless problem in the HOME Consortium Service Area is both 

varied and complex. With the different homeless populations described here and the level of services 

offered as they relate to the Piedmont Regional Continuum of Care initiative, it is obvious that there is 

no single cause of homelessness. 

 As stated above, there are several programs and a team to implement the Ten (10) Year Plan to end 

Chronic Homelessness. One (1) strategy in the plan is to move families and individuals into both 

transitional and permanent supportive housing. The City will assist the Piedmont Regional CoC, Concord 

Housing Department, and CCM with such programs.  

SP-65 Lead-based Paint Hazards - 91.415, 91.215(i) 

Actions to address LBP hazards and increase access to housing without LBP hazards 

HUD required that all residential properties built before 1978 receiving federal funds are tested for lead 

based paint and the any lead hazards discovered are to be addressed. At this time the City of Concord 

only provides assistance to owner occupied housing and housing provided by non-profits and CHDOs. 

The Consortium understands the danger of lead-based paint and asbestos. The discovery of asbestos or 

lead based paint in a dwelling unit may require encapsulation or removal prior to demolition.   All CDBG 

and HOME-assisted rehabilitation projects are carried out in compliance with HUD’s lead-based paint 

hazard regulations, which require complete abatement of the lead-based paint hazard when CDBG or 

HOME funds are used for substantial rehabilitation. On smaller projects, lead-safe work practices and 

clearance testing are performed as required by HUD regulations. 

How are the actions listed above related to the extent of lead poisoning and hazards? 

123



 

  Consolidated Plan Concord     78 

 

Based on housing stock information provided in the 2011 Census for the HOME Consortium Service Area 

there are 50,670 housing units built before 1978. The HOME Consortium Service Area has a low rate of 

lead poisoning and the actions outlined above are designed to minimize the risk of exposure to lead 

paint hazards. 

How are the actions listed above integrated into housing policies and procedures? 

Since Jan 1, 2010, NC State law states that any renovation, repair, and painting performed for 

compensation that disturbs painted surfaces on a house built before 1978 requires that the firm 

completing the work be a certified Renovation, Repair and Painting (RRP) firm.  A certified firm is a 

company, partnership, corporation, sole proprietorship, association, or other business entity doing 

business in the State has been certified by the Department of Health and Human Services, Health Hazard 

Control Unit.  The certified firm has a Certified Renovator that has taken the initial 8-hour training 

course for lead safe work practices and is either performing the work or directs trained workers to 

perform renovation activities.   

Lead Abatement firms are licensed to carry out abatement activities.  These firms are typically hired by 

Contractors to remove lead hazards within the structure and have been trained in the proper set-up, 

removal and disposal of lead hazards, and clean up.  They have a different certification than RRP 

certified firms and a different insurance requirement. 

So, all of the Contractors that are sent bids for housing renovations on pre-1978 houses should be RRP 

certified or at least in the process of getting that certification.   

SP-70 Anti-Poverty Strategy - 91.415, 91.215(j) 

Jurisdiction Goals, Programs and Policies for reducing the number of Poverty-Level Families 

The City of Concord's housing programs were created to address poverty and the lack of resources 

through providing housing opportunities for low-income households. Without these housing 

opportunities many low-income households would not be able to afford housing rehabilitation costs, 

renting, or purchasing a home. 

 During the next five years the City will continue to support non-profit organizations and programs that 

provide emergency shelter, affordable housing, and other supportive services designed to assist this 

population achieve economic independence. In addition, the City will continue to encourage economic 

development in low and moderate income areas to remove slum and blight conditions; rehabilitate 

substandard existing single-family homes; rehabilitate or provide new affordable rental housing units; 

improve public facilities and public infrastructure; offer down payment assistance toward the purchase 

of a home; support programs for the homeless. 

How are the Jurisdiction poverty reducing goals, programs, and policies coordinated with this 

affordable housing plan? 

124



 

  Consolidated Plan Concord     79 

 

By providing financial assistance to homebuyers, the Down Payment Assistance program assists low 

income households transition from renters to homeowners and helps them build equity in their own 

home.  This program also supports anti-poverty as construction of new homes also provides 

employment opportunities.  Assisting low income households with repairs to their home also increases 

home values.  Funding non-profit organizations also ensures that comprehensive services such as 

transportation, employment, housing services, emergency services, and other needs are met 

125



 

  Consolidated Plan Concord     80 

 

 
 

 

126



 

  Consolidated Plan Concord     81 

 

Expected Resources 

AP-15 Expected Resources - 91.420(b), 91.220(c)(1,2) 

Introduction 

The City of Concord is the lead entity of the Cabarrus/Iredell/Rowan HOME Consortium.  The City also receives 

annual allocations of funding for Housing and Community Development activities under the Community 

Development Block Grant Program (CDBG).    

It is anticipated that Concord will have a total of $680,540 in CDBG entitlement funds and approximately $2,000 

in program income for a total of $682,540 to carry out the activities included in this first-year action plan.  The 

anticipated allocation total of $1,304,995, estimated program income of $131,006, and $0 in cash match 

contributions will total $1,436,001 in funding for HOME activities for the HOME Consortium in the first year of 

the plan. The City of Concord will utilize approximately $391,194 in HOME funding for HOME activities. The total 

includes: HOME allocation of $177,750, estimated program income of $131,006, local match of $0, and $82,438 

in program administration. 

Anticipated Resources 

Program Source 
of 

Funds 

Uses of Funds Expected Amount Available Year 1 Expected 
Amount 

Available 
Remainder 
of ConPlan  

$ 

Narrative 
Description Annual 

Allocation: 
$ 

Program 
Income: 

$ 

Prior Year 
Resources: 

$ 

Total: 
$ 

CDBG public - 

federal 

Acquisition 

Admin and 

Planning 

Economic 

Development 

Housing 

Public 

Improvements 

Public Services 680,540 2,000 0 682,540 0 

   

127



 

  Consolidated Plan Concord     82 

 

Program Source 
of 

Funds 

Uses of Funds Expected Amount Available Year 1 Expected 
Amount 

Available 
Remainder 
of ConPlan  

$ 

Narrative 
Description Annual 

Allocation: 
$ 

Program 
Income: 

$ 

Prior Year 
Resources: 

$ 

Total: 
$ 

HOME public - 

federal 

Acquisition 

Homebuyer 

assistance 

Homeowner 

rehab 

Multifamily 

rental new 

construction 

Multifamily 

rental rehab 

New 

construction 

for ownership 

TBRA 177,750 131,006 0 308,006 0 

   

Table 52 - Expected Resources – Priority Table 

 
Explain how federal funds will leverage those additional resources (private, state and local funds), 

including a description of how matching requirements will be satisfied 

Staff intends on leveraging the U.S. Housing and Urban Development Funds when and where projects prove 

themselves to be feasible.  

If appropriate, describe publicly owned land or property located within the jurisdiction that may be 

used to address the needs identified in the plan 

Over the past five (5) years staff has strategically invested in properties within our target/focus areas. These 

properties are slated to address the affordable housing needs for those seeking homeownership, rehabilitation, 

and rental.      

 

 

 

 

128



 

  Consolidated Plan Concord     83 

 

Annual Goals and Objectives 

AP-20 Annual Goals and Objectives - 91.420, 91.220(c)(3)&(e) 

Goals Summary Information  

Sort 
Order 

Goal Name Start 
Year 

End 
Year 

Category Geographic 
Area 

Needs 
Addressed 

Funding Goal Outcome Indicator 

1 Creation of 

decent 

affordable 

housing 

2020 2025 Affordable 

Housing 

Public 

Housing 

Concord 

HOME 

Consortium 

Service 

Area 

Elimination of 

environmental 

hazards 

Preserve and 

increase 

affordable 

housing 

Produce 

affordable 

housing 

Reduce 

substandard 

housing and 

blight 

Scattered site 

rehabilitation 

CDBG: 

$680,540 

HOME: 

$200,016 

Homeowner Housing 

Added: 12 Household 

Housing Unit 

Homeowner Housing 

Rehabilitated: 12 

Household Housing 

Unit 

3 Provide 

resources 

to special 

needs 

population 

2015 2020 Homeless 

Non-

Homeless 

Special 

Needs 

Concord 

HOME 

Consortium 

Service 

Area 

Support Public 

Service non-

profits 

CDBG: 

$38,500 

Overnight/Emergency 

Shelter/Transitional 

Housing Beds added: 2 

Beds 

Table 53 – Goals Summary 

 

129



 

  Consolidated Plan Concord     84 

 

AP-35 Projects - 91.420, 91.220(d) 

Introduction  

The City of Concord has established the following two (2) categories of strategies for meeting the needs of the 

underserved in the community. These categories are Housing Strategies and Community Development 

Strategies. Each category has several projects associated with them. The Housing Strategy projects include down 

payment assistance, development of affordable housing, and partnerships. The Community Development 

Strategy projects include revitalization, leveraging multi-family development, infrastructure improvements, and 

creating economic development opportunities. 

Describe the reasons for allocation priorities and any obstacles to addressing underserved needs 

Over the years, the City of Concord has been dedicated to assisting low-moderate income families and 

individuals. The City's programs are created to help overcome the barriers to affordable housing. Over the next 

five (5) years, city staff will implement a strategy that comprehensively breaks down the barriers that many low-

moderate families and individuals face. 

AP-50 Geographic Distribution - 91.420, 91.220(f) 

Description of the geographic areas of the entitlement (including areas of low-income and minority 

concentration) where assistance will be directed  

Program activities carried out by the City of Concord and the HOME Consortium will occur in Cabarrus, Rowan, 

and Iredell County. However, over the past ten (10) years the City has focused the vast majority of its 

Community Development resources within older inner-city neighborhoods-Logan, Gibson Mill, Silver Hill, 

Underwood Park, Sidestown-Shankletown, and Brown Mill. 

The City considers these neighborhoods our primary target area. We have focused housing, public service, code 

enforcement, and economic development activities in this area over the past ten (10) years. 

 According to the 2018 ACS, a majority of the populations within these neighborhoods are minority. However, 

the city supports all low-moderate income families and individuals. Our programs and marketing incorporate the 

entire city. 

Rationale for the priorities for allocating investments geographically  

First, these lower wealth neighborhoods were identified as underserved when looking at community economic 

development needs. We also determined that there was a lack of positive investment that hampered 

revitalization efforts. Our initial investment in underserved communities will hopefully serve as a catalyst for 

additional investment in lower wealth communities. 

Finally, our community has the ability to turn a negative into a positive in this area. We have the ability to 

130



 

  Consolidated Plan Concord     85 

 

leverage funding from both private and public agencies in this area due to the amount of poverty. This means 

that the city can "stretch" its dollars even more in this area. In an economic downturn, cities are forced to look 

for additional funding. To the greatest extent feasible, funding will be targeted in these geographic 

areas.  However, in order to ensure the timely expenditure of funds, activities will continue to be funded on a 

first-come first-served basis.   

 

 

 

 

  

131



 

  Consolidated Plan Concord     86 

 

Affordable Housing 

AP-55 Affordable Housing - 91.420, 91.220(g) 

Introduction 

In an attempt to address the barriers to developing affordable housing, the City of Concord will continue to 

create single-family affordable housing opportunities. Moreover, we will continue to try and leverage additional 

dollars for multi-family affordable housing. Properties are currently owned or acquired by the City. Upon 

acquisition and installation of infrastructure, the City then makes lots available to build by the City or non-profit 

agencies for development. All non-profit proposals are accepted based on a reasonable price per square foot 

and the non-profits or private developer's ability to meet building specifications as required by the Request for 

Proposal. Purchase of land and improvements increase the affordability of the lot or units, which in turn drives 

the cost down for the potential tenant. As lots or units are sold, leased, or rented - a portion of the funds may be 

recaptured to fund future developments.   

AP-60 Public Housing - 91.420, 91.220(h) 

Introduction 

Families below 30 percent of AMI are traditionally served by Public Housing. The Concord Housing Department 

owns and operates 174 units of public housing. These units are spread out amongst eight (8) locations within the 

city limits. The CHD has control over 715 Housing Choice Vouchers at this time. There are 73 units of Elderly 

Section 8 vouchers.  

The CHD has reported that there is a waiting list of 672 families at or below 30 % of Area Median Income, with 

an annual turnover rate of about 15 %. Furthermore, there are 602 families at or below 30 percent on the 

waiting list for Section 8 assistance. CHD has not taken Section 8 applications for the past five years (5). They are 

currently at 90% of Fair Market rent to help ensure that they can help as many families as possible. 

Actions planned during the next year to address the needs to public housing 

• Produce new affordable units 

• Maintain current units 

• Provide grants for resident self-sufficiency 

• Establish program for residents to pursue homeownership opportunities 

• Make improvements to energy saving items 

Actions to encourage public housing residents to become more involved in management and 

participate in homeownership 

The City of Concord and the Concord Housing Department have worked together over the past five (5) years. 

132



 

  Consolidated Plan Concord     87 

 

During this time, we have worked with the Concord Housing Department staff to provide affordable housing 

options to public housing residents that are preparing for homeownership. The City anticipates this partnership 

continuing to provide housing options as well as the city's down payment assistance (gap funding) program 

toward homeownership. 

If the PHA is designated as troubled, describe the manner in which financial assistance will be 

provided or other assistance  

The Concord Housing Department is not a "troubled agency." 

AP-65 Homeless and Other Special Needs Activities - 91.420, 91.220(i) 

Introduction 

This section provides an overview of the programs that will be funded in FY20-21 that address the needs of the 

homeless and those with special needs. Services for homeless individuals and families and persons with 

special needs will continue to be provided through a network of collaborative partnerships with local non-profit 

organizations.  During the FY20-21 fiscal year the City will allocate $38,500 in CDBG funding to support public 

service activities, including those that serve homeless persons.   

The City of Concord, in conjunction with the Piedmont Regional CoC, Concord Housing Department, and 

subrecipients, will provide programs to both reduce and end homelessness. These goals may include, but are 

not limited to (1) providing funding for homeless essential services to include outreach and counseling, and (2) 

providing funding for facilities for the homeless. 

Describe the jurisdictions one-year goals and actions for reducing and ending homelessness 

including: 

Reaching out to homeless persons (especially unsheltered persons) and assessing their individual 

needs 

The City of Concord is committed to the continuance of support for the Piedmont Regional committee 

Continuum of Care, partnerships with Opportunity House (day shelter/education), Cooperative Christian 

Ministries and The Salvation Army through programs and services that reduce and eliminate homelessness. 

Addressing the emergency shelter and transitional housing needs of homeless persons 

The City of Concord is committed to the continuance of support for the regional homeless shelter managed by 

the Cooperative Christian Ministries. Furthermore, the City is committed to providing resources and assistance 

to mitigating homelessness before it happens through programs and services that reduce and eliminate

133



 

  Consolidated Plan Concord     88 

 

homelessness. 

Helping homeless persons (especially chronically homeless individuals and families, families with 

children, veterans and their families, and unaccompanied youth) make the transition to permanent 

housing and independent living, including shortening the period of time that individuals and families 

experience homelessness, facilitating access for homeless individuals and families to affordable 

housing units, and preventing individuals and families who were recently homeless from becoming 

homeless again 

The concept of transitional housing has a long history in the fields of mental health and corrections, predating its 

application to the homeless arena by decades. State and local public mental health and corrections departments 

developed these residential programs to ease the transition back into regular housing for people leaving mental 

hospitals or prisons.  

Today transitional housing has many other users. These users range from the mentally disabled, to homeless, 

and to those on the brink of becoming homeless. In the HOME Consortium Service Area, the typical individual or 

family that stays in transitional housing usually has demonstrated an inability to sustain housing. They have 

either defaulted on their lease, been evicted from their homes, and/or have a poor credit history.  

The City of Concord will not differentiate between the already homeless and those individuals and families who 

are on the brink of becoming homeless. CDBG funds have been allocated for Public Service activities.  Nonprofit 

organizations will be provided an opportunity to apply for public service funding to assist with shelter operations 

and delivery of services to the homeless population 

Helping low-income individuals and families avoid becoming homeless, especially extremely low-

income individuals and families and those who are: being discharged from publicly funded 

institutions and systems of care (such as health care facilities, mental health facilities, foster care 

and other youth facilities, and corrections programs and institutions); or, receiving assistance from 

public or private agencies that address housing, health, social services, employment, education, or 

youth needs. 

Although the City does not receive ESG assistance, Concord remains committed to assisting partners such as the 

Cooperative Christian Ministries and other local public service agencies. As mentioned above, the City will make 

$38,500 in CDBG funds available to assist with public service activities, including those that meet the needs of 

homeless persons.  In addition, a number of the organizations participating in the CoC provide case 

management services.  Case management focuses on identifying resources within the community and making 

the necessary referrals to ensure the direct assistance is provided to minimize the risk for homelessness.  There 

are ongoing case management services provided through organizations such as Piedmont Regional CoC Care, 

CCM, Salvation Army, and Rowan Helping Ministries, and the County (Cabarrus, Rowan, and Iredell) Department 

134



 

  Consolidated Plan Concord     89 

 

of Social Services.   

AP-75 Barriers to affordable housing - 91.420, 91.220(j) 

Introduction 

The City of Concord has identified several barriers that impede efforts to develop affordable housing or that 

make decent, safe, and sanitary housing unobtainable by lower income families in Concord and the HOME 

Consortium Service Area. Financial barriers to affordable housing exist for both homeowners and renters. Many 

low and moderate-income families do not have the funds needed for down payment and closing costs for the 

purchase of a home. The aforementioned barrier coupled with poor credit histories does not make acquiring a 

home easy.  

Many low and moderate-income households lack the homeownership education and job skills necessary to 

obtain adequate housing. In addition, first-time homebuyers may not fully understand the home buying and 

lending process, making them less willing or ready to enter into homeownership. For lower income renters, a 

lack of understanding concerning the laws and requirements of landlords and the rights to tenants can further 

act as a barrier. 

Each HOME PJ must adopt affirmative marketing procedures and requirements for any housing with five or 

more HOME-assisted units. Affirmative marketing differs from general marketing activities because it specifically 

targets potential tenants and homebuyers who are least likely to apply for the housing, in order to make them 

aware of available affordable housing opportunities. 

The City of Concord and HOME Consortium members understands that we have population that is in a greater 

disproportionate need. The Hispanic population is not only a growing population across the nation, but also in 

the HOME Consortium Service Area. The City has created informational brochures and affordable housing 

brochures in Spanish. We are also working on having all Community Development documents translated in 

Spanish. We are encouraging agencies to present the entire home education workshops in Spanish. 

Actions it planned to remove or ameliorate the negative effects of public policies that serve as 

barriers to affordable housing such as land use controls, tax policies affecting land, zoning 

ordinances, building codes, fees and charges, growth limitations, and policies affecting the return on 

residential investment 

In an attempt to address the barriers to developing affordable housing, the City of Concord continues to create 

affordable housing. The land for the affordable housing development is purchased by the City with funding from 

approved public funds. Upon acquisition and installation of infrastructure, the City then makes lots available for 

development. All submitted proposals are accepted based on a reasonable price per square foot and the 

contractor's ability to meet building specifications as required by the Request for Proposal. The purchase of the 

land and installation of the infrastructure improvements increases the affordability of the lots, while reducing 

the cost to the homebuyer. As lots are sold to eligible homebuyers, the lot cost is recaptured and used to fund 

135



 

  Consolidated Plan Concord     90 

 

future developments. 

The HOME Consortium Service Area has many low-income residents that have the ability to afford a mortgage 

payment, but are unable to obtain the goal of homeownership because they cannot save sufficient funds to 

cover the down payment and closing costs, or they have credit issues that prevent them from obtaining loan 

approval. We will continue to partner with local non-profit agencies to provide homeownership counseling and 

workshops for potential homebuyers.  The City also recognizes the need for additional affordable rental units for 

low income households and special needs populations.   The City will continue its support of local housing 

initiatives by ensuring that diverse and affordable housing options are available.  The City will also continue to 

partner with non-profit organizations and for-profit developers. 

AP-85 Other Actions - 91.420, 91.220(k) 

Introduction 

Continue to provide low to moderate income home owners with a rehabilitation program that ensures that 

their homes are energy efficient, that they are suitable living environments, and remain affordable. 

• Complete twenty (20) overall home owner and elderly rehabilitations each year in the 2020 – 2024 

Consolidated Plan. 

• Provide Public Service funding to a variety of agencies. 

• Reduce blight and dilapidated housing via acquisition and demolition. 

• Provide urgent repairs to owner occupied homes when feasible. 

• Look at partnering with the private sector, non-profits, and public sector agencies to produce more 

affordable housing units. 

• Continuing the partnership (when feasible) with Habitat and Cabarrus County to better meet the rehab 

needs of residents. 

• Invest in new multi-family units when possible - by providing gap funding. 

• Continue to cultivate and build training capacity for CHDO’s to build single-family homes for both 

renters and home buyers. 

• Continue efforts to support the special needs population with both permanent and transitional housing. 

• Continue partnering with the Continuum of Care. 

• Continue partnering with the 10-year project to end homelessness. 

Actions planned to address obstacles to meeting underserved needs 

Continue to provide low to moderate income home owners with a rehabilitation program that ensures that 

their homes are energy efficient, that they are suitable living environments, and remain affordable. 

• Complete fifteen (15) overall home owner and elderly rehabilitations each year in the 2020 – 2024 

136



 

  Consolidated Plan Concord     91 

 

Consolidated Plan. 

• Provide Public Service funding to a variety of agencies. 

• Reduce blight and dilapidated housing via acquisition and demolition. 

• Enhance partnerships with service providers as well as leverage local City funds. 

• Provide urgent repairs to owner occupied homes when feasible. 

• Look at partnering with the private sector, non-profits, and public sector agencies to produce more 

affordable housing units. 

• Invest in new multi-family units when possible - by providing gap funding. 

• Continue to cultivate and build training capacity for CHDO’s to build single-family homes for both 

renters and home buyers. 

• Continue efforts to support the special needs population with both permanent and transitional housing. 

• Continue partnering with the Continuum of Care. 

• Continue partnering with the 10-year project to end homelessness. 

Actions planned to foster and maintain affordable housing 

The City of Concord intends to take the following actions to foster and maintain affordable housing: 

1.        Increase homeownership opportunities under programs that maximize HOME resources by providing 

funding for down payment assistance for first-time homebuyers and referring prospective homeowners to 

homeownership educational workshops. 

2.        Sustain housing for existing homeowners by providing both CDBG and HOME funds for owner-occupied 

rehabilitation. 

3.        Increase homeownership opportunities under programs that maximize HOME and partnership with non-

profit developers. 

4.        Provide funding for the acquisition of blighted, deteriorated, and dilapidated rental structures for 

rehabilitation or demolition. 

5.        Provide HOME funding for multi-family homeownership and rental purchase/new construction. 

6.        Help broker information and refer residents to the necessary resources to help residents seek economic 

opportunities through youth development programs, job training programs, housing education programs, and 

personal budget classes. 

Actions planned to reduce lead-based paint hazards 

Over the next year the Local County Health Departments will continue its efforts to monitor the health and 

safety risks created by lead-based paint.  The Health Department will continue to administer the Lead Poisoning 

Prevention Program.   The Lead Poisoning Prevention Program is targeted to children birth to 6 years of age and 

137



 

  Consolidated Plan Concord     92 

 

provides screening for elevated blood lead.  The program also educates parents on how to prevent lead 

poisoning in their child. Older children are screened if lead poisoning is found in younger siblings or close 

contacts.  There are no charges for lab services/consultation for this service at the respective County Health 

Departments. In addition, through the Residential Rehabilitation program, the City will continue to conduct lead 

testing on homes constructed before 1978. If lead-based paint is found, and if economically feasible, the lead 

will be removed or encapsulated.  All contractors must have the proper lead certifications.  Lead based paint 

brochures are also provided to applicants applying for rehabilitation assistance. 

Actions planned to reduce the number of poverty-level families 

Concord housing programs inherently address poverty by creating housing opportunities for low income 

households. Without these housing opportunities many low-income households would not be able to afford 

housing rehabilitation costs or to purchase a home. Furthermore, funding through the CDBG Public Service line 

item allows transitional housing providers such as the Cooperative Christian Ministries to assist those families 

and individuals who normally reside in impoverished conditions. They are able to do so through job training and 

educational programs. The strategy is to find suitable employment for people, thus reducing the number of 

those in poverty. 

Actions planned to develop institutional structure  

The City of Concord will continue to provide program delivery services through the process established for 

administering the HOME and CDBG federal funds. Nonprofit agencies are helpful to the City of Concord's 

institutional structure. Agencies such as: Habitat for Humanity, Concord Housing Department, Concord Family 

Enrichment Association, Piedmont Regional CoC, Cooperative Christian Ministries, Salvation Army, and United 

Way are only some of the valuable non-profits that the City relies on within its delivery structure.  

There are several city departments/divisions that assist in carrying out the Community Development’s Housing 

activities. These include, but are not limited to the Planning and Neighborhood Development Department, 

Engineering Division, and the GIS Department. Cabarrus County government is also a partner in the city’s 

community development activity. They assist with the Continuum of Care and the Homeless programs.  

The Planning and Neighborhood Development Department has primarily worked with three (3) CHDO’s through 

the HOME Consortium over the past five (5) years, but staff intends on pursuing other non-profits to serve as 

additional resources in housing delivery. Staff also works with a variety of sub-recipients who utilize the Public 

Service dollars. These non-profits provide programs that assist with education, crisis assistance, workforce 

development, domestic violence treatment, and small business counseling.  

Staff also anticipates that we will be partnering with private industry over the next five (5) years. We understand 

that in order to continue our level of service amidst the current economic conditions – partnerships are 

paramount 

138



 

  Consolidated Plan Concord     93 

 

Actions planned to enhance coordination between public and private housing and social service 

agencies 

During the next year, we will continue to collaborate with the local organizations in an effort to stay abreast of 

emerging issues and trends.  We intend to continue attending meetings and to actively serve on many of the 

housing and human services committees.  This will allow the City to provide a broad-based community 

development plan with constant updates of goals and objectives.   

 

 

  

139



 

  Consolidated Plan Concord     94 

 

Program Specific Requirements 

AP-90 Program Specific Requirements - 91.420, 91.220(l)(1,2,4) 

Introduction 

Community Development Block Grant Program (CDBG)  
 

Reference 24 CFR 91.220(l)(1)  
Projects planned with all CDBG funds expected to be available during the year are identified in the Projects 
Table. The following identifies program income that is available for use that is included in projects to be carried 
out.  
 

 
1. The total amount of program income that will have been received before the start of the next 

program year and that has not yet been reprogrammed 16,000 

2. The amount of proceeds from section 108 loan guarantees that will be used during the year to 

address the priority needs and specific objectives identified in the grantee's strategic plan. 0 

3. The amount of surplus funds from urban renewal settlements 0 

4. The amount of any grant funds returned to the line of credit for which the planned use has not 

been included in a prior statement or plan 0 

5. The amount of income from float-funded activities 0 

Total Program Income: 16,000 

 

Other CDBG Requirements  
 
1. The amount of urgent need activities 25,000 

  
2. The estimated percentage of CDBG funds that will be used for activities that benefit 

persons of low and moderate income.  Overall Benefit - A consecutive period of one, two 

or three years may be used to determine that a minimum overall benefit of 70% of CDBG 

funds is used to benefit persons of low and moderate income. Specify the years covered 

that include this Annual Action Plan. 85.00% 

 
 
 

HOME Investment Partnership Program (HOME)  
Reference 24 CFR 91.220(l)(2)  

1. A description of other forms of investment being used beyond those identified in Section 92.205 is as 
follows:  

Local jurisdictions will be providing general funding investments in HOME projects and activities to help 

satisfy match requirements. The North Carolina Housing Finance Agency in partnership with eligible HOME 

140



 

  Consolidated Plan Concord     95 

 

Consortium Members will provide up to $20,000 in down payment assistance.  

 
2. A description of the guidelines that will be used for resale or recapture of HOME funds when used for 

homebuyer activities as required in 92.254, is as follows:  

In accordance with the applicable homebuyer recapture/resale provision outlined in 24 CFR Part 92.254, City 

of Concord has adopted the recapture provision.  Concord and HOME consortium members provides direct 

HOME subsidy, on a pro-rata basis, to eligible homebuyers, which includes down payment assistance and 

closing costs. The HOME Consortium provides HOME funds to its CHDO’s to develop affordable housing. 

HOME Consortium CHDO’s have adopted the HOME recapture provision. 

 All CHDO’s, sub-recipients and all entities who administer HOME programs will follow recapture provisions 

that have been adopted by the City of Concord and HOME Consortium. The City requires the recapture of its 

HOME-funded homeownership housing assistance from net sales proceeds when the original homebuyer 

sells the property during the affordability period. 

Net sales proceeds are the funds remaining from the sale of the property by the original homebuyer less the 

repayment of the outstanding balance on any superior mortgage, sales commission, the original 

homebuyer’s down payment and the cost of any property improvements made by the original homebuyer. 

To the extent that net proceeds are available at closing, all of the HOME funds are due and payable. In the 

event of foreclosure, the Lender may not require the Borrower to repay an amount greater than the net 

proceeds available after the foreclosure sale. The recapture provision is enforced through execution of a 

Declaration of Deed Restrictions, which identifies the period of affordability, primary residency requirement, 

and term and conditions required when using the recapture provision. 

Homebuyer assistance may be used for down payment assistance or closing costs Borrower’s income cannot 

exceed 80% of the area median income adjusted by family size as published annually for the Charlotte, NC 

MSA. Maximum loan amounts of up to $7,500 is available for houses purchased in Concord city limits. Loans 

will be amortized over five-year period at 0% interest. If the property is disposed voluntary, involuntary or is 

in default, the percentage for repayment is based on the actual year. 

Assistance provided to nonprofit agencies through the CDBG Program will be secured with a sub-recipient 

agreement/contract. Should the agency fail to comply with program rules, the assistance will be recaptured. 

 Recaptured HOME funds by Community Housing Development Organizations (CHDO), on behalf of the 

HOME Consortium, are not considered to be CHDO proceeds but shall be used by the CHDO’s to provide 

affordable housing in the HOME Consortium Service Area. 

Recaptured HOME funds provided by an agency other than a CHDO, will be recaptured by City of Concord to 

be used for eligible HOME activities in accordance with the requirements of the HOME statue and 

141



 

  Consolidated Plan Concord     96 

 

regulations, in the same manner as program income. 

The recapture provision will ensure that each HOME assisted unit will remain affordable for a period of time 

determined by the recapture schedule below, established in accordance with 24 CFR 92.254(a)(4): 

 
3. A description of the guidelines for resale or recapture that ensures the affordability of units acquired with 

HOME funds? See 24 CFR 92.254(a)(4) are as follows:  
 

 
4. Plans for using HOME funds to refinance existing debt secured by multifamily housing that is rehabilitated 

with HOME funds along with a description of the refinancing guidelines required that will be used under 24 
CFR 92.206(b), are as follows:  

Housing Rehabilitation Assistance will be offered to persons/families with incomes up to but not greater 

than 80% of the area median income adjusted by family size and as published annually for the Charlotte, NC 

MSA. For households with incomes less than 50% of the area median income, a 0% deferred loan will be 

offered up to 100% percent of house equity for rehabilitation assistance. For households with incomes from 

50% to 80 percent of the median area income, loans will be offered at 50% of the loan amount as a deferred 

at 0% and the other 50% of the loan amount is paid back at 2% with the term not to exceed the affordability 

period.  Deferred loans are forgiven at a rate equally distributed over the affordability period and are 

designed to satisfy at the end of the term. Recaptured HOME funds by Community Housing Development 

Organizations (CHDO), on behalf of HOME Consortium, are not considered to be CHDO proceeds but shall be 

used by the CHDO’s to provide affordable housing in the HOME Consortium Area. 

 

 
 

142



143



144



RESOLUTION OF INTENT 
 

WHEREAS, G.S. 160A-299 authorizes the City Council to close public streets and 
alleys; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council considers it advisable to conduct a public hearing for the 

purpose of giving consideration to the closure of a portion of right of way of the former alignment 
of Wilshire Ave. SW between Old Charlotte Rd. SW and the new alignment of Wilshire Ave SW.   

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council that:  

 
(1) In conjunction with the City of Concord City Council’s August meeting, the Council 

will consider a resolution on the closure of right of way of the former alignment of Wilshire Ave. 
SW the area described as follows: 
 
BEGINNING AT A REBAR FOUND ON THE EASTERN RIGHT OF WAY OF WILSHIRE DRIVE 
AS SITUATED IN THE CITY OF CONCORD, NUMBER 11 TOWNSHIP OF CABARRUS 
COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA AND BEING THE SOUTH WESTERN CORNER OF TRACT 1 
AS SHOWN ON MAP BOOK 82, PAGE 54 OF THE CABARRUS COUNTY REGISTRY; 
THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID RIGHT OF WAY WITH AN ARC TO THE LEFT HAVING A 
LENGTH OF 23.00' AND A RADIUS OF 1272.15 AND A CHORD BEARING OF S12°59'31"W 
WITH A CHORD DISTANCE OF 23.00' (C1) TO A POINT;  THENCE CONTINUING WITH AN 
ARC TO THE LEFT HAVING A LENGTH OF 397.37' AND A RADIUS OF 2000.00' WITH A 
CHORD BEARING OF S06°59'48"W AND A DISTANCE OF 396.72' (C2) TO A POINT ON THE 
WESTERN MARGIN OF WILSHIRE DRIVE RIGHT OF WAY; THENCE CONTINUING WITH 
THE WESTERN MARGIN A BEARING OF N03°10'43"W AND A DISTANCE OF 360.34' (L1) 
TO A POINT; THENCE WITH AN ARC TO THE RIGHT HAVING A LENGTH OF 47.93' AND A 
RADIUS OF 1782.16 WITH A CHORD BEARING OF N11°42'11"E CHORD DISTANCE OF 
47.93' (C3) TO A POINT; THENCE WITH AN ARC TO THE RIGHT HAVING A LENGTH OF 
24.09' AND A RADIUS OF 1332.15 WITH A CHORD BEARING OF N12°59'31"E AND A 
CHORD DISTANCE OF 24.08' (C4) TO A POINT; THENCE WITH A BEARING OF 
S76°29'24"E AND A DISTANCE OF 60.00' TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING AND 
CONTAINING 0.296 ACRE, MORE OR LESS, as shown on map titled, “Right of Way 
Abandonment Exhibit, A Portion of Wilshire Drive,” by Carolina Land Surveyors, Inc. dated June 
24, 2020, reference is made for a more complete description.  
 

(2) The City Clerk is hereby directed to publish this Resolution of Intent once a week 
for four successive weeks in The Independent Tribune or other newspaper of general circulation 
in the area. 

 
(3) The City Clerk is further directed to transmit by registered or certified mail to each 

owner of property abutting upon that portion of said street a copy of this Resolution of Intent. 
 
(4) The City Clerk is further directed to cause adequate notices of this Resolution of 

Intent and the scheduled public hearing to be posted as required by G.S. 160A-299. 
 
(5) The exact date of the hearing, whether August 11 or August 13, at 6 PM, and 

appropriate means of participation will be published with the first advertisement of the public 
hearing on July 19, 2020 in the Independent Tribune. 

 
Adopted this 9th day of July, 2020. 

 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF CONCORD 
NORTH CAROLINA 

 
___________________ 
William C. Dusch Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________ 
Kim Deason, Clerk 
 

145



 
ORD. #  

 
 AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND FY 2020-2021 BUDGET ORDINANCE 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Concord, North Carolina did on the 11th 
day of June, 2020, adopt a City budget for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020 and 
ending on June 30, 2021, as amended; and 
 

WHEREAS, it is appropriate to amend the expense/expenditures and the revenue 
accounts in the funds listed for the reason stated; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Concord 
that in accordance with the authority contained in G.S. 159-15, the following accounts are 
hereby amended as follows: 

 
 

Revenues 
Account Title Current 

Budget 
Amended 

Budget 
(Decrease) 
Increase 

680-4357000 
 

State Aid 946,454 
 

1,101,454 155,000 

     
 Total   155,000 

 
 

    
Expenses/Expenditures 

Account Title 
 Current 
Budget  

 Amended 
Budget  

 (Decrease) 
Increase  

4530-5194000 Contract services 267,378 422,378 155,000 
 Total   155,000 

   
Reason:  Professional services for Tree obstruction project.  
 

Adopted this 9th day of July, 2020. 
 

      CITY COUNCIL 
      CITY OF CONCORD 
      NORTH CAROLINA 
    
      _______________________ 
      William C. Dusch, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: _______________________ 
  Kim Deason, City Clerk 
      __________________________ 
      VaLerie Kolczynski, City Attorney 

146



 

P.O. Box 308, Concord, NC  28026 – www.concordnc.gov 

MEMO 

To: Lloyd Wm. Payne, Jr., City Manager 

From:  Cherie Jzar, Community Outreach Coordinator 

Date: June 26, 2020 

Subject: Neighborhood Matching Grant Funding Recommendation FY 2020/21 

The following is a brief description of NMG projects, which are being recommended for funding.  The 
review committee determined that these nine projects best meet the criteria for funding.  

Logan Community Association  
Food Distribution Project                  Project Amount - $6,000.00 
Request $3,000.00 to support the Neighbors Helping Neighbors in Need project. This project will 
include purchasing non-perishable food items to deliver to neighbors in need. “Our neighborhood 
has many individuals and families with socio-economic challenges’. The community has 442 
families in a neighborhood which has been designated as a food dessert. Covid-19 has added to 
the challenge of food security in the community. Neighbors volunteers will help by purchasing and 
distribute 100 bags of food for neighborhood residents in need during a drive thru pick up at a 
neighborhood park.  
   
Gibson Village  
2021 Spring Festival                                   Project Amount - $4,783.00 
Request $3,000.00 matching grant to support the artist workhops and other engagement 
activivites that will occur during the community’s 2021 Spring Festival. Area artists and arts 
organizations will participate in the festival. The festival will feature performances and workshops 
by Nouveau Sud. Nouveau Sud is known for drawing a diverse audience to their events, as they 
feature performances that appeal to a wide range of age, race, and ethnic groups. This is 
important given the diversity in our community     
 
Oak Park 
Park Improvement (New Swingsets)                Project Amount - $6,458.00  
Request $3,000.00 matching grant to support the purchase of 2 swing sets. This project will 
include Installation of two swing sets. Volunteer neighbors will help install the new swing sets and 
perform the beautification portion of the project including spreading mulch and the safety 
prerimeter.  
 
Hidden Pond  
Signage Project                              Project Amount - $2,307.00 
Request $1,273.00 in matching grant funds to support the Hidden Pond signage project. The 
signage project will help enhance visibility, awareness and pride in the neighborhood and help to 
keep neighbors informed of events and activities -  include the purchase of 6 neighborhood street 
sign toppers and 1 outdoor message board. Neighbor volunteers will install the message board to 
reduce the cost for labor.  

147



 Page 2 

 
Sapphire Hills 
Erosion Control Project                             Project Amount - $9,400.00 
Request $3,000.00 in matching grant funds to support the erosion control project. The project will 
reduce and prevent erosion by implementing controls in 3 areas of the neighborhood to incude: adding 
rip rock or equal solution in one area, constructing a retaining wall in another area, and building up and 
reinforce ground where residents will plant  perineal ground cover, wild flowers and grasses to reduce 
the risk of erosion. Neighbor volunteers will help to install the ground cover including planting 
evergreens, grass, and wildflowers as well as watering in the seeds. 
 
Christenbury    
Nature Trail Improvements - Install additional amenities           Project Amount - $ 6,250.00 
Request $3,000.00 matching grant to help with efforts to add additional amenities along the 
neighborhood nature trail. The neighborhood has a heavily used activity trail which connects 
different areas of the neighborhood. This project will include improvements to an existing deck to 
install a handicap accessible ramp and new handrails as well as adding benches and a table, five 
fitness stations, and an educational display to highlight local wildlife like beavers, minks, herons, 
and snakes. Volunteer neighbors will help with installation to reduce labor cost.  
 
Lanstone 
Safety Project (sidewalk/LED lights)                     Project Amount - $ 3,300.00 
Request $2,095.00 in matching grant to install a section of a sidewalk along one of the 
neighborhood roads which currently has an incomplete sidewalk and installation of solar lights to 
increase visibility. Those in wheelchairs are not able to navigate through the grassy areas.  They 
must detour off the current sidewalks into the streets thus making them feel very "unsafe" by 
doing so. Neighbors will volunteer time to plant grass seeds and water in seeds and to install and 
adjust the solar lights. 
 

Moss Creek 
Decorative Street Sign Post Project                                Project Amount - $6,138.86 
Request $3,000 in matching grant funds to support the purchase and installation of 5 decorative 
street sign post, which includes 1  Aluminum Fluted Black Powder Coated post on stop sign and 
4 Aluminum Fluted Black Powder Coasted post on street name signs. 
 
Highland Creek   
Street Lighting for Safety Project                    Project Amount - $9,650.00 
Request $3,000.00 in matching grant funds to support the purchase and installation of 3 LED 
street lights in the area of the roundabout at the Sports Club Complex which serves as the main 
clubhouse for the community) to provide lighting of streeets, sidewalks, and parking area.The 
decorative street lighting will provide more lighting consistent with other areas of the community 
and provide a more secure environment. 
 

Not recommended for funding: 

Glen Grove        
Landscaping at Pool and Front entrance               Project Amount - $5,875.00 
Request $3,000.00 to support landscaping project at pool and front entrance area to include installation 
of shrubbery -  12 Ligustrum, 7 red drift roses, 9 abelia rose creek with bermuda sod and pine needles, 
and installation of drip irrigation system.  The committee determined that elements of the project did not 
provide a public benefit (specifically at the pool site) and that included activites such as hiring a 
landcape company to install drip irrigation is not an eligible fundable activity as the maitaince of 
landscaping would be the normal  responsibility of the homeowners association and grant funds should 
not be used for that purpose.   

148



Neighborhood Matching Grant Program - 2020 Requests

Aplicant 
No. Neighborhood

Project Description Project 
Amount

Grant 
Amount 

Requested
Cash Match Value of 

Donations
Sweat 
Equity

Total 
Match

Score

1 Logan Food Distribution (HNIN) $6,000.00 $3,000.00 $500.00 $1,150.00 $1,350.00 $3,000.00 94
2 Gibson Village Community Festival $4,783.50 $3,000.00 $0.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $3,000.00 90
3 Oak Park Playground Enhancement Project $6,458.00 $3,000.00 $1,400.00 $1,500.00 $558.00 $3,458.00 96
4 Hiden Pond Signage Project $2,307.00 $1,273.00 $1,153.50 $0.00 $120.00 $1,273.50 92
5 Sapphire Hills Landscaping $9,400.00 $3,000.00 $6,400.00 $300.00 $200.00 $6,900.00 92
6 Christenbury Trail Improvement Project $6,250.00 $3,000.00 $4,800.00 $250.00 $1,200.00 $6,250.00 95
7 Lanestone Safety Project $3,278.00 $2,095.00 $1,352.00 $368.00 $375.00 $2,095.00 83
8 Moss Creek Decorative Street Sign Project $6,138.86 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,000.00 76
9 Highland Creek Decorative Street Lighting Project $9,650.00 $3,000.00 $6,650.00 $0.00 $0.00 $6,650.00 79
10 Glen Grove Landscaping $6,458.00 $3,000.00 $1,400.00 $558.00 $1,500.00 $3,458.00 65

$60,723.4
Total = $27,368.00 $26,655.5 $5,626.0 $6,803.00 $23,881.50

149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



 

Customer Care Center 
Phone (704) 920-5555  Fax (704) 704-795-6193 

35 Cabarrus Avenue West, Concord, NC  28026 – concordnc.gov 

 
CITY OF CONCORD 

PAYMENT PLAN 
 
 

The City of Concord recognizes that the COVID-19 pandemic has created financial 
hardships for some of our residential customers. In an effort to assist with those 
hardships, the City of Concord will offer payment plans for customers unable to pay their 
bills with due dates between March 31, 2020 and July 29, 2020. Payment plans will 
require the following:  
 

1. The amount included in the payment plan must be paid as agreed upon, in 
addition to your current monthly utility bill. 
 

2. Monthly consumption charges incurred after July 29, 2020 along with the 
payment plan amount must be paid by your due date each month.  

 
3. Any past due account balance accrued prior to the Executive Order will need 

to be paid immediately.  
 
Failure to follow a payment plan may result in disconnection of your utility services. The 
City of Concord reserves the right to disconnect service if you do not abide by the terms 
of the agreement.  
 
If utility services are disconnected for failure to follow a payment plan, reconnection will 
only be possible after full payment of any outstanding account balance.  
 
To enter a payment plan, please contact Customer Care at 704-920-5555 or visit the 
Customer Care page of the City of Concord’s website at www.concordnc.gov.  
 
Customer Care 
City of Concord 
704-920-5555 
custcare@concordnc.gov 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

159

http://www.concordnc.gov/


 

Customer Care Center 
Phone (704) 920-5555  Fax (704) 704-795-6193 

35 Cabarrus Avenue West, Concord, NC  28026 – concordnc.gov 

City of Concord 
Utility Payment Plan Agreement 

 
 

Name: ________________________________________________________________ 
Account Address: _______________________________________________________ 
Account #: _____________________________________________________________ 
Past Due Balance: $_____________________ (as of _______________) 
 
I agree that my current past due balance is $_____________. In order to payoff the past 
due balance no later than six months from the date of this payment plan and bring my 
account current, I agree to pay a minimum of $________________ per month beginning 
_______________, in addition to my current monthly bill. I understand that I remain 
responsible for paying my current monthly bill on or prior to its due date. 
 
I understand that, after July 29, 2020 (or termination of the Governor’s Executive Order 
124 amended by Executive Order 142), my utility services may be disconnected until my 
balance is paid in full if I do not make the monthly payments agreed to in this payment 
plan or do not pay the full amount of my current month bill. 
 
My current contact information is: 
 
Mailing Address: ________________________________________________________ 
 
Email: _____________________________________ 
 
Phone: _____________________________________ 
 
I acknowledge and agree to the terms of this payment plan. 
 
_______________________________________________ 
Account Holder Signature 
 
_______________________________________________ 
Date 
 
_______________________________________________ 
City of Concord Representative 
 
 
 

160



PAYMENT EXTENSION PROCESS IS CHANGING 

The City of Concord is changing the process for utility services payment extensions, effective 
October 1, 2019. 

Customers often need more time to pay their utility bills.  The payment extension process is the 
method City staff applies to aid qualifying customers in getting their bill caught up.  The 
payment extension process is part of the City’s Customer Service Policies and Procedures 
(Section 3.12).  City staff strives to be more efficient and has reviewed the payment extension 
process that other utility providers have implemented.  It is the City’s objective to collect all 
utility fees owed but also to work with our customers and offer options which allow the 
customer time to satisfy their outstanding balance.   

Customers requesting extensions of time to pay their utility bill will be given an extension of 2 
weeks to make their payment.  A payment extension agreement that extends beyond 2 weeks 
would be considered an exception to the City’s policy.  A customer may have one payment 
extension every 3 months if the customer successfully completes the prior payment extension 
agreement.  No extensions will be given on the first bill or the deposit due to the City. 

Payment extensions are intended to aid the customer in catching up their bill, not to allow the 
customer to only pay a small amount while the bill continues to increase to an amount that the 
customer would not be able to pay.  The new payment extension process will help customers 
avoid accumulating large bills. 

Any exceptions to a 2 week payment extension would be handled individually by staff. 

FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS 

• What if I already have a payment agreement with the City? 

Current payment agreements will be honored.  Once the current payment agreement is 
complete, any new agreement that is requested would follow the new procedures that 
go into effect on October 1, 2019. 

• Who qualifies for a payment extension? 
 
Each customer’s history will be reviewed to determine if the payment extension option 
is available.  If a customer has a good payment history and all previous payment 
extension agreements have been honored, a customer qualifies for a payment extension 
once every 3 months.  No extensions are granted for first bills or deposits. 
 
 
 
 

161



• How do I get a payment extension? 
 
If you are requesting a payment extension for 2 weeks or less, you may contact 
Customer Care at (704) 920-5555, or you may also visit the City’s Customer Care 
Department located on the 2nd floor of City Hall, 35 Cabarrus Avenue West.  Any 
Customer Care coworker will be able to assist you with a 2 week extension agreement. 
 

• What happens if I do not keep my payment extension agreement? 
 
Service will be disconnected without further notice and all amounts due to the City will 
be due and payable before service is restored.  A payment agreement extension contract 
will not be available in the next quarter (next 3 months) with a broken promise of an 
agreement. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

162



 

163



164



 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING CITY OF CONCORD’S RESPONSE TO THE EXPIRATION OF  
COVID-19 EXECUTIVE ORDER (EO) 124 & 142 FOR UTILITY PAYMENT PLANS, 

DISCONNECTIONS AND LATE FEES AND PENALITES 
 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Concord, North Carolina has approved a Customer 
Service Policies and Procedures Manual; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City desires to add additional procedures regarding customers with an unpaid 
bill that has a due date between March 31, 2020 and July 29, 2020; and 
 
 WHEREAS, all other unpaid bills that do not have a due date between March 31, 2020 and 
July 29, 2020, will be handled as stated in the City’s adopted Customer Service Policies and 
Procedures Manual; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on March 31, 2020, the Governor of North Carolina approved Executive Order 
(EO) 124 that prohibited utilities from terminating service of residential customers for non-payment 
and charging residential service late fees and penalties; and  
 
 WHEREAS, EO 124 expired on June 1, 2020; and EO 142 was issued to extend EO 124 for 
60 days; and 
 
 WHEREAS, upon expiration of EO 124 & 142, utilities must offer customers the opportunity to 
make reasonable payment arrangements to pay off over at least a 6-month period any arrearages 
accumulated during the effective period of EO124 and EO142. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Concord, North 
Carolina that the resolution attachment titled “City’s Response to the Expiration of COVID-19 
Executive Order (EO) No. 124 & 142” be adopted as follows: 

• Customers that had an outstanding balance with a due date before March 31st, 2020 will be 
offered payment agreements per the City’s adopted Customer Service Policies and 
Procedures.  This policy allows the customer an additional 2 weeks to pay their outstanding 
past due bill.  If the customer does not pay, their service will be disconnected.  This is the 
City’s normal operating procedures (per the City Council’s adopted Customer Service Policies 
& Procedures) when dealing with customers who have delinquent past due balances. 
 

• Customers that have a past due bill with a due date after July 29, 2020, will be given the option 
to enter into a payment agreement per the City’s existing adopted Customer Service Policies 
and Procedures.  The current adopted policy will allow the customer an additional 2 weeks to 
satisfy the past due amount.  Customers who do not pay their past due amount will be 
disconnected per the City’s adopted Customer Service Policies and Procedures. 
 

• Per EO 124 & 142, any customer with an unpaid bill that has a due date between March 31, 
2020, and July 29, 2020, will be given up to 6 months to satisfy those outstanding balances.  
The customer will be required to sign a payment agreement to ensure the terms of repayment 
plan are understood.  The amount included in the payment plan must be paid each month in 
addition to the current monthly utility bill. The balances incurred during this 120-day period will 
be divided into no more than 6 equal payments.  A customer who does not meet the 
requirements of the signed payment plan will be disconnected. 
 

• Penalties and late fees will be waived during this 6-month period and will resume in February 
of 2021 upon expiration of the 6 month payment plan. 
 

• All normal cut off procedures will resume in February of 2021 (once the 6-month payment plan 
expires). 
 

• Customers who wish to appeal staff decisions will follow the current appeal process which is 
documented in the City of Concord’s adopted Customer Service Policies and Procedures. 

 
This Resolution shall be effective July 30, 2020 and shall remain in effect until the 6-month payment 
plan has been completed or canceled which will occur in February of 2021. 
 
Adopted this 9th day of July, 2020. 

165



 
  CITY COUNCIL 
 CITY OF CONCORD 
 NORTH CAROLINA 
 
 
 ________________________________  
 William C. Dusch, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Kim J. Deason, City Clerk 
 

 
 
 
  
VaLerie Kolczynski, City Attorney 

166



~faft nf ~nrf~ @arnlina 
ROY COOPER 

GOVERNOR 

May 30, 2020 

EXECUTIVE ORDER NO. 142 

ASSISTING NORTH CAROLINIANS BY PLACING TEMPORARY PROHIBITIONS 
ON EVICTIONS AND EXTENDING THE PROHIBITION ON UTILITY SHUT-OFFS 

WHEREAS, on March 10, 2020, the undersigned issued Executive Order No. 116 which 
declared a State of Emergency to coordinate the State ' s response and protective actions to address 
the Coronavirus Disease 2019 ("COVID-19") public health emergency and provide for the health, 
safety, and welfare of residents and visitors located in North Carolina; and 

WHEREAS, on March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization declared COVID-19 a 
global pandemic; and 

WHEREAS, on March 13, 2020, the President of the United States issued an emergency 
declaration for all states, tribes, territories, and the District of Columbia, retroactive to March 1, 
2020, and the President declared that the COVID-19 pandemic in the United States constitutes a 
national emergency; and 

WHEREAS, on March 25, 2020, the President approved a Major Disaster Declaration, 
FEMA-4487-DR, for the State of North Carolina; and 

WHEREAS, in responding to the COVID-19 pandemic, and for the purpose of protecting 
the health, safety, and welfare of the people of North Carolina, the undersigned has issued 
Executive Order Nos. 116-122, 124-125, 129-131 , 133-1 36, and 138-141 ; and 

WHEREAS, more than twenty-seven thousand people in North Carolina have had 
laboratory-confirmed cases of COVID-19, and hundreds of people in North Carolina have died 
from the disease; and 

WHEREAS, hospital administrators and health care providers have expressed concerns 
that unless the spread of COVID-19 is limited, existing health care facilities may be insufficient 
to care for those who become sick; and 

WHEREAS, slowing and controlling community spread of COVID-19 is critical to 
ensuring that the state' s healthcare facilities remain able to accommodate those who require 
medical assistance; and 

WHEREAS, to mitigate further community spread ofCOVID-1 9 and to reduce the burden 
on the state's health care providers and facilities, it is necessary to limit person-to-person contact 
in workplaces and communities; and 

167



WHEREAS, such limitations on person-to-person contact are reasonably necessary to 
address the public health risk posed by COVID-19; and 

WHEREAS, due to the State of Emergency, many North Carolinians are working from 
home and staying at home; many businesses have seen a substantial decline in demand for the 
goods or services that they sell, causing some businesses to close or reduce the size of their 
workforce; and some businesses have been ordered closed to slow the spread of COVID-19; and 

WHEREAS, any disruptions or dislocations that would require people to leave their homes 
increase the risk of spread of COVID-19: and 

WHEREAS, the economic effects of the pandemic have broadly affected business owners, 
tenants, and employees across the state; and 

WHEREAS, because of these and other economic effects from the COVID-19 pandemic, 
many North Carolinians are enduring financial hardship and financial insecurity; and 

WHEREAS, on April 13, 2020 and May 1, 2020. Chief Justice Cheri Beasley of the North 
Carolina Supreme Court issued orders postponing court hearings, including eviction proceedings, 
until June 1, 2020; and 

WHEREAS, in Executive Order No. 124, the undersigned and Attorney General Josh 
Stein provided further guidance on the Chief Justice's emergency order, as it relates to evictions, 
and strongly encouraged mortgage companies to take actions to alleviate the adverse impact caused 
by COVID-19 on mortgage borrowers who are unable to make timely payments; and 

WHEREAS, when the Chief Justice's emergency orders allow court hearings to resume 
on June 1, 2020, residential tenants in North Carolina will be at risk of eviction; and 

WHEREAS, residential evictions remove people from their homes, where they are safest 
during the COVID-19 pandemic, and thereby increase the risk that such people will contract and 
spread COVID-19; and 

WHEREAS, many residential evictions leave people homeless, where they are at extreme 
risk of contracting and spreading COVID-19; and 

WHEREAS, because many people are now performing their jobs and receiving schooling 
from their homes, residential evictions during the COVID-19 pandemic also threaten people's 
ability to maintain their livelihood and receive education; and 

WHEREAS, for these and other reasons, it is reasonable and necessary that there be an 
additional twenty-one (21) day moratorium on residential evictions for reason of late payment or 
nonpayment, beginning on the date of this Executive Order; and 

WHEREAS, commercial evictions disrupt and usually terminate the jobs ofall the people 
in the commercial establishments where the eviction takes place; and 

WHEREAS, North Carolina's unemployment rate has greatly increased during the 
COVID-19 pandemic, and it is reasonable and necessary to take actions that protect North Carolina 
jobs;and 

WHEREAS, commercial evictions require significant amounts of unexpected travel, as 
commercial tenants move the equipment in the facilities they have leased, and this travel will 
unnecessarily expose people to risk of transmitting and spreading COVID-19; and 

WHEREAS, the federal Paycheck Protection Program and other programs under the 
CARES Act, P.L. 116-136, have provided financial assistance to small businesses, but these 
programs provide only a limited amount of assistance, and some commercial tenants are likely to 
exhaust the financial assistance provided under this program; and 

168



WHEREAS, Section 4024 of the CARES Act, P.L. 116-136, protects from eviction, 
through late August, tenants in properties with federally backed mortgage loans (including loans 
owned or securitized by Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac. or insured by HUD, the VA, or the USDA) and 
tenants in properties participating in various federal affordable housing programs, but some 
dwellings and some tenants are not covered by the protections in the CARES Act; and 

WHEREAS, as a result, it is likely that, absent intervention, there will be a wave of 
commercial evictions in North Carolina; and 

WHEREAS, for these and other reasons, it is reasonable and necessary that there be a 
twenty-one (21) day moratorium on commercial evictions for reason of late payment or 
nonpayment caused by the COVID-19 pandemic, beginning on the date of this Executive Order 
No. 142; and 

WHEREAS, the moratoriums on evictions in this Executive Order do not forgive rent or 
excuse the obligation to pay rent, and instead, this Executive Order merely delays evictions and 
waives interest, late fees, and penalties that arise during the Order's effective period; and 

WHEREAS, the economic effects ofthe pandemic have broadly affected utility customers 
across the state; and 

WHEREAS, utility services are essential to the continued health and safety of residential 
utility customers, to the ability of workers and employers to engage in teleworking, and to the 
continued economic viability of business utility customers, even as the economic effects of the 
pandemic threaten customers' ability to pay for those utility services; and 

WHEREAS, on March 19, 2020, the North Carolina Utilities Commission ('"Utilities 
Commission" or '"Commission") issued an Order Suspending Utility Disconnections for Non
Payment, Allowing Reconnection, and Waiving Certain Fees; and 

WHEREAS, the Utilities Commission's March 19, 2020 Order applied to only some of 
the utilities that are necessary for the continued well-being of North Carolina residents and the 
continued viability of North Carolina businesses; and 

WHEREAS, in Executive Order No. 124, the undersigned enacted, for all utilities, 
prohibitions and restrictions similar to and consistent with the Utilities Commission's March 19, 
2020 Order; and 

WHEREAS, the undersigned has determined that it is reasonable and necessary to extend 
the utility customer protections in Executive Order No. 124 for an additional sixty (60) days from 
the date of this Executive Order; and 

WHEREAS, Executive Order No. 116 invoked the Emergency Management Act, and 
authorizes the undersigned to exercise the powers and duties set forth therein to direct and aid in 
the response to, recovery from, and mitigation against emergencies; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat.§ 166A-19.10(b)(2), the undersigned may make, 
amend, or rescind necessary orders, rules, and regulations within the limits of the authority 
conferred upon the Governor in the Emergency Management Act; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to N. C. Gen. Stat. § 166A- l 9 .1 0(b)(7), the undersigned is 
authorized and empowered to utilize the services, equipment, supplies, and facilities of political 
subdivisions, and their officers and personnel are required to cooperate with and extend such 
services and facilities to the undersigned upon request~ and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. § 166A-l 9.30(a)(l ), the undersigned may utilize 
all available state resources as reasonably necessary to cope with an emergency, including the 
transfer and direction of personnel or functions of State agencies or units thereof for the purpose 
of performing or facilitating emergency services; and 

169



WHEREAS, pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat.§ 166A-19.30(a)(2), during a Gubernatorially 
declared State of Emergency, the undersigned has the power to ·•give such directions to state and 
local law enforcement officers and agencies as may be reasonable and necessary for the purpose 
of securing compliance with the provisions of this Article ..; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. § l 66A-l 9.30(a)(3), the undersigned may take 
steps to assure that measures, including the installation of public utilities, are taken when necessary 
to qualify for temporary housing assistance from the federal government when that assistance is 
required to protect the public health, welfare, and safety: and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat.§ 166A-19.30(b)(2), the undersigned, with the 
concurrence of the Council of State, may establish a system of economic controls over all 
resources, materials, and services, including shelter and rents; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. § I 66A- I 9 .30(b )(3 ), the undersigned, with the 
concurrence of the Council of State, may regulate and control the maintenance, extension, and 
operation of public utility services and facilities; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. § l 66A-l 9.30(b)(4), the undersigned, with the 
concurrence of the Council of State, may waive a provision of any regulation or ordinance of a 
State agency or political subdivision which restricts the immediate relief of human suffering; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. § l 66A-l 9.30(b)(5), the undersigned, with the 
concurrence of the Council of State, may perform and exercise such other functions, powers, and 
duties as are necessary to promote and secure the safety and protection of the civilian population; 
and 

WHEREAS, N.C. Gen. Stat.§ 166A-19.I0(b)(3) further authorizes and empowers the 
undersigned to delegate Gubernatorial vested authority under the Emergency Management Act 
and to provide for the sub-delegation of that authority; and 

WHEREAS, under the terms of N.C. Gen. Stat. § l 66A- l 9.70(a), utilities are considered 
critical infrastructure for the State of North Carolina; and 

WHEREAS, the undersigned has sought and obtained concurrence from the Council of 
State consistent with the Governor's emergency powers authority in N.C. Gen. Stat. § 166A-19.30. 

NOW, THEREFORE, by the authority vested in me as Governor by the Constitution and 
the laws of the State of North Carolina, IT IS ORDERED: 

Section 1. Evictions Moratorium. 

For the reasons and pursuant to the authority set forth above, the undersigned orders as follows: 

A. Definitions. In this Executive Order: 

I. ··Residential Lease'· means a lease of a dwelling unit in the State of North Carolina to 
which the North Carolina Residential Rental Agreements Act, N.C. Gen. Stat. §§ 42-
38 to 42-46, applies. 

2. "Residential Tenant" means the tenant in a Residential Lease. 

3. "Residential Landlord'" means the owner o[ and any rental management company, 
rental agency, or any other person having the actual or apparent authority of an agent 
over, any unit in a Residential Lease. 

4. ··Commercial Lease" means a lease of any real property that is leased to an individual, 
business, or organization that does commerce in the State of North Carolina; provided, 
however, that ··Commercial Lease" does not include: Residential Leases (as that term 
is defined in this Executive Order); operations of hotels, motels, or similar lodging 

170

https://166A-19.30


subject to regulation by the Commission for Public Health; and vacation rentals entered 
into under Chapter 42A of the General Statutes. 

5. ··Commercial TenanC means the tenant in a Commercial Lease. 

6. ··Commercial Landlord" means the owner of: and any rental management company, 
rental agency, or any other person having the actual or apparent authority of an agent 
over, the real property in a Commercial Lease. 

7. An action is "for reason oflate payment or nonpaymenC if the legal basis for that action 
was, in whole or in part, the tenanf s late payment or nonpayment of rent. 

8. An effect is "caused by the COVID-19 pandemic'' if it is caused, in whole or in part, 
directly or indirectly, by the COVID- I 9 pandemic. This includes, without limitation, 
not only the medical effects of the COVID-19 pandemic, but also the disruptions to the 
economy that have arisen since the beginning of the COVID-19 pandemic and the 
economic effects of business closures and other public health restrictions instituted 
because of the COVID-19 pandemic. 

9. The ··Effective Period" of this Section is defined in Subsection (B)( I) below. 

B. Residential Evictions. 

1. No Evictions for Late Payment or Nonpayment. 

a. Residential Landlords shall not, for reason of late payment or nonpayment, 
initiate or take any action to further summary ejectment or other eviction 
proceedings against a Residential Tenant. 

b. All Residential Landlords are prohibited from requiring Residential Tenants to 
vacate their dwelling units for reason of late payment or nonpayment. 

c. All leases are modified to disallow evicting, or otherwise terminating the 
possession ot~ Residential Tenants for reason of late payment or nonpayment 
during the Effective Period of this Section. 

These restrictions and modifications shall continue for twenty-one (21) days after the 
date of entry of this Executive Order. This time period (the ··Effective Period") may 
be extended by a subsequent Executive Order issued by the undersigned with the 
concurrence of the Council of State. 

For example, if this Executive Order is issued on May 30, the Effective Period of this 
Section will be May 30 through June 20, inclusive, unless there is an Executive Order 
extending this Section. 

2. Late fees and penalties. Residential Landlords shall not assess upon their Residential 
Tenants interest, late fees. or other penalties for late payment or nonpayment of rent 
due during the Effective Period. If a Residential Tenant had existing interest, fees, or 
other penalties when this Executive Order came into effect, all accumulation of 
additional interest, fees, or other penalties is paused during the Effective Period. 

3. Extra time to pay off rent due in the Effective Period. Residential Tenants shall be 
provided the opportunity to make reasonable payment arrangements to pay off, over at 
least a six (6) month period. any rent that became due in the Effective Period and was 
not paid during the Effective Period. No interest, late fees or other penalties shall be 
charged on these arrearages. The six-month payoff period shall be calculated from the 
expiration of the Effective Period. 

171



C. Commercial Evictions. 

1. During the Effective Period of this Section. as defined in Subsection (B)(l) above: 

a. Restriction on Commercial Evictions. Commercial Landlords shall not, for 
reason of late payment or nonpayment caused by the COVID-19 pandemic, 
perform a self-help eviction of a Commercial Tenant, require Commercial 
Tenants to vacate their facilities, terminate any Commercial Tenant's lease, or 
take any action, judicial or otherwise, to terminate a Commercial Tenant's 
possession. 

b. This restriction on commercial evictions shall apply only if one or both of the 
following conditions are met: 

1. The landlord is aware that the Commercial Tenant's late payment or 
nonpayment is caused by the COVID-19 pandemic; or 

11. The Commercial Tenant provides the landlord with documentation or 
other evidence that the late payment or nonpayment is caused by the 
COVID-19 pandemic. 

2. Duty to Inquire. During the Effective Period of this Section, before performing a 
self-help eviction of a Commercial Tenant, terminating any Commercial Tenant's 
lease, or taking any action to terminate a Commercial Tenant's possession for reason 
of late payment or nonpayment, Commercial Landlords shall inquire whether the late 
payment or nonpayment is caused by the COVID-19 pandemic and give the 
Commercial Tenant seventy-two (72) hours to respond. Ifthe landlord does not comply 
with the provisions of this Subsection (C)(2), the landlord's action is voidable by the 
tenant. 

3. Late Fees and Penalties. Commercial Landlords shall not assess upon their 
Commercial Tenants interest, late fees, or other penalties for late payment or 
nonpayment of rent due during the Effective Period. If a Commercial Tenant had 
existing interest, fees, or other penalties when this Executive Order came into effect, 
all accumulation of additional interest, fees, or other penalties is paused during the 
Effective Period. 

4. Extra Time to Pay Off Rent Due in the Effective Period. Commercial Tenants shall be 
provided the opportunity to make reasonable payment arrangements to pay off, over at 
least a six ( 6) month period, any rent that became due in the Effective Period and was 
not paid during the Effective Period. No interest, late fees or other penalties shall be 
charged on these arrearages. The six-month payoff period shall be calculated from the 
expiration of the Effective Period. 

D. Rent Remains Due. Except for the interest, late fees and penalties expressly waived above, 
nothing in this Executive Order shall be construed as waiving tenants' obligation to pay rent 
or perform any other obligations which an individual may have under a tenancy. 

E. Evictions for Other Reasons. Nothing in this Executive Order affects evictions for reasons 
other than late payment or nonpayment. However, all landlords are strongly encouraged to 
work with tenants to the best of their abilities to avoid evictions in light of the COVID-19 State 
of Emergency. 

F. Payment Assistance. NCDHHS shall publicize payment assistance programs to aid landlords 
and tenants in the payment of their bills. 

G. Foreclosure Proceedings. The undersigned strongly encourages all lenders to work with 
property owners to the best of their abilities to provide loan payment flexibility that enables 
property owners to avoid foreclosures, in light of the COVID-19 State of Emergency. 

172



H. Tenants Should Notify Landlords and Pay Rent if Possible. During the Effective Period, 
rent is still due and will accrue. Therefore, the undersigned strongly encourages any 
Residential Tenant or Commercial Tenant who is or will be unable to pay the full rent due 
under a rental agreement or lease to notify the landlord as soon as reasonably possible and to 
make rental payments to the extent the tenant is financially able to do so. Failure of a 
Residential Tenant or Commercial Tenant to act as encouraged by this Subsection does not 
exclude the tenant from the protections of this Executive Order. 

Section 2. Extension of Assistance for North Carolina Utility Customers. 

For the reasons and pursuant to the authority set forth above and in Executive Order No. 124, the 
undersigned orders as follows: 

A. Section 1 of Executive Order No. 124 shall remain in effect until 11 :59 pm on July 29, 2020. 

B. Utility Service Providers shall reasonably inform their customers of this extension. Section 
1 (F) of Executive Order No. 124 shall apply to that notification. 

C. Section 1(C) of Executive Order No. 124 is amended as follows: 

''Late fees and payment arrangements. A Utility Service Provider shall not bill or collect 
any fee, charge, penalty, or interest for a late or otherwise untimely payment that becomes 
due from the date of this Executive Order. Customers shall be provided the opportunity to 
make reasonable payment arrangements to pay off over at least a six (6) month period any 
arrearages accumulated during the effective period of this Executive Order, of Section 2 of 
this Executive Order, and of any other order extending this Executive Order and 180 days 
thereafter. In the event a utility service provider and customer are unable to agree on the 
duration of an extended repayment plan, the default repayment period shall be six {6) 
months. The six ( 6) month payoff period shall be calculated from the date of termination 
of this Section of this Executive Order or, if other applicable Executive Orders extend the 
protections of this Section, from the date of the termination of the last Executive Order that 
extends such protections; provided, however, that Utility Service Providers subject to the 
Utilities Commission's March 19, 2020 Order shall remain subject to the terms of that 
0f€ler any Utilities Commission order that may be in effect after this Executive Order 
expires. No interest or late fee shall be charged on arrearages. No provision in this 
Executive Order shall be construed as relieving a customer of their obligation to pay bills 
for receipt of any service covered by this Executive Order .., 

D. Section 1 (G) of Executive Order No. 124 is amended and restated as follows: 

··Duration. This Section shall remain in effect for one hundred ( 120) days, until 11 :59 pm 
on July 29, 2020, unless rescinded or superseded by another applicable Executive Order; 
provided, however, that after that date, the provisions of this Section shall continue to apply 
to arrearages that accumulated while this Executive Order was in effect.'' 

E. Section 1 (J) of Executive Order No. 124 is amended as follows: 

"Implementation and enforcement. The undersigned directs that the North Carolina 
Utilities Commission monitor responses and provide assistance and guidance to Utility 
Service Providers, including to the extent possible Utility Service Providers not under the 
Commission's regulatory jurisdiction, in implementing the provisions of this Section of this 
Executive Order. Utility Service Providers shall report implementation information 1•.veekly 
monthly to the North Carolina Utilities Commission, including the following: (1) number 
of accounts by type (e.g., residential or business account) for which service termination 
was forborne, (2) number of reconnections by type of account, (3) amount of late fees and 
other penalties not collected, ( 4) number of accounts on an extended repayment plan, ( 5) 
customer notification information, and any other information determined by the Utilities 
Commission. The Utilities Commission and the Attorney General shall have the authority 
to enforce the provisions of this Executive Order through any methods provided by current 
law. The Utilities Commission, and to the extent necessary for any Utility Service 

173



Providers not within the Utilities Commission's jurisdiction, the Attorney General may 
waive provisions in their discretion and order an effective alternative. The Commission 
shall provide a ·,veekly monthly report to the Governor's Office on implementation of this 
Executive Order." 

Section 3. No Private Right of Action Against the State or Against Officers. 

This Executive Order is not intended to create, and does not create, any individual right, 
privilege, or benefit, whether substantive or procedural, enforceable at law or in equity by any 
party against the State of North Carolina, its agencies, departments, political subdivisions, or other 
entities, or any officers, employees, or agents thereo[ or any emergency management worker (as 
defined in N.C. Gen. Stat. § l 66A-l 9.60). 

Section 4. Supremacy Clause. 

This Executive Order is not intended to supplant or preempt any federal law, including, but 
not limited to the protections afforded to tenants under the CARES Act, P.L. 116-136. 

Section 5. Savings Clause. 

If any provision of this Executive Order or its application to any person or circumstances 
is held invalid by any court of competent jurisdiction, this invalidity does not affect any other 
provision or application of this Executive Order, which can be given effect without the invalid 
provision or application. To achieve this purpose, the provisions of this Executive Order are 
declared to be severable. 

Section 6. Distribution. 

I hereby order that this Executive Order be: ( 1) distributed to the news media and other 
organizations calculated to bring its contents to the attention of the general public; (2) promptly 
filed with the Secretary of the North Carolina Department of Public Safety, the Secretary of State, 
and the superior court clerks in the counties to which it applies, unless the circumstances of the 
State of Emergency would prevent or impede such filing; and (3) distributed to others as necessary 
to ensure proper implementation of this Executive Order. 

Section 7. Enforcement. 

A. Pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. § 166A-l 9.30(a)(2), the provisions of this Executive Order shall 
be enforced by state and local law enforcement officers. 

B. A violation of this Executive Order may be subject to prosecution pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. 
§ l 66A-l 9.30(d), and is punishable as a Class 2 misdemeanor in accordance with N.C. Gen. 
Stat. § I 4-288.20A. 

C. This Executive Order limits only evictions for reason of late payment or nonpayment. This 
Executive Order does not affect or restrict access to court orders that limit, for other reasons, 
a person's access to a location. 

Section 8. Effective Date. 

This Executive Order is effective as of the beginning of the calendar day on which it is 
entered. 

Section I of this Executive Order shall remain in effect for the time period stated in 
Subsection l(B)(l), except that Subsections 1(8)(3) and l(C)(4) shall remain in effect for six (6) 
months beyond the time period stated in Subsection 1(8)( 1). 

Section 2 of this Executive Order shall remain in effect until the date listed in Subsection 
2(A) of this Executive Order, except that Subsection I (C) of Executive Order No. 124, as amended 
by Section 2(C) of this Executive Order, shall remain in effect for six (6) months beyond the date 
listed in Subsection 2(A) of this Executive Order. 

174



An Executive Order rescinding the Declaration of the State of Emergency will 

automatically rescind this Executive Order. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto signed my name and affixed the Great Seal 
of the State ofNorth Carolina at the Capitol in the City of Raleigh, this 30111 day of May in the year 

of our Lord two thousand and twenty. 

Governor 

ATTEST: 

Secretary of State 

175



RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING EXCHANGE OF PROPERTY 
 

 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Concord has received a proposal to 
exchange the easement and perpetual lease of real property described below for 
permanent parking and access easements of the real property of the Central United 
Methodist Church also as described below described below; and  
 
 WHEREAS, public notice of the intent of the City Council and of the time and 
place of the meeting was published along with a description of the real property, as 
required by law; and 
 
 WHEREAS, at its regular meeting on July 9, 2020 the City Council considered 
the exchange of the properties, and heard from all interested persons who appeared 
and expressed a desire to be heard, and now desires to exchange the real property of 
the City described below for the real property of the Central United Methodist Church 
described below; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that the City of Concord will receive 
a full and fair consideration for its property in the exchange: 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 
Concord, that: 
 
 The City Council finds that the areas of the properties exchanges are of equal 
value; and 
 
 The City Council finds that the areas to be exchanged are equal in area; and  
 
 The Mayor and the City Clerk are hereby authorized to execute the necessary 
documents in order to affect an exchange of the easement to real property perpetually 
leased by the City of Concord described below for parking and access easements of 
real property of the Central United Methodist Church described below, and to deliver 
and receive the appropriate documents: 
 
 1. Property of Central United Methodist Church 
 

Parking Easement 
 
 Lying and being in the City of Concord, No. 2 Township, Cabarrus County, 
North Carolina, adjoining the property of the City of Concord (PIN No. 
56208886130000) and being a part of the property of Central United Methodist 
Church (PIN No. 56208884060000) and being more particularly described as 
follows: 
 
 BEGINNING at a computed point on the northeast side of the right-of-way 
of Killarney Avenue, and being a common corner with the property of the City of 
Concord (PIN No. 56208886130000); thence with the line of the City of Concord 
S. 40-16-32 E. 113.78 feet to a computed point; thence leaving the line of the 
City of Concord S. 49-39-54 W. 24.00 feet to a computed point; thence N. 40-16-
32 W. 113.78 feet to a computed point in the northeast side of Killarney Avenue; 
thence with Killarney Avenue N. 49-39-54 E. 24.00 feet to the point and place of 
BEGINNING, containing 2,731 sq. feet as shown on survey by Samuel L. King, 
Jr. PLS, King Engineering of Concord, Inc. dated February 6, 2020, reference to 
which survey being hereby made for a more particular description and attached 
as Exhibit A.  
 
2. City of Concord, Easement: 

 
 Lying and being in the City of Concord, No. 2 Township, Cabarrus 
County, North Carolina, on the southwest side of the right-of-way (variable 
width) of Church Street, adjoining the property of the City of Concord (PIN 

176

https://tax.cabarruscounty.us/SearchResults.aspx?field=parcel&parcel=56208884060000


No. 5620-88-8613) and First Charter Real Estate Holdings, LLC [“First 
Charter” PIN No. 5620-88-8387)], and being a part of the property of 
Central United Methodist Church(PIN No. 5620-88-8406), and being more 
particularly described as follows: 
 

BEGINNING at a computed point on the southwest side of the right-
of-way of Church Street (said computed point being located S. 43-19-09 
E. 24.01 feet from a tack in a lead-filled hole, corner of the City of Concord 
in the southern line of a 12’ right-of-way described in Deed Book 87, Page 
1), and runs thence with the southwest side of the right-of-way of Church 
Street S. 43-19-09 E. 90.99 feet to a #5 rebar set in the northwestern line 
of a 10’ right-of-way (Deed Book 128, Page 131, and Deed Book 350, 
Page 495), a corner of First Charter; thence with the northwestern line of 
said 10’ right-of-way, and of First Charter, S. 47-03-59 W. 22.61 feet to a 
computed point; thence two (2) new lines through the property of Central 
United Methodist Church, as follows: (1) N. 43-03-39 W. 90.84 feet to a 
computed point; and thence (2) N. 46-40-51 E. 22.20 feet to the point of 
BEGINNING, containing 0.047 acre, more or less, as shown on that 
survey by James E. Davis, PLS, Concord Engineering and Surveying, 
Inc., dated July 30, 2008, and attached as Exhibit B. 

 
Adopted this    day of     2020. 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF CONCORD, NORTH CAROLINA 

ATTEST: 
 
      __________________________________ 
___________________________  Bill Dusch, Mayor 
Kim J. Deason, City Clerk 
 

177



178



179



# of vehicle by type Vapor Door Arrow Door Queen City Engineering Custom Option

Gillig 8 $6405 (installed) $5000 (not installed) $3500 (installed) $28,000

New Flyer 2 $6215 (installed) $5000 (not installed) $3500 (installed) $7,000

LTV 4 not available not available $3000 (installed) $12,000

For Transit Vans 3 not available not available $3500 (installed) $10,500

$57,500

Vehicle Driver Safety Barrier Comparison

180



 

1 
 

 

 

To : Concord Kannapolis Area Transit Paratransit Services 

45 Transit Ct NW 
Concord, NC 28025  
Attn: Mrs. Jaime Poe 
 
RE: Queen City Engineering & Design Vehicle Shielding Systems Proposal 
 
 

Queen City Engineering & Design is an Engineering company located in 
Concord, NC that specializes in the mechanical design and manufacturing of 
custom machinery, industrial and consumer products, prototypes, and other 
fabricated goods. 
 
Due to current market demands we are designing and manufacturing custom 
shielding systems for a multitude of applications in all types of industry.  The 

following pages contain examples of previously installed solutions we have 
provided as examples along with detailed estimates for each of the requested 
workstations within your facility. 
 
If you have any questions regarding any portion of this proposal, please contact 
me at any time.  We look forward to earning your business and helping you 
reopen your school in a safe and timely manner! 

 
 
Rex Carriker, P.E. 
President  
704-918-5851 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

181



 

2 
 

 
 
Pictured below is an example of one of our high quality systems that was custom 
designed, manufactured, and installed by our team at a local car dealership’s 

service center. 
 

 
 
 
  

182



 

3 
 

 
Our current best-selling system shown below was custom designed by request 
from a local county transportation official needing a solution to keep their bus 
driver’s safe.  Since this products inception we have outfitted over 1000 buses 

with our system! 
 

 
 

Our shielding systems far surpass others in the market in terms of quality and 
performance.  Made only from American made materials including ¼” thick 
polycarbonate, food grade stainless steel, and aircraft grade aluminum, our 
systems are built to last. 

 
 

 
Below are detailed estimates for the Custom Shielding Solutions you have 
requested.  

 

183



 

4 
 

Cutaway / LTV 

 

    
 

 

Off-the-Shelf Option 
Side shield = Small option 19”W x 19”H, Large 19”W x 28”H 
Rear Shield =16”W x 28”H  

• Price = approximately $350-$450ea installed 
 

Notes:  This exact system has been installed in over 1000 of these vehicles 
since first being offered in April 2020. 

 

Custom Option 
Full enclosure (Door Style, not pictured) = 32”W x 72”H 

• Price = approximately $3000ea installed 
 

Notes:  Full enclosure to run from floor to ceiling and span distance from 
stanchion to front bulkhead.  Enclosure to hinge open like a door to provide 
emergency egress and latch closed to prevent unwanted entry by 
passengers.  Door will include a speaker area that will be have a door with a 
hinge to allow driver to communicate with passengers. This custom option will 
require engineering time which is factored into the above estimated pricing.  

184



 

5 
 

 

Fixed Route 

 

     
 

Off-the-Shelf Option 
Side Shield = 32”W x 24”H 

• Price = approximately $700 Installed 
 
Side Door = 36”W x 48”H 

• Price = approximately $1300 Installed 
 

Notes:  Side Shield pictured above is currently being installed in 67 buses in 
Charleston.  Side Door is newest offering and provides greater coverage than 
Side Shield style system (prototype pictured above is much smaller than final 
production unit) 
 

Custom Option 

Full enclosure (Door Style, not pictured) = 36”W x 72”H, cutouts to allow for 
unimpeded communication 

• Price = approximately $3500ea installed 
 

Notes:  Full enclosure to run from floor to ceiling and span distance from 
stanchion to front bulkhead.  Enclosure to hinge open like a door to provide 
emergency egress and latch closed to prevent unwanted entry by 
passengers. Door will include a speaker area that will be have a door with a 
hinge to allow driver to communicate with passengers  This custom option will 
require engineering time which is factored into the above estimated pricing.  

185



 

6 
 

 

Transit 
 

 
 

Off-the-Shelf Option 
Half Enclosure = 66”W x 31”H 

• Price = approximately $1800 Installed 
 

Notes:  Half Enclosure pictured above has been installed in 27 vans since 
originally developed in May 2020.  Includes full stainless steel stanchion 
system and requires no modifications to the vehicle. 
 

Custom Option 

Full enclosure (not pictured) = 66”W x 72”H, small door to allow for access 
to passenger compartment 

• Price = approximately $3500ea installed 
 

Notes:  Full enclosure to be based on same frame as unit pictured above but 
shields will extend to the floor.  Small, lockable hinged door to be included to 
allow driver to access passenger compartment and to speak with the 
passengers.  This custom option will require engineering time which is 
factored into the above estimated pricing.  

186



 

7 
 

 

Minivan 
 

   
 

 

Off-the-Shelf Option 
Seat Shield = 22”W x 16”H 

• Price = approximately $300ea Installed 
 

Notes:  Can be used individually or as a pair.  Requires no modifications to 
the vehicle.  Driver and Passenger seats retain full range of motion.  Now 
accepting pre-orders, shipping to begin in July.    

187



 

8 
 

 
The above information provides estimated pricing for the Design, Manufacture, 
and Installation of multiple Driver Shielding options for the vehicles we reviewed 

in person at your Concord facility on May 28th, 2020.  Although not requested, I 
have provided examples and pricing for our standard, off-the-shelf systems that 
we are currently selling and installing throughout the Southeast in addition to the 
custom solutions we discussed.  We are able to offer very aggressive pricing on 
these systems as we make them by the thousands here in our Concord 
production facility so I certainly wanted that information to be available to you.  
In regards to the custom solutions, the main factors effecting the above pricing 

are the size and quality of the shields, the engineering time required for the 
various sizes and mounting configurations, and also the required installation 
time.  These custom solutions will be manufactured using the same high quality 
materials and hardware we use in our production units. 
 
In conclusion, we are very appreciative of your time and interest in working with 
Queen City Engineering & Design to develop a sneeze guarding solution for your 
entire fleet.  The above estimate is merely for budgetary purposes and is by no 

means a firm quote.  Final pricing will be determined based on final design and 
total approved project scope.  The vehicles and shields described above are 
what was understood to have been requested during our initial meeting and 
can be adjusted or tailored as needed. 
 
We know we are the right company to partner with for this project because we 
built our engineering company’s reputation by providing our customers with 

exactly what they want at the highest level of quality possible.  Additionally, we 
manufacture our products right here in Concord in a 100+ year old textile mill 
and are owned by 2 Cabarrus County natives! 
 
Please feel free to reach out to me any time regarding any questions, thank you 
again for this opportunity!   

188



Please click the link below to access the Rider Transit Public Transportation Agency Safety Plan: 

 

Rider Transit PTASP 

189

http://www.ckrider.com/wp-content/uploads/2020/07/2020.06.22-Rider-Transit-Public-Transportation-Agency-Safety-Plan.pdf


   
 

 

Wilson Street Park – Order of Magnitude Design Development Budget 
June 20, 2020 - Prepared by ViZ 
 
Project Estimated Costs per Element/Area 
Note: Estimated costs indicate complete order of magnitude cost for the listed element/area 
and are not based on Schematic/Design level of documents. This budget estimate assumes the 
entire project will be constructed complete within one contract and at the same time. 
 
Contractor Mobilization, Survey Staking, etc.: Lump Sum =   $     80,000 
Demolition, Clearing, and Grubbing:   Lump Sum =   $     20,000 
Erosion Control:     Lump Sum =   $     20,000 
Miscellaneous Grading, Drainage:   Lump Sum =   $     40,000 
Restrooms/Shelter:     Lump Sum =   $   375,000 
Restroom Utilities, taps, water, sewer, electric, etc.: Lump Sum =   $     45,000 
Restroom Stamped Concrete Paving/Hardscape 3,500 SF @ $12/SF  $     42,000 
Parking Area Asphalt Paving:    2,000 SY @ $32/SY =  $     64,000 
Parking Area Concrete Walk, ADA Parking, etc.: 2,300 SF @ $7/SF  $     16,000 
Picnic Area #1 Paving, Tables, etc.:   Lump Sum =   $     12,000 
5’ Concrete Sidewalk along Wilson St.:  1,700 SF @ $6/SF  $     10,200  
Playground:      Lump Sum =   $   200,000 
Walks/Trails – Asphalt 10’:    1,000 SY @ $32/SY =  $     32,000 
10’ Concrete Walk – ‘Garden Trail’:   750 SF @ $7/SF =  $       5,300 
Low Water Crossing Bridge – ‘Garden Bridge’: Lump Sum =   $     50,000 
Enchanted Path Compacted Gravel:  500 SY @ $15/SY =  $       7,500 
Fairy Garden Misc. Costs:    Lump Sum =   $     15,000 
Earth-Form Mounds/Tunnel/Grassing:   Lump Sum =   $     35,000 
Suspended Bridge/Boardwalk, Gravel Paving, etc.: 2,800 SF @ $35/SF =  $     98,000 
Outdoor Classroom/Fitness – 3,000 SF:   Lump Sum =   $     85,000 
Labyrinth/Maze:     Lump Sum =   $     20,000 
Picnic/Gathering Area #2 Paving, Tables, etc.: Lump Sum =   $     10,000 
Pollinator Garden – 10,000 SF:    Lump Sum =   $     50,000 
Landscaping, Boulders, Native Plants, etc.:  Lump Sum =   $     50,000 
 
Total:           $1,382,000 
10% Contingency:         $   138,200 
Total Project Construction Budget:       $1,520,200 
 
Other Costs: 
Contractor and Permit Fees for Entire Project (approximated): 10%  $   152,000 
Design + Engineering Fees – Entire Project (approximated):    8%  $   122,000 
 
Total Project Budget (Entire Project):       $1,794,200 

190



m

m

m

m

SCALE

0

N.T.S.

225'450' 450' 900'

N
or
th

Urban Design
Land Planning

Landscape Architecture
www.viz.design

McEachern Greenway ConnectivityMcEachern Greenway Connectivity
Concord, NC June 25, 2020Concord, NC June 25, 2020

CONCORD MALL

CHC N.E. HOSPITAL

BEVERLY HILLS
SCHOOL

DAVID PHILLIPS
ACTIVITY CENTER

FUTURE GREENWAY

BEVERLY HILLS PARK
BICYCLE ROUTE

CONCORD HIGH
SCHOOL

CITY OWNED
PROPERTY

WILSON ST. PARK

CITY OWNED
PROPERTY

CABARRUS COUNTY
SENIOR CENTER

DOWNTOWN
CONCORD

McGEE PARK

CURRENT
GREENWAY

DOWNTOWN
CONNECTOR

PROPOSED
SIDEWALK

LA
KE C

ONCORD
 RO

AD

BURRAGE ROAD

C
HU

RC
H 

ST
RE

ET

BR
A

N
C

HV
IE

W
 D

RI
VE

C
O

N
C

O
RD

 P
A

RK
W

A
Y

C
HU

RC
H 

ST
RE

ET

CABARRUS AVENUE

UN
IO

N
 STREET

BRA
N

C
HVIEW

 DRIVE

BR
A

N
C

HV
IE

W
 D

RI
VE

C
HURC

H STREET

CORBAN AVENUE

191



192



193



Exhibit A  

Northwest Community Park                     
Master Plan Scope  
City of Concord Parks & Recreation Department 
May 22, 2020  

194



 

   

CITY OF CONCORD, NC | NORTHWEST COMMUNITY PARK 2 

Project Understanding 
The proposed Northwest Community Park is located at 1252 Cox Mill Road in 
Concord, NC and consists of approximately 28.6 acres. The property consists of a 
mix of floodplain, wetlands and is heavyly forested with three existing (3) 
structures onsite. This intial scope is for Woolpert to prepare a park master plan 
though strong public partication while working very closely with the City staff and 
a steering committee.   

Team Management 
Woolpert’s management team is presented below: 
 
 Project Manager: Katie Thayer, PLA, ASLA 
 Project Director/ Principal: Andrew Pack, PLA, ASLA 

 
City of Concord’s project representatives: 
 
 Jason Pauling, AICP, Senior Park Planner 
 Sheila Lowry, Deputy Director of Parks and Recreation 

Scope of Services 

Task 1 – Start-up Project Meeting 
 

A. Start-Up Project Meeting: The Woolpert Team will assist with a start-up 
planning meeting with the Project Team that will include 
representatives from the Owner (City of Concord). Woolpert will meet 
with the team to outline and review: the anticipated master planning 
process; how the master planning process relates to the overall project 
schedule; available base mapping data; the timing of subconsultant 
services (survey, stream & wetland delineation, traffic impact analysis, 
etc.); and current programming needs already identified by the City or 
other studies. The meeting will cover the following information: 

1. Confirm the goals and objectives of the vision, the desired 
project outcomes, for the project at this stage and upon 
project completion. 

2. Project Issues / Challenges. The team can brainstorm potential 
issues and challenges with the project. 

3. Prepare and review the project’s “risk / mitigation” matrix. 
This document, prepared by the design team and augmented 
by the Steering Committee, will be used throughout the design 
phases of the project.  

4. Discuss responsibilities for the members of the Project Team 
and Steering Committee 

City of Concord  
Parks & Recreation Dept.  
147 Academy Avenue NW                   
PO Box 308                                
Concord, NC 28026-0308 
 
Jason T. Pauling, AICP 
Senior Planner  
P: 704-920-5641                                        
E: paulingj@concordnc.gov 
 

195



 

   

CITY OF CONCORD, NC | NORTHWEST COMMUNITY PARK 3 

5. Project Schedule (discuss any milestone dates, funding dates to proceed with the next project 
phase, etc.) 

6. Discuss base map information to be used for the master planning phase of the project (any 
known existing survey(s), utility easements, historic information, boundary survey, as-builts etc.).  

7. Identification of any City Standards to be incorporated into the design for the project, i.e., park 
elements, lighting, utility connections, and other site / building requirements.  

8. Begin to identify stakeholders/ focus groups and the public engagement process for the master 
planning efforts of the project.  

9. Discuss Optional Tasks not currently included in this Master Planning phase. 
i. Required survey for use in the construction document phase of the design process.   

ii. Traffic Impact Assessment (TIA) – start to define the scope of the study needs. 
iii. Wetland and Stream preliminary delineation needs. 

 
Task 2 – Research and Analysis 

A. Research and Analysis: The Woolpert Team will collect background information through a process of 
inventory and analysis. It is recommended at this time that the Consultant use the City of Concord, NC 
and Cabarrus County, NC GIS to obtain base information. Oher investigative steps include: 

1. Conduct on-site reconnaissance of the project area after notice to proceed, and prepare a 
photographic inventory keyed to a project aerial base map. Existing aerial photography shall 
come from NC OneMap unless the City or County has more recent imagery.  

2. Preliminary Wetlands Determination - A preliminary determination of the approximate 
boundaries of jurisdictional waters of the U.S., including wetlands and streams will be performed 
on the proposed park site after notice to proceed.  Potential wetland areas will be defined using 
the Routine On-Site Determination method as described in the 1987 "Corps of Engineers 
Wetlands Delineation Manual" and corresponding Regional Supplement. 

i. During field review efforts, a Global Positioning System (GPS) capable of sub foot 
accuracy will be utilized to obtain reference points for potential wetlands, streams, and 
other notable natural resources features on site.  Although this information can be used 
for preliminary project planning, it is intended for study purposes only. This task offers 
an approximate location of wetlands and streams that are subject to change following 
full delineation and verification by the USACE. 

ii. Scoping letters will be forwarded to the State Historic Preservation Office (SHPO) and 
the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (FWS) for agency input regarding potential cultural 
resources and protected species issues, respectively.  A database search of the N.C. 
Natural Heritage Program will also be completed. Responses are anticipated to be 
provided by the two agencies. 

iii. A map depicting the findings of the potential jurisdictional waters determination will be 
prepared; a GPS data file of reference points will also be provided.  A brief summary of 
findings/potential opportunities and recommended ‘next steps’ will be provided. 

3. Coordinate with the City of Concord Transportation Department and perform a transportation 
existing conditions assessment at the park property as the initial efforts toward a traffic impact 
analysis of the proposed park entrance along Cox Mill Road. Information that could be gathered 
includes traffic count research (AADT and Turning Movements); past studies/TIAs/forecast 
research; and school outreach for circulation patterns and bell schedules.   

4. Coordinate with City of Concord Engineering and Water Resource Departments to identify and 
confirm utility locations and connections. Also, work with City of Concord Water Resource 
Department and Planning Department to identify standards, review the permit process, and 
discuss areas for potential stormwater BMPs. 

196



 

   

CITY OF CONCORD, NC | NORTHWEST COMMUNITY PARK 4 

5. Study the City of Concord’s 2016 Comprehensive Parks & Recreation Master Plan, the City’s Open 
Space Connectivity Analysis, the City’s Planned Greenways, the City’s 2030 Land Use Plan, 
Cabarrus County’s Master Plans, and any other plans in effect that the City of Concord may 
recommend. Chart the program needs that are applicable for the proposed park from these 
documents. 

6. Coordinate with Cabarrus County Planning and Development, Cabarrus County Active Living & 
Parks, Cabarrus County Soil & Water Conservation, and Cabarrus County Schools. 

7. Review adjacent land use, neighborhoods, easements, and proposed development and 
coordinate with developers for other projects under construction. 

8. Identify pedestrian and vehicular connection locations with adjacent neighborhoods. 

9. After the initial research and a site visit, Woolpert will prepare a site composite analysis and site 
suitability map, graphically showing the various opportunities and constraints of the park 
property. This analysis will be based upon natural factors (topography/wetlands/soil/vegetation, 
etc.) and cultural factors (existing structures, utilities, zoning, parking capacity, surrounding land 
uses, roads, etc.) of the property.  
 

Task 3 – Needs Assessment - Public Participation  
 

A. Public Participation: The Woolpert Team will coordinate with City of Concord staff to assist with 
conducting three (3) Steering Committee (Stakeholder) meetings, one day of all focus group meetings, 
and three public community workshops. Steering Committee (stakeholder) and focus group meetings may 
occur using virtual teleconferencing, or in a physical setting that allows proper adherence of CDC and City 
of Concord COVID-19 policies if necessary. 

B. Steering Committee (Stakeholder) Meetings: Woolpert will engage a previously identified group of 
stakeholders in a series of meetings interspersed within the master planning process.  A maximum of 8 
people are recommended for the Steering Committee. They will work alongside two Woolpert 
representatives, for a total number of 10 people. 
1. Meeting #1 – Discussion in this meeting will consist of the information to be presented in the first 

Community Workshop, identification of focus groups, and potential park programming anticipate by 
the Steering Committee.  

2. Meeting #2 – Woolpert will present the findings of the focus groups and first public community 
workshop as two conceptual master plans to be discussed with the Steering Committee in 
anticipation of sharing the plans with the public in workshop #2. An estimate of probable 
construction costs for each scheme will also be presented along with potential phasing if required by 
budget and/or schedule. 

3. Meeting #3 – Woolpert will present the final non-rendered master plan and associated estimate of 
probable construction costs and construction phasing and open the floor to evaluation and discussion 
with the Steering Committee. Steering Committee feedback will be incorporated into the final 
rendered Master Plan. 

4. Woolpert and City staff will coordinate with City Council members on their presence at certain 
meetings during the master planning process (i.e. focus group meetings, public workshops, etc.).  

C. Non-Statistical Community Survey/ Questionnaire: Woolpert will work with City staff to develop the 
content of a non-statistical survey/ questionnaire for the project, in a format approved by the City’s Public 
Affairs Department. The team will tailor the survey specifically to the Northwest Community Park’s park 
programming needs. This non-statistical community survey/ questionnaire will be self-selecting and 
therefore the results cannot be generalized to the entire population of Concord, as opposed to a 
statistically valid survey process. This online method is a complimentary tool to the in-person public 

197



 

   

CITY OF CONCORD, NC | NORTHWEST COMMUNITY PARK 5 

community workshops and focus group meetings to broaden public participation, especially during the 
current Convid-19 pandemic situation. 

D. Focus Group Meetings: Woolpert will work with City staff to facilitate a day of meetings with various focus 
groups with strong connections to the community and/or the park site. This could be athletics 
associations, representatives of the police department and emergency services, students/parents, 
potential programming or funding partners, adjacent neighborhoods/residents, etc. Focus groups will be 
identified at the Startup Meeting under Task 1. 

E. Public Community Workshops: Woolpert will engage the public through three community workshops at 
the different stages of the master planning process. 
1. Meeting #1 – The primary goal of this first meeting is to educate the public on the park  site and the 

master planning process. Woolpert and the City of Concord will introduce the proposed project and 
the stages/phases of the entire project, with focus coming back on working toward a master plan. An 
interactive dialogue will ensue in which the community will start to identify needs, concerns, wants 
and issues. Woolpert will analyze the Community’s needs and determine their compatibility with the 
site.  

i. If it is possible to meet in person, it is anticipated that tables will be available to gather 
around, and that each table will have a copy of the scaled Suitability Map along with cut-out 
templates of various park elements (derived from 2016 P&R Comp. MP and staff) for 
participants to explore “park planning” their ideas for the park. 

2. Meeting #2 – Woolpert will present two conceptual master plan alternates for public review, 
feedback and comment. The story of the design alternates will be shared in the journey from analysis 
through public and focus group input and participation. At this time the project schedule could be 
revisited in conjunction with the conceptual plans to educate the public and set expectations. 
Woolpert will solicit any additional opinions and concerns generated from evaluation of the concepts. 

3. Meeting #3 – The goal of this last meeting is to present the preliminary master plan, reviewing the 
process of public participation to reinforce consensus. 

F. Woolpert will present the final rendered master plan to City Council toward their review and adoption of 
the park plan (see task 4, item 4 below). 

G. Public Input Meetings/Presentations Format Options: Woolpert proposes several alternate platform 
format options for hosting public meetings in lieu of an in-person, public forum should circumstances 
prevent physical meetings: 

1. Woolpert can pre-record presentations that are then posted on the City’s website and tied to social 
media for advertising, with a link to a webpage where the public can leave input. 

2. Woolpert can conduct a live event/meeting broadcast over a teleconference stage with potential break 
out rooms. 

3. Woolpert can work with the City to find an appropriate space to host a longer, rolling public meeting 
timeframe in which residents following CDC recommendations can be allowed in groups of 9 to be 
socially distanced with either a Woolpert representative or City Staff member who can facilitate smaller 
group presentations/discussions.  

 
 
Task 4 – Master Planning  
 

A. Conceptual Plans (for Second Steering Committee and Public Meetings as noted in Task 3): The Woolpert 
team will begin to generate two (2) concepts in which they have tested ideas/visions of the desired 
programs and suggestions obtained from the start-up meeting through the first public meeting. The team 
will also prepare an estimate of probable construction costs for each scheme along with potential phasing 
ideas if required by budget and/or schedule. 

198



 

   

CITY OF CONCORD, NC | NORTHWEST COMMUNITY PARK 6 

B. Preliminary Final Master Plan: The Woolpert team will prepare a preferred plan that will likely be a 
combination of the two conceptual plans. It will describe the intensity, nature and character of the 
development, assist the design process forward with managing expectations, outcomes and project costs, 
and respond to what was heard from the public along with current trends and opportunities. Program 
floorplan massing sketches in 2D of the proposed building(s) will be provided only. Master plan 
components will include the proposed uses and distribution of program elements. All of these tasks 
leading up to the final master plan will result in a prioritized park and recreation improvement plan 
toward park development. The final plan will be accompanied by preliminary costs and any add alternates 
to be considered within the projected total construction budget of the park. 

C. Master Plan Formal Presentation Meeting: Woolpert will issue the Preliminary Master Plan (graphic maps 
in AutoCAD) to the City (Steering Committee) for review and make final revisions to the plans. The team 
will submit all the final plan maps / graphics, including both hard copy and electronic formats. The 
graphics will be both full sized and at an appropriate scale. Woolpert will provide a final rendered site plan 
(at an appropriate scale, JPEGS and any PowerPoint information for use in marketing, etc.). In addition, 
the team will respond to edits that might have been identified for the massing building sketch of the 
proposed building(s). A more defined, rendered building perspective sketch is considered an optional task 
and listed below as item A.  

D. A final presentation will be held with City Council to present the findings of the master plan, along with 
the projected construction costs, phasing options and the projected implementation approach of the 
Phase-1 portion of the park development. Once it is approved by Council it will be designated as final. 

 
Final Deliverables – Tasks 1 - 4: 

1. Start-Up Meeting Minutes 
2. Aerial Map with Site Photography 
3. Map of Potential Jurisdictional Waters Determination 
4. Composite Analysis Map of Cultural and Natural Factors 
5. Site Suitability Map 
6. Steering Committee Meeting Minutes 
7. Focus Group Questionnaires and Meeting Minutes 
8. Photographic documentation of the public engagement plans and group priority lists 
9. Two Conceptual Plans  
10. Exploratory Estimate of Probable Cost for Each Concept 
11. Preliminary Final Master Plan & Final Master Plan 
12. Preliminary Estimate of Probable MP Cost  
13. Final Presentation  

 
Other Optional Tasks 
 

A. Building Rendering: The Woolpert team can provide a perspective view rendering of the proposed 
community/ recreation center for the project. This rendering will be a computer-generated rendering/ 
graphic and would likely be the front or street view elevation of the proposed building. This rendering will 
be a conceptual graphic only to help with the overall vision of the proposed facility to both the City 
Council and for the community.    

 
B. Building Programming:  Woolpert would obtain the services from a national recreational programmer (i.e. 

Greenplay), to perform a program identification assessment. This assessment will review how well the 
City aligns itself with community needs.  The goal of this process is to provide recreation program 
enhancements that result in successful and innovative recreation program offerings.  The Consulting 
Team will provide insight into recreation program trends from agencies all around the country.  Utilizing 
the community input, and preparing a demographic analysis, service provider analysis, and market 
definition, the Consulting Team will identify the recommended core programs for the proposed building 
(community/ recreation center and/or nature center).  This will include key activities and programs for 

199



 

   

CITY OF CONCORD, NC | NORTHWEST COMMUNITY PARK 7 

participants, as well as the potential size of the core program and market positioning in the region.  
Another optional scoping item in addition to the programming, would be to include a Financial Plan/Pro-
Forma for the building. This would include a space utilization summary based on detailed line item 
projections and detailed participation by program area.  

 
C. USACE Wetlands Delineation, Jurisdictional Determination, Permitting (404/401 Nationwide): It is 

anticipated that some disturbance will occur to the existing wetlands/onsite streams on the parcel with 
the proposed park development and possible sanitary sewer connection routing. It is recommended these 
services be reviewed immediately following the approval of the master plan in order to allow the design 
process to continue moving forward.  Woolpert’s sub-consultant (STV) will prepare the services required 
for the wetland delineation, and any necessary permitting.  These next steps include:  

1. Waters of the U.S. and Wetlands Delineations & Waters of the U.S. Boundary 
Verification/Jurisdictional Determination (JD) 

2. Section 404/401 Nationwide Permit 
 

D. Surveying : During the master planning phase, Woolpert will utilize the County’s/ City’s GIS mapping as 
the base mapping for the master plan. A physical survey will be required for construction documents and/ 
or any other engineering reviews for the proposed development. is recommended these services be 
reviewed immediately following the approval of the master plan in order to allow the design process to 
continue moving forward. In addition, survey any of the jurisdictional wetlands/ streams for the project 
area. Woolpert’s sub-consultant (Henson-Foley) will prepare the services as required for the project. 

 
E. Traffic Impact Assessment (TIA): It is recommended TIA services be reviewed immediately following the 

approval of the master plan in order to allow the design process to continue moving forward.  Woolpert’s 
sub-consultant (STV) will prepare a TIA for the park site (+/- 2-4 intersections per park) to include the 
following: 

 
1. Develop trip generation estimates 
2. Conduct turning movement counts 
3. Assign trip distribution 
4. Determine Intersection Level of Service 
5. Prepare Technical memorandum 

Project Schedule  

Woolpert shall perform the services as outlined in this proposal as expeditiously and consistent with professional 
skill and care and the orderly progress of the project. The schedule will be further discussed and provided at the 
start-up meeting, reviewed and redefined throughout each phase of the project as necessary. It is anticipated from 
the notice to proceed, Woolpert can complete the master planning services within six (6) months. The following is 
a tentative schedule: 
 

Task / Item Description 
Task 

Duration Total Days 
 

+/- Month 
Task 1: Start-up Project Meeting 15 days 15 days June 
Task 2: Research and Analysis 30 days 45 days July 
Task 3: Needs Assessment - Public 
Participation 

45 days 90 days August - September 

Task 4: Master Planning 45 days 135 days October 
Final Council Presentation 15 days 150 days November 

200



 

   

CITY OF CONCORD, NC | NORTHWEST COMMUNITY PARK 8 

Additional/ Optional Services 

The following services are currently not anticipated for the master planning phase of the project, but many items 
listed most likely will be added to the contract as an addendum. 
   

1. Providing construction documents, permitting, and construction administration. 
2. Conduct any services for programming, staffing & community / recreation center business plan 

analysis / proforma. 
3. Conducting additional project, stakeholder, focus group, community/workshops meetings or 

presentations not already stipulated in the scope of services. 
4. Providing services for a statically formal survey/questionnaire. 
5. Providing utility capacity studies and current as-built utility verification . 
6. Providing environmental investigations not already stipulated in the scope of services. 
7. Providing additional rendered drawings or models of the project not already stipulated in the 

scope of services. 
8. Providing surveying services in connection with the project not already stipulated in the scope of 

services. 
9. Providing any geotechnical, environmental engineering services . 
10. Providing any design services or coordination with adjoining property owners or offsite 

infrastructure (i.e. utilities, roadway). 
11. Providing additional drawings / maps for the project not already stipulated in the scope of 

services. 
12. Providing services resulting from significant changes in the extent of the project. 
13. Providing any other services not otherwise included in this Agreement or not customarily 

furnished in accordance with generally accepted architectural/engineering/planning practices. 

Lump Sum Compensation 
The following fees are based upon the aforementioned scope of work: 

 
Master Planning 
 
Task 1 – Start-up Project Meeting .................................................................................................................  $ 9,380.00 
Task 2 - Research and Analysis  .................................................................................................................... $ 25,380.00 
Task 3 - Needs Assessment - Public Participation ........................................................................................  $ 30,380.00 
Task 4 – Master Planning .............................................................................................................................  $ 17,580.00 
Other: 

 Reimbursable Expenses ....................................................................................................  $ 1,100.00 
 

 Total ........................... $ 83,820.00 
Other Optional Tasks 
 
A. Building Rendering .................................................................................................................................  $ 5,000.00 
B. Building Programming ..........................................................................................................................  $ 15,000.00 
C. USACE Wetlands: 

1. Waters of the U.S. and Wetlands Delineations & Waters of the U.S. Boundary 
Verification/Jurisdictional Determination (JD)  ...............................................................  $ 15,500.00 

2. Section 404/401 Nationwide Permit ...............................................................................  $ 17,250.00 
D. Surveying  .................................................................................................................................................. $ TBD 
E. Traffic Impact Assessment (TIA)  ...................................................................................................................  $ TBD 
F. Schematic Design, Design Development, Construction Documents and Permitting  .................................... $ TBD 
G. Bidding and Construction Administration ...................................................................................................... $ TBD 
 

201



202



203



204



205



206



207



208



209



210



211



212



213



214



215



216



217



RESOLUTION GRANTING AN EASEMENT 
 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Concord is owner of fee simple title to a parcel of land 
having a parcel identification number of 5527-44-5003-0000; and  

 
WHEREAS, Cabarrus Propco, LLC  is proposing to construct Rocky Mill Manor 

on Drake Mill Lane SW; and  
 
 WHEREAS, Cabarrus Propco, LLC needs to acquire a temporary construction 
easement in order to remove an old sediment and erosion control device that will 
require grading on the City’s parcel;  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of 

Concord, North Carolina:  
 

1. That an easement as shown on Exhibit “A” is hereby ordered granted.  
 
2.  The easement shall be conveyed by the City Attorney and other necessary 
staff or the Mayor to Cabarrus Propco LLC. 

 
3. The City Attorney and other City staff are hereby directed to take all 

necessary steps to enforce this resolution. 
 
 

Adopted this 9th day of July 2020. 
 
 
 CITY COUNCIL 
 CITY OF CONCORD 
 NORTH CAROLINA 
ATTEST: 
 
 ________________________________ 
__________________________ William C. Dusch, Mayor 
Kim Deason, City Clerk 
 
 

 

218



219

hydes
Typewritten Text
Exhibit A



220



Land Development Solutions
US HWY 601 S

NC HWY 49 S

NC HWY 49 N

D C DR

ZION CHURCH RD E

MIAMI CHURCH RD

AT
AN

DO
 RD

ZION CHURCH RD

PINEY CHURCH RD

FLO
WES STO

RE RD

LITAKER LN

GROUSE DR

NANNYBERRY LN

HEGLAR RD

SHELLBARK DR

WOODLAND DR SW

MA
NT

EO
 D

R

FAMOUS DR

OLD GLORY DR

PINTAIL DR

MORNING DEW DR

COUNTRY HOME RD

LANCASHIRE WAY

RAMSGATE DR SW

GOLDENEYE DR
LARCHLEA PL

TH
AN

ET
 ST

 SW

GLEN LAUREL DR

KATHRYN DR SE

CY CIR

LACOMA LN

WINBORNE AVE SW

WINDROSE LN SW

JESSICA LN

TO
M 

RE
ID 

RD

BRIGHT ORCHID AVE

BARTRAM AVE

UN
IO

N S
T S

WRENFIE
LD

 LN

CENTRAL HEIGHTS DR

MA
NS

TO
N 

PL
 SW

DE
NIS

E C
T S

W

RAINBOW ST SW

LITTLETON DR SW

MELANIE CT

RANDAL CT

LONG ARROW DR

KELLYBROOK DR SW

MEMORY LN

ACCENT AVE SE

CONTINENTAL DR

ITHACA DR

WEE
JU

NS
 DR

COUNTRY VIEW RD

PRINCE CIR

SIR RALEIGH DR

QUIET STREAM DR

BLOOMOVER ST

MELODY CT

BETHESDA PL

EUGENE PL SW

ELATIA
 CIR

WOODLAND CIR SW

ST
 AN

DR
EW

S P
L

ARMENTROUT DR SW

ERICKSON CT SE

AERSHIRE CT

GENERAL SERVICES DR SW

GREEN HAVEN CT

BIS
ON C

T

CHESWICK AVE SW

CHASTAIN AVE SW

GOLF BALL CIR

TA
MA

RA
C 

CT

PATRIOTS POINTE DR

BLANCHETTE CT

ZION CHURCH RD

Preliminary Application²

1 in = 1,000 ft 221



BN 39315585v3 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by and Return to Concord City Attorney ROD Box                      PIN: 4680-96-4101 
    
NORTH CAROLINA  
CABARRUS COUNTY  
 

STORMWATER CONTROL MEASURES (SCMs), ACCESS EASEMENT AND  
MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT  

 
 THIS STORMWATER CONTROL MEASURES (SCMs), ACCESS EASEMENT AND 
MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT (“Agreement”), made this     day of          , 
2020, by Blue Anchor, LLC, a North Carolina limited liability company, whose principal address is c/o 
Pamex, Inc., 4690 Vinita Ct., Chino, CA 91710 (hereinafter “Grantor”), with, to, and for the benefit of the 
City of Concord, a municipal corporation of the State of North Carolina, whose address is P.O. Box 308, 
Concord North Carolina 28026-0308, (hereinafter “Grantee” or “City”).  
 

W I T N E S S E T H: 
 
 WHEREAS, THE CITY COUNCIL ACCEPTED THIS STORMWATER CONTROL 
MEASURES (SCMs), ACCESS EASEMENT AND MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT ON  
  .   
 
 WHEREAS, Grantor is the owner in fee simple of certain real property situated in the City of 
Concord, County of Cabarrus, North Carolina and more particularly described as follows:  8400 
Westmoreland Drive NW, Concord, NC, Cabarrus County Property Identification Number (PIN): 4680-
96-4101. It being the land conveyed to Grantor by deed recorded in Books and Pages 13640/53 and 
13640/58 in the Office of the Register of Deeds for Cabarrus County (hereinafter referred to as the 
“Property”); and  
 
 WHEREAS, Grantor desires to develop or redevelop all or portions of the Property; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Property is located within the planning jurisdiction of the City of Concord, and 
is subject to certain requirements set forth in the City of Concord Code of Ordinances Chapter 60, the 
Concord Development Ordinance, (hereafter “CCDO”), and the Concord Technical Standards Manual 
(hereafter “Concord Manual”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, conditions for development and/or redevelopment of the Property includes (i) the 
construction, operation and maintenance of two (2) engineered stormwater control structures, namely a 

222



 2 

Dry Extended Detention Basin and a Sand Filter, as provided in the CCDO and the Concord Manual 
(the “Stormwater Control Measures” or “SCMs”), (ii) Grantor’s dedication of a non-exclusive access 
easement to the City, as described in this Agreement, for inspection and maintenance of the Stormwater 
Control Measures;  and (iii) the assumption by Grantor of certain specified maintenance and repair 
responsibilities; and 
 
 WHEREAS, this Agreement and the easements created herein are established in accordance 
with the requirements of N.C.G.S. Sec 143-211 et. seq., Article 4 of the CCDO and Article I of the 
Concord Manual; and 
  
 WHEREAS, Grantor has full authority to execute this Agreement so as to bind the Property and 
all current and future owners and/or assigns. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, for valuable consideration, including the benefits Grantor may derive 
there from, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, Grantor hereby dedicates, 
bargains, grants and conveys unto Grantee, and its successors and assigns, a perpetual, and irrevocable 
right and non-exclusive easement in gross (of the nature and character and to the extent hereinafter set 
forth) in, on, over, under, through and across those portions of the Property shown on the attached 
Exhibit “A” titled “Post Construction Control Easement Exhibit” and labeled “SCM Access and 
Maintenance Easement 25153 SQ.FT. 0.577 Acres”, for the purpose of inspection and maintenance 
of the Stormwater Control Measures (hereinafter referred to as “SCM Easements”).  Within the SCM 
Easements Grantor shall conduct best management practices as more fully set forth herein and in the 
CCDO and Concord Manual.  Also within the SCM Easements, Grantor shall construct, maintain, repair 
and reconstruct the Stormwater Control Measures or SCMs, which include (i) the SCMs and any other 
stormwater quantity and/or quality control devices and/or structures, described on the plans approved 
by the City of Concord and filed at the A.M. Brown Operations Center, 850 Warren Coleman Blvd., 
Concord, NC 28025; and (ii) access to the aforesaid SCMs across that portion of the Property shown on 
the attached Exhibit “A” from Westmoreland Drive N.W. 80’ Public R/W,  for the purpose of 
permitting City access, inspection and, in accordance with the terms of paragraph 4 of this Agreement, 
maintenance and repair of the SCMs, as more fully set forth herein and in the CCDO and Concord 
Manual.  Except as set forth herein, nothing  contained in this Agreement shall be deemed to be a gift 
or dedication of any portion of Grantor’s Property to the general public or for any public use or purpose 
whatsoever, and further except as  specifically provided herein for the benefit of the City, no rights, 
privileges or immunities of Grantor shall inure to the benefit of any third-party, nor shall any third-party 
be deemed to be a beneficiary of any of the provisions contained herein. 
 
 The additional terms, conditions, and restrictions of this Agreement are: 
  
 1.  The requirements pertaining to the SCM Easements are more fully set forth in the current 
adopted and published editions of the following four (4) documents: (i) Article 4 of the CCDO, (ii) 
Article I, Section 1 of the Concord Manual, (iii) the Dry Extended Detention Basin  and Sand Filter 
Inspection and Maintenance Plans attached as Exhibit “B” and (iv) as provided in the N.C. Dept. of 
Environment and Natural Resources (DENR) Stormwater Best Management Practices (BMP) Manual 
(the “NCDENR Manual”), all of which are incorporated herein by reference as if set forth in their 
entireties below. Grantor agree to abide by all applicable codes including, but not limited to, those set 
forth above. All provisions required by Code Section 4.4.6.B.1 are incorporated herein by reference, and 

223



 3 

Grantor agree to abide by said provisions. Grantor further agrees that Grantor shall perform the 
following, all at its sole cost and expense: 
 

a. All components of the SCMs and related improvements within the SCM Easements are 
to be kept in good working order. 
 
b. The components of the SCMs and related improvements within the SCM Easements 
shall be maintained by Grantor as described in “Exhibit B”, the Dry Extended Detention 
Basin and Sand Filter Inspection and Maintenance Plans.   

2.  Upon completion of the construction of the SCMs, Grantor’s N.C. registered professional 
engineer shall certify in writing to the Concord Director of Water Services that the SCMs and all 
components are constructed and initially functioning as designed.  Annual inspection reports (hereinafter 
referred to as “Annual Report(s)”) are required each year and shall be made by Grantor on the written 
schedule provided to Grantor in advance by the City.  The Annual Report(s) shall describe the condition 
and functionality of the SCMs, and shall describe any maintenance performed thereon during the 
preceding year.  The Annual Report(s) shall be submitted with the signature and seal of Grantor’s N.C. 
registered professional engineer conducting the inspection.  If necessary, the City will provide a letter 
describing the maintenance necessary to keep the SCMs and all components and structures related to 
the SCMs functioning as designed and with reasonable timeframes in which to complete the 
maintenance.  If the Annual Report(s) recommends maintenance actions, the repairs shall be made 
within a reasonable time as defined by the City. 

Grantor and Grantee understand, acknowledge and agree that the attached Inspection and 
Maintenance Plans describe the specific actions needed to maintain the SCMs. 
 
 3. Grantor represents and warrants that Grantor are financially responsible for construction, 
maintenance, repair and replacement of the SCMs, its appurtenances and vegetation, including 
impoundment(s), if any.  Grantor agrees to perform or cause to be performed the maintenance as outlined 
in the attached Inspection and Maintenance Plan and as provided in the NCDENR Manual.  Grantor and 
any subsequent transferee of Grantor or succeeding owner of the Property shall give the City written 
notice of the transfer of a fee or possessory interest in the Property listing the transferee’s name, address 
of the Property, transferee’s mailing address and other contact information.  Grantor and any subsequent 
transferee of Grantor or succeeding owner of the Property shall not be responsible for errors or omissions 
in the information about the transferee provided to the City caused by acts or omissions of the transferee.  
The transferee shall give the City written notice of the acceptance and any future transfer of an interest 
in the Property listing the transferee’s name, address of the Property; transferee’s mailing address and 
other contact information.  Upon the conveyance of the Property by Grantor to any transferee acquiring 
the Property by means of a conveyance document containing the language set forth in paragraph 9 below, 
Grantor are released from any further covenants or other obligations set forth in this Agreement.  
  
 4.  If Grantor fails to comply with these requirements, or any other obligations imposed herein, 
in the City of Concord Code of Ordinances, CDO, the Concord Manual or approved Inspection and 
Maintenance Plan, the City of Concord may perform (but is not obligated to perform) such work as 
Grantor is responsible for and recover the costs thereof from Grantor. 
 
 5.  This Agreement gives Grantee the following affirmative rights: 

224



 4 

 
 Grantee, its officers, employees, and agents may, but is not obligated, to enter the SCM 
Easements whenever reasonably necessary for the purpose of inspecting same to determine compliance 
herewith, to maintain same and make repairs or replacements to the SCMs, its appurtenances and 
condition(s) as may be necessary or convenient thereto in the event Grantor defaults in its obligations 
and to recover from Grantor the cost thereof, and in addition to other rights and remedies available to it, 
to enforce by proceedings at law or in equity the rights, covenants, duties, and other obligations herein 
imposed in this Agreement. 
 
 6.  Grantor shall neither obstruct nor hinder the passage of vehicular traffic and pedestrians 
within the paved portion of the access easement granted herein by Grantor to Grantee.   
 
 7.  Grantor shall, in all other respects, remain the fee owners of the Property and areas subject to 
the SCM Easements, and may make all lawful uses of the Property not inconsistent with this Agreement 
and the Easements granted herein. 
 
 8.  Grantee neither waives nor forfeits the right to act to ensure compliance with the terms, 
conditions and purposes of the SCM Easements and this Agreement by a prior failure to act.   
 
 9.  Grantor agrees:  
 
 a.  That a reference to the deed book and page number of this document in a form substantially 

similar to the following statement in at least a 12 point bold face font on the first page of the 
document: “Notice: The Property is subject to a Stormwater Control Measures (SCMs), 
Access Easement and Maintenance Agreement enforced by the City of Concord and State 
of North Carolina recorded in the Cabarrus County Registry at DB  PG    .” 
shall be inserted by Grantor in any subsequent deed or other legal instrument by which Grantor 
may be divested of either the fee simple title to or possessory interests in the subject Property. 
The designation Grantor and Grantee shall include the parties, their heirs, successors and assigns; 
and 

 
b. That the following statement shall be inserted in any deed or other document of conveyance:   
 
“Title to the property hereinabove described is subject to the following exceptions: 

 
That certain Stormwater Control Measures (SCMs), Access Easement and Maintenance 
Agreement dated   , 2020 with and for the benefit of the City of 
Concord, recorded in Book   , Page _____ in the Cabarrus County Registry, 
North Carolina, creating obligations of payment and performance on the part of Grantor which 
Grantee hereby assumes and agrees to perform and pay as part of the consideration of this 
conveyance and except further that this conveyance is made subject to any and all enforceable 
restrictions and easements of record (if applicable).” 
 
In the event that such conveyance is other than by deed, the above terms of “grantor/grantee” 
may be substituted by equivalent terms such as “landlord/tenant.” 

 

225



 5 

 TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the aforesaid rights, privileges, and easements herein granted to 
Grantee, its successors and assigns forever and Grantor do covenant that Grantor is seized of said 
premises in fee and has the right to convey the same, that except as set forth below the same are free 
from encumbrances and that Grantor will warrant and defend the said title to the same against claims of 
all persons whosoever. 
 
 Title to the Property hereinabove described is subject to all enforceable deeds of trust, liens, 
easements, covenants and restrictions of record. 
 
 The covenants agreed hereto and the conditions imposed herein shall be binding upon Grantor 
and its agents, personal representatives, heirs and assigns and all other successors in interest to Grantor 
and shall continue as a servitude running in perpetuity with the above-described land. 
 
 THE CONCORD CITY COUNCIL APPROVED THIS AGREEMENT AND SCM 
EASEMENTS AND ACCEPTED THE SCM EASEMENTS AT THEIR MEETING OF   
  , 2020 AS ATTESTED TO BELOW BY THE CITY CLERK.  CONCORD CITY 
COUNCIL APPROVAL OF THIS AGREEMENT AND EASEMENT IS A CONDITION 
PRECEDENT TO ACCEPTANCE BY THE CITY. 
 
 

[SIGNATURE PAGES FOLLOW] 
 
  
  

226



 6 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this instrument to be duly executed day and 
year first above written. 

 
GRANTOR: 
 
Blue Anchor, LLC, a North Carolina limited liability 
company 
 
By:        
Name:      , Manager 
 
 
GRANTEE: 
 
City of Concord, a municipal corporation 
 
By:____________________________________ 

Lloyd Wm. Payne, Jr., City Manager 
ATTEST: 
 
    
Kim J. Deason, City Clerk 
[SEAL] 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM 
 
________________________________ 
VaLerie Kolczynski, City Attorney 
 
 
 
 
  

227



 7 

STATE OF     
COUNTY OF    
 
 I, __________________, a Notary Public of the aforesaid County and State, do hereby certify 
that       personally appeared before me this day and acknowledged that he 
is the Manager of Blue Anchor, LLC, a North Carolina limited liability company and that he/she as 
Manager being authorized to do so, executed the foregoing on behalf of the company. 
  
 WITNESS my hand and Notarial Seal this the _____ day of ____________, 2020 
  

 
____________________________________ 
Notary Public 
My commission expires:_________________ 

 
 
 
 
 

 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
COUNTY OF CABARRUS 
 
 I, _________________________________, a Notary Public of the aforesaid County and State, 
do hereby certify that Kim J. Deason personally appeared before me this day and acknowledged that she 
is the City Clerk of the City of Concord and that by authority duly given and as the act of the municipal 
corporation, the foregoing STORMWATER CONTROL MEASURES (SCMs), ACCESS EASEMENT 
AND MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT was approved by the Concord City Council at its meeting held 
on       and was signed in its name by its 
City Manager, sealed with its corporate seal and attested by her as its City Clerk. 
 
 WITNESS my hand and notarial seal, this the _____ day of _______________, 2020. 
 
  ____________________________________ 
  Notary Public       
  My commission expires:______________  
 
 
 

228



  
                          

ORD.  #  

 

GRANT PROJECT ORDINANCE AMENDMENT 
    

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Concord, North Carolina 
that pursuant to Section 13.2 Chapter 159 of the General Statutes of North Carolina, 
the following grant project ordinance is hereby amended: 
 

SECTION 1. The project authorized and amended are the projects included 
in the HOME 2019 and 2021 Grants. 

 
SECTION 2. The City Manager is hereby authorized to proceed with the 

implementation and amendments of the projects within the 
terms of the plans and specifications for the projects. 

 
 SECTION 3. The following revenues are anticipated to be 

available to the City of Concord for the completion of the 
projects: 

  Revenues 

Account Title 
 Current 
Budget  

 Amended 
Budget  

 
(Decrease)  
Increase 

320-4334606    
320-4334606 Home Grant Revenue 2019 $43,334 $0 ($43,334) 
 Total    ($43,334) 
     

          
SECTION 4.  The following amounts are appropriated for the project 
     

Expenses/Expenditures 

Account Title 
 Current 
Budget  

 Amended 
Budget  

 
(Decrease)  
Increase 

3209-5121000 
3209-5121000 Regular $31,683 $0 ($31,683) 
3209-5181000 
3209-5181000 FICA $ 2,423 $0 ($ 2,423) 
3209-5182000 
3209-5182000 Retirement-General $ 3,216 $0 ($ 3,216) 
3209-5183000 
3209-5183000 Group Insurance $3,641 $0 ($ 3,641) 
3209-5187000 
3209-5187000 401K Contribution $ 1,109 $0 ($ 1,109) 
3209-5294000 
3209-5294000 Misc Pay $   943 $0 ($   943) 
3211-5294000 
3211-5294000 Misc Pay $   319 $0 ($   319) 

   
Total                 ($43,334) 

   
 SECTION 5. Accounting records are to be maintained by the Finance 
Department of the City of Concord in such manner as (1) to provide all information 
required by the project agreement and other agreements executed or to be executed 
with the arious parties involved with the project; and (2) to comply with the Local 
Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act of the State of North Carolina. 
 

SECTION 6. Within five (5) days after adoption, copies of this grant projects 
ordinance shall be filed with the City Manager, Finance Director, and City Clerk for 
direction in carrying out this project. 
 

     SECTION 7. The Finance Director is directed to report on the financial status 
of this project in accordance with the existing City policy.  She shall also report to 
the City Manager any unusual occurrences. 

 
Duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Concord, North Carolina this         

229



  
9th day of July, 2020. 
       CITY COUNCIL 
       CITY OF CONCORD 
       NORTH CAROLINA  
    
       ____________________________ 
       William C. Dusch, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:_____________________  ______________________________ 
              Kim Deason, City Clerk   VaLerie Kolczynski, City Attorney 

230



ORD.   

 

CAPITAL RESERVE FUND ORDINANCE  
 

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Concord, North Carolina 
that pursuant to Section 18-22 Chapter 159 of the General Statutes of North 
Carolina, the following Capital Reserve Fund ordinance is hereby adopted/amended: 
 

SECTION 1.  The purpose authorized is to accumulate funds for future 
projects and capital outlay that are listed in the Capital Improvement Plan Listing or 
the City’s Operating Budget.  Funds will be accumulated until such time the City 
Council designates the funds for projects.  The General Fund will serve as the 
funding source for the Capital Reserve Fund upon City Council approval and 
withdrawals must be approved by City Council through an ordinance. 

 
SECTION 2.  The City Manager is hereby authorized to proceed with the 

implementation and amendments of the fund. 
 
SECTION 3. The following revenues are anticipated to be 

available/expenditures anticipated to be expended to the City of Concord for this fund 
& the following amounts are appropriated for the project: 
 

Fund 285  General Capital Reserve Fund 
 

  Budget Amended Budget Inc (Dec) 
 
8150-5987000 
8150-5987000 
 
8150-5989000 
8150-5989000 
 
 

 
To Project 
Fund 
 
To Golf 
Fund 
 
 

 
 
$3,784,444 
 
 
$35,200 
 

 

 
 

$0 
 
 

$0 
 

 

 
 
($3,784,444) 
 
 
($35,200) 
 

 

285-4501100 
285-4501100 
 

From 
General 
Fund 
 

 
$31,310,457 
 

 
$27,490,813 
 

 
($3,819,644) 
 

  
SECTION 4. Accounting records are to be maintained by the Finance 

Department of the City of Concord in such manner as (1) to provide all information 
required by the capital reserve fund and (2) to comply with the Local Government 
Budget and Fiscal Control Act of the State of North Carolina. 
 

SECTION 5. Within five (5) days after adopted, copies of this capital reserve 
fund amendments/adoption shall be filed with the City Manager, Finance Director, 
and City Clerk for direction in carrying out the purpose of this fund. 
 

     SECTION 6. The Finance Director is directed to report on the financial status of 
this fund in accordance with the existing City policy.  She shall also report to the City 
Manager any unusual occurrences. 
 

Duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Concord, North Carolina this 9th 

day of July, 2020. 
 

       CITY COUNCIL 
       CITY OF CONCORD 
       NORTH CAROLINA 
       
             
       ____________________________ 
       William C. Dusch, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: ______________________  ______________________________ 
                Kim Deason, City Clerk  VaLerie Kolczynski, City Attorney 

231



ORD.   

 

CAPITAL PROJECT ORDINANCE  
Utility Capital Reserve 

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Concord, North Carolina 
that pursuant to Section 13.2 Chapter 159 of the General Statutes of North Carolina, 
the following project ordinance is hereby ordained: 
 

SECTION 1. The purpose authorized is to accumulate funds for future projects 
and capital outlay that are listed in the Capital Improvement Plan Listing or the City’s 
Operating Budget.  Funds will be accumulated until such time the City Council 
designates the funds for projects.  The Utility Funds will serve as the funding sources 
for the Capital Reserve Fund upon City Council approval and withdrawals must be 
approved by City Council through an ordinance.  The project authorized and 
amended is utility capital project reserves. 

 
SECTION 2.  The City Manager is hereby authorized to proceed with the 

implementation and amendments of the project/projects within the terms of the plans 
and specifications for the projects. 

 
SECTION 3. The following revenues/expenditures are anticipated to be 

available to the City of Concord for the project: 
         

 

Account Title 
 Current 
Budget  

 Amended 
Budget  

 (Decrease) 
Increase  

 
282-4501610 
282-4501610 

 
8120-5987000 
8120-5987000 
 

 

 
From Electric 
 
 
Transfer to Electric 
Projects 
 
 

 
$19,299,415 

 
 
 

$3,416,725 
 
 

 
$15,882,690 

 
 
 

$0 
 

 

 
($3,416,725) 

 
 
 

($3,416,725) 
 

 
     

SECTION 4. Accounting records are to be maintained by the Finance 
Department of the City of Concord in such manner as (1) to provide all information 
required by the grant agreement and other agreements executed or to be executed 
with the various parties involved with the project; and (2) to comply with the Local 
Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act of the State of North Carolina. 
 

SECTION 5. Within five (5) days after adopted, copies of this grant project 
amendment shall be filed with the City Manager, Finance Director, and City Clerk for 
direction in carrying out this project. 
 

     SECTION 6. The Finance Director is directed to report on the financial status of 
this project in accordance with the existing City policy.  She shall also report to the 
City Manager any unusual occurrences. 
 

Duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Concord, North Carolina this 9th 
day of July, 2020. 

 
       CITY COUNCIL 
       CITY OF CONCORD 
       NORTH CAROLINA 
       
             
       ____________________________ 
       William C. Dusch, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: ______________________  ______________________________ 
                Kim Deason, City Clerk  VaLerie Kolczynski, City Attorney 

232



ORD.   

 

CAPITAL PROJECT ORDINANCE  
 

Water Projects 
  

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Concord, North Carolina 
that pursuant to Section 13.2 Chapter 159 of the General Statutes of North Carolina, 
the following project ordinance is hereby ordained: 
 

SECTION 1. The projects authorized and amended are Water Projects-
Corban Avenue Pump Station. 

 
SECTION 2.  The City Manager is hereby authorized to proceed with the 

implementation and amendments of the projects within the terms of the plans and 
specifications for the projects. 

 
SECTION 3. The following revenues/expenditures are anticipated to be 

available to the City of Concord for the project: 
         

 

Account Title 
 Current 
Budget  

 Amended 
Budget  

 (Decrease) 
Increase  

 
8700-5811327 
8700-5811327 
8700-5811082 
8700-5811082 

 
 
Roberta Road Line 
 
Future Water Projects 

 
 

$35,000 
 

$3,562 

 
 

$0 
 

$38,562 

 
 

($35,000) 
 

$35,000 
     

SECTION 4. Accounting records are to be maintained by the Finance 
Department of the City of Concord in such manner as (1) to provide all information 
required by the grant agreement and other agreements executed or to be executed 
with the various parties involved with the project; and (2) to comply with the Local 
Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act of the State of North Carolina. 
 

SECTION 5. Within five (5) days after adopted, copies of this grant project 
amendment shall be filed with the City Manager, Finance Director, and City Clerk for 
direction in carrying out this project. 
 

     SECTION 6. The Finance Director is directed to report on the financial status of 
this project in accordance with the existing City policy.  She shall also report to the 
City Manager any unusual occurrences. 
 

Duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Concord, North Carolina this 9th 
day of July, 2020. 

 
       CITY COUNCIL 
       CITY OF CONCORD 
       NORTH CAROLINA 
       
             
       ____________________________ 
       William C. Dusch, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: ______________________  ______________________________ 
                Kim Deason, City Clerk  VaLerie Kolczynski, City Attorney 
 

233



   
ORD.  #  

 
CAPITAL PROJECT ORDINANCE AMENDMENT 

Wastewater Projects 
 

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Concord, North Carolina that pursuant to Section 13.2 
 Chapter 159 of the General Statutes of North Carolina, the following project ordinance is hereby 
 adopted/amended: 
 

SECTION 1. The projects authorized are the projects included for the Havencrest Outfall project. 
 
SECTION 2. The City Manager is hereby authorized to proceed with the implementation and amendments 

of the projects within the terms of the plans and specifications for the projects. 
 
 SECTION 3. The following revenues are anticipated to be available to the City of Concord for the 

completion of the projects: 
 

Revenues 

Account Title 
 Current 
Budget  

 
Amended 
Budget  

 
(Decrease) 
 Increase 

     
     

 
SECTION 4. The following amounts are appropriated for the project: 

Expenses/Expenditures 

Account Title 
 Current 
Budget  

 
Amended 
Budget  

 
(Decrease) 
 Increase 

8402-5811082 
8402-5811082 
8402-5801163 
8402-5801163 
8402-5801164 
8402-5801164 
8402-5801150 
8402-5801150 
8402-5801162 
8402-5801162 
8402-5801161 
8402-5801161 

 
Future Projects 
 
Irish Buffalo to Central 
 
Irish Buffalo to Aaron 
 
Havencrest 
 
Lincoln to Broad 
 
Wilshire to Sedgefield 
 

0 
 

100,000 
 

155,000 
 

617,188 
 

1,713,000 
 

285,000 
 

2,795,400 
 
0 
 
0 
 

74,788 
 
0 
 
0 
 

2,795,400 
 
(100,000) 

 
(155,000) 

 
(542,400) 

 
(1,713,000) 

 
(285,000) 

 
 Total    0 

 
SECTION 5. Accounting records are to be maintained by the Finance Department of the City of Concord in 

such manner as (1) to provide all information required by the project agreement and other agreements executed or to 
be executed with the various parties involved with the project; and (2) to comply with the Local Government Budget 
and Fiscal Control Act of the State of North Carolina. 
 

SECTION 6. Within five (5) days after adoption, copies of this capital projects ordinance shall be filed with 
the City Manager, Finance Director, and City Clerk for direction in carrying out this project. 

 
 SECTION 7. The Finance Director is directed to report on the financial status of this project in accordance 

with the existing City policy, and shall also report to the City Manager any unusual occurrences. 
 

Duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Concord, North Carolina this 9th day July, 2020. 
        
 
 CITY COUNCIL 
       CITY OF CONCORD 
       NORTH CAROLINA  
    
                                                                               ____________________________ 
       William C. Dusch, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:_____________________  ______________________________ 
              Kim Deason, City Clerk   Valerie Kolczynski, City Attorney 

234



Outstanding Debt of the City of Concord
30-Jun-20

   
7/1/2020 FYE 2021 FYE 2021

 Revenue Bonds Principal Final Avg Use of Principal Interest
Series Description Outstanding Maturity Coupon Proceeds Due Due

Series 2012 Utility System Revenue Bonds-Refunding $10,870,000 12/1/2028 4.080% Water/Electric $1,005,000 $393,581
Series 2019 Utility System Revenue Bonds-Refunding $6,572,000 12/1/2022 1.670% Water/Electric/Sewer $2,154,000 $91,767
Series 2016 Utility System Revenue Bonds-Refunding $18,340,000 12/1/2035 4.684% Water/Electric/Sewer $780,000 $848,600
TOTAL $35,782,000 4.337% $3,939,000 $1,333,948

7/1/2020 FYE 2021 FYE 2021
 Non General Obligation Debt Balance Final Interest Use of Principal Interest

Series Description Outstanding Maturity Rates Proceeds Due Due
Series 2010 Limited Obligation $845,000 6/1/2021 2.5% to 4% *General/Aviation $845,000 $33,800
Series 2014A Limited Obligation $22,120,000 6/1/2034 2.0% to 5% **Building/Telecommunication $1,445,000 $936,031
Series 2014B Limited Obligation $915,000 6/1/2021 .60% to 2.75% Golf Course $915,000 $25,163
11/10/2015 Installment Purchase $4,305,000 5/1/2030 2.420% Parking Facility-Aviation $386,000 $104,181
10/11/2017 Installment Purchase Refunding 07 IPA $4,767,329 6/30/2028 2.040% ***Aviation/Fire Station $685,455 $93,732
10/8/2019 Installment Purchase $910,000 10/1/2029 2.630% Airport Hangar $91,000 $22,736
11/15/2004 Installment Purchase $993,750 11/15/2024 5.010% Aviation-Hendrick Hangar $225,000 $44,620
TOTAL $34,856,079  $4,592,455 $1,260,263

$70,638,079 $8,531,455 $2,594,211

* Streets, Aviation, Parks, Fire Building, Parking, Equipment
** City Hall, Police HQ, Telecommunication Equip.

*** Land, Hangar, N Taxiway, Fuel Farm, Fire Station 9

Notes   
2014 LOBS refunded the 2005 COPS 
2017 IPA refunding 2008 IPA
2016 Utility Revenue Bonds refunded 2008 bonds
2019 Utility Revenue Bonds refunded 2009B bonds

 

235



Tax Report for Fiscal Year 2019-2020
FINAL REPORT May

Property Tax Receipts- Munis  
2019 BUDGET YEAR 54852.97
2018 4524.2
2017 1994.64
2016 2732.8
2015 77.94
2014 60
2013 224.05
2012 134.68
2011 109.42
2010 120.19
Prior Years 9.32
Interest 4,937.68             
Refunds

69,777.89           

Vehicle Tax Receipts- County
2019 BUDGET YEAR 347,001.92         
2018
2017
2016
2015
2014
2013 17.09                  
Prior Years
Penalty & Interest 2,804.20             
Refunds

349,823.21         

Fire District Tax - County
2019 BUDGET YEAR 3775.76

   Less: Collection Fee from County
Net Ad Valorem Collections 423,376.86         

423:Vehicle Tag Fee-Transportion Impr Fund 32,014.18           
100:Vehicle Tag Fee 129,981.65         
292:Vehicle Tag Fee-Transportion Fund 32,014.18           
   Less Collection Fee - Transit 
Net Vehicle Tag Collection 194,010.01         

Privilege License 883.75                
Prepaid Privilege Licenses
Privilege License interest
Total Privilege License 883.75                

 

Oakwood Cemetery current 6,800.00               
Oakwood Cemetery endowment 466.66                
Rutherford Cemetery current 4,650.02               
Rutherford Cemetery endowment 933.32                
West Concord Cemetery current 2,450.00             
West Concord Cemetery endowment 1,200.00             
Total Cemetery Collections 16,500.00           

Total Collections 634,770.62$       

236



 
Current Year
Original Scroll
    Levy
    Penalty
    Adjustments
Public Service 
    Levy
    Penalty
Discoveries/Annex 3,700.51             
Discovery Penalty
Total Amount Invoiced - Monthly 3,700.51             
Total Amount Invoiced - YTD 51,582,968.70    

Current Year
Less Abatements (Releases)
    Real 311.55                
    Personal
    Discovery
    Penalty - all
Total Abatements 311.55                

Adjusted Amount Invoiced - monthly 3,388.96
Adjusted Amount Invoiced - YTD 51,478,994.86    

 
Current Levy Collected 54,852.97           
Levy Collected from previous years 9,987.24             
Penalties & Interest Collected 4,937.68              
Current Month Write Off - Debit/Credit -                      
Total Monthly Collected 69,777.89           
Total Collected - YTD 51,651,933.92    

Total Collected - net current levy -YTD 51,326,173.97    

Percentage of Collected -current levy      99.70%

Amount Uncollected - current year levy 152,820.89         

Percentage of Uncollected - current levy 0.30%

100.00%

   

  

237



CITY OF CONCORD

RELEASES 
CITY OF CONCORD 311.55$                
CONCORD DOWNTOWN -$                     

REFUNDS 
CITY OF CONCORD 548.14$                
CONCORD DOWNTOWN -$                     

DISCOVERIES
CITY OF CONCORD

TaxYear Real Personal Total Rate Calculated Penalties
2015 0 0 0 0.0048 0.00 0.00
2016 0 0 0 0.0048 0.00 0.00
2017 770,940 0 770,940 0.0048 3,700.51 0.00
2018 770,940 0 770,940 0.0048 3,700.51 0.00
2019 770,940 0 770,940 0.0048 3,700.51 0.00
2020 0 0 0 0.0048 0.00 0.00

Total 2,312,820 0 2,312,820 11,101.54$        -$              

DOWNTOWN 
TaxYear Real Personal Total Rate Calculated Penalties

2017 0 0 0 0.0023 0.00 0.00
2018 0 0 0 0.0023 0.00 0.00
2019 0 0 0 0.0023 0.00 0.00
2020 0 0 0 0.0023 0.00 0.00

Total 0 0 0 -$                   -$              

Summary of Releases, Refunds and Discoveries for the Month of May 2020

238



Description CUSIP/Ticker Face Amount/Shares Cost Value Maturity Date YTM @ Cost % of Portfolio Settlement Date Cost Price Days To Maturity

CP BANCO SANTANDER SA 0 8/12/2020 05970RHC2 5,000,000.00 4,950,622.20 08/12/2020 1.778 1.42 N/A 99.012444 73

CP BARCLAYS BANK 0 2/19/2021 06742VHX2 5,000,000.00 4,976,319.44 02/19/2021 0.623 1.42 N/A 99.526389 264

CP CHESHAM 0 10/22/2020 16536HKN0 5,000,000.00 4,939,206.94 10/22/2020 1.711 1.41 N/A 98.784139 144

CP CHESHAM 0 6/16/2020 16536HFG1 5,000,000.00 4,952,730.55 06/16/2020 1.888 1.42 N/A 99.054611 16

CP CREDIT SUISSE 0 1/29/2021 2254EANV1 5,000,000.00 4,982,570.83 01/29/2021 0.472 1.43 N/A 99.651417 243

CP NATIXIS 0 12/18/2020 63873JMJ6 5,000,000.00 4,960,488.89 12/18/2020 1.129 1.42 N/A 99.209778 201

CP NATIXIS 0 7/2/2020 63873JG20 5,000,000.00 4,981,850.00 07/02/2020 1.084 1.42 N/A 99.637 32

CP PRUDENTIAL PLC 0 10/26/2020 7443M2KS4 5,000,000.00 4,952,272.22 10/26/2020 1.434 1.42 N/A 99.045444 148

CP TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT 0 11/19/2020 89233GLK0 5,000,000.00 4,961,422.22 11/19/2020 1.129 1.42 N/A 99.228444 172

CP TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT 0 7/23/2020 89233GGP5 5,000,000.00 4,943,729.15 07/23/2020 1.871 1.41 N/A 98.874583 53

CPMUFGBANKLTD/NY 0 8/21/2020 62479LHM0 5,000,000.00 4,947,075.00 08/21/2020 1.759 1.41 N/A 98.9415 82

Sub Total / Average Commercial Paper 55,000,000.00 54,548,287.44 1.351 15.60 99.179551 130

FFCB 0.8 4/22/2024-21 3133ELXC3 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 04/22/2024 0.800 1.43 N/A 100 1,422

FFCB 1.24 3/10/2023-21 3133ELRZ9 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 03/10/2023 1.240 1.43 N/A 100 1,013

FFCB 1.48 3/10/2026-21 3133ELSC9 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 03/10/2026 1.480 1.43 N/A 100 2,109

FFCB 1.55 3/30/2027-23 3133ELUN2 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 03/30/2027 1.550 1.43 N/A 100 2,494

FFCB 1.69 2/12/2024-21 3133ELMJ0 5,000,000.00 4,999,500.00 02/12/2024 1.693 1.43 N/A 99.99 1,352

FFCB 1.7 9/27/2022-21 3133EKS31 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 09/27/2022 1.700 1.43 N/A 100 849

FFCB 1.71 11/25/2022-20 3133ELAU8 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 11/25/2022 1.710 1.43 N/A 100 908

FFCB 1.89 3/2/2027-21 3133ELQH0 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 03/02/2027 1.890 1.43 N/A 100 2,466

FFCB 1.89 9/27/2024-21 3133EKU20 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 09/27/2024 1.890 1.43 N/A 100 1,580

FFCB 1.93 10/30/2023-20 3133EK4A1 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 10/30/2023 1.930 1.43 N/A 100 1,247

FFCB 2.09 7/1/2022-20 3133EKTA4 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 07/01/2022 2.090 1.43 N/A 100 761

FFCB 2.11 7/22/2022-20 3133EKVP8 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 07/22/2022 2.110 1.43 N/A 100 782

FFCB 2.14 9/4/2026-20 3133EKL53 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 09/04/2026 2.140 1.43 N/A 100 2,287

FFCB 2.2 7/24/2023-20 3133EKWZ5 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 07/24/2023 2.200 1.43 N/A 100 1,149

City of  Concord
Portfolio  Holdings
Monthly  Investments to  Council
Report  Format:  By  C U S I P /  Ticker
Group  By:  Security  Type
Average  By:  Cost  Value
Portfolio /  Report  Group:  All  Portfolios
As of 5/31/2020

Commercial Paper

FFCB Bond

239



FFCB 2.23 7/8/2024-20 3133EKTT3 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 07/08/2024 2.230 1.43 N/A 100 1,499

FFCB 2.36 6/17/2024-20 3133EKQW9 5,000,000.00 4,998,750.00 06/17/2024 2.365 1.43 N/A 99.975 1,478

Sub Total / Average FFCB Bond 80,000,000.00 79,998,250.00 1.814 22.88 99.997813 1,462

FHLB 0.67 5/11/2023-20 3130AJK73 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 05/11/2023 0.670 1.43 N/A 100 1,075

FHLB 1.125 7/14/2021 3130A8QS5 740,000.00 708,002.40 07/14/2021 2.621 0.20 N/A 95.676 409

FHLB 1.375 2/18/2021 3130A7CV5 600,000.00 582,384.00 02/18/2021 2.383 0.17 N/A 97.064 263

FHLB 1.55 3/25/2024-21 3130AJAX7 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 03/25/2024 1.550 1.43 N/A 100 1,394

FHLB 1.73 6/30/2022-20 3130AHSG9 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 06/30/2022 1.730 1.43 N/A 100 760

FHLB 1.77 7/22/2024-21 3130AHWG4 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 07/22/2024 1.770 1.43 N/A 100 1,513

FHLB 1.77 8/28/2024-20 3130AJA90 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 08/28/2024 1.770 1.43 N/A 100 1,550

FHLB 1.85 7/6/2023-20 3130AHUA9 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 07/06/2023 1.850 1.43 N/A 100 1,131

FHLB 1.875 10/28/2024-21 3130AHUU5 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 10/28/2024 1.875 1.43 N/A 100 1,611

FHLB 1.875 11/29/2021 3130AABG2 875,000.00 853,965.00 11/29/2021 2.721 0.24 N/A 97.596 547

FHLB 1.9 11/27/2020-18 3130ACTU8 5,000,000.00 4,995,000.00 11/27/2020 1.935 1.43 N/A 99.9 180

FHLB 1.92 8/28/2024-20 3130AGXN0 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 08/28/2024 1.920 1.43 N/A 100 1,550

FHLB 1.97 9/11/2024-20 3130AH2B8 5,000,000.00 4,980,000.00 09/11/2024 2.055 1.42 N/A 99.6 1,564

FHLB 2 9/26/2022-20 3130AH5RO 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 09/26/2022 2.000 1.43 N/A 100 848

FHLB 2.16 7/13/2026-20 3130AHUT8 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 07/13/2026 2.160 1.43 N/A 100 2,234

FHLB 2.32 11/1/2029-22 3130AHEU3 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 11/01/2029 2.320 1.43 N/A 100 3,441

FHLB 3 10/12/2021 3130AF5B9 880,000.00 905,660.34 10/12/2021 1.634 0.26 N/A 102.915948 499

Sub Total / Average FHLB Bond 68,095,000.00 68,025,011.74 1.838 19.46 99.901876 1,405

FHLMC 0.27 5/19/2022-21 3134GVWZ7 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 05/19/2022 0.270 1.43 N/A 100 718

FHLMC 0.3 8/26/2022-21 3134GVYZ5 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 08/26/2022 0.300 1.43 N/A 100 817

FHLMC 0.35 11/18/2022-21 3134GVVY1 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 11/18/2022 0.350 1.43 N/A 100 901

FHLMC 0.375 11/4/2022-20 3134GVQU5 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 11/04/2022 0.375 1.43 N/A 100 887

FHLMC 0.375 2/21/2023-21 3134GVXB9 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 02/21/2023 0.375 1.43 N/A 100 996

FHLMC 0.375 4/20/2023 3137EAEQ8 1,290,000.00 1,291,301.24 04/20/2023 0.341 0.37 N/A 100.100871 1,054

FHLMC 1 4/21/2025-21 3134GVLE6 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 04/21/2025 1.000 1.43 N/A 100 1,786

FHLMC 1.25 3/26/2025-21 3134GVHG6 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 03/26/2025 1.250 1.43 N/A 100 1,760

FHLMC 1.6 9/28/2020-18 3134GBF64 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 09/28/2020 1.600 1.43 N/A 100 120

FHLMC 1.75 6/23/2022-20 3134GUZY9 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 06/23/2022 1.750 1.43 N/A 100 753

FHLMC 1.75 8/25/2022-20 3134GUTK6 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 08/25/2022 1.750 1.43 N/A 100 816

FHLMC 1.875 3/28/2024-21 3134GUEN6 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 03/28/2024 1.875 1.43 N/A 100 1,397

FHLMC 1.9 6/30/2023-20 3134GUK58 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 06/30/2023 1.900 1.43 N/A 100 1,125

FHLMC 2.25 11/24/2020-18 3134GBX56 5,000,000.00 5,014,000.00 11/24/2020 2.151 1.43 N/A 100.28 177

FHLMC 2.375 1/13/2022 3137EADB2 2,175,000.00 2,166,191.35 01/13/2022 2.520 0.62 N/A 99.595007 592

FHLB Bond

FHLMC Bond

240



FHLMC 2.375 2/16/2021 3137EAEL9 1,000,000.00 998,264.53 02/16/2021 2.436 0.29 N/A 99.826453 261

Sub Total / Average FHLMC Bond 69,465,000.00 69,469,757.12 1.196 19.87 100.006962 924

FNMA 0.6 4/20/2023-21 3136G4UZ4 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 04/20/2023 0.600 1.43 N/A 100 1,054

FNMA 1.25 5/6/2021 3135G0K69 625,000.00 600,577.41 05/06/2021 2.610 0.17 N/A 96.092386 340

FNMA 1.25 8/17/2021 3135G0N82 2,020,000.00 1,934,922.38 08/17/2021 2.733 0.55 N/A 95.788318 443

FNMA 1.375 10/7/2021 3135G0Q89 2,675,000.00 2,556,023.37 10/07/2021 2.961 0.73 N/A 95.552298 494

FNMA 1.375 2/26/2021 3135G0J20 1,520,000.00 1,473,060.79 02/26/2021 2.516 0.42 N/A 96.912156 271

FNMA 1.375 9/6/2022 3135G0W33 300,000.00 298,497.00 09/06/2022 1.568 0.09 N/A 99.499 828

FNMA 1.75 1/30/2023-20 3135G0X73 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 01/30/2023 1.750 1.43 N/A 100 974

FNMA 1.75 2/14/2024-20 3135G0Y31 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 02/14/2024 1.750 1.43 N/A 100 1,354

FNMA 1.8 10/28/2022-20 3135G0W74 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 10/28/2022 1.800 1.43 N/A 100 880

FNMA 1.83 11/23/2024-20 3136G4UF8 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 11/23/2024 1.830 1.43 N/A 100 1,637

FNMA 1.875 4/5/2022 3135G0T45 2,005,000.00 1,989,331.01 04/05/2022 2.147 0.57 N/A 99.223064 674

FNMA 1.9 2/18/2025-20 3135G0Y23 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 02/18/2025 1.900 1.43 N/A 100 1,724

FNMA 2 10/5/2022 3135G0T78 3,805,000.00 3,857,482.35 10/05/2022 1.511 1.10 N/A 101.379763 857

FNMA 2 9/28/2020-18 3136G4PH0 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 09/28/2020 2.000 1.43 N/A 100 120

FNMA 2.25 4/12/2022 3135G0V59 960,000.00 969,734.40 04/12/2022 1.871 0.28 N/A 101.014 681

FNMA 2.375 1/19/2023 3135G0T94 770,000.00 790,542.01 01/19/2023 1.448 0.23 N/A 102.667794 963

FNMA 2.375 1/19/2023 3135G0T94 1,050,000.00 1,093,638.00 01/19/2023 0.907 0.31 N/A 104.156 963

Sub Total / Average FNMA Bond 50,730,000.00 50,563,808.72 1.796 14.46 99.700411 965

NCCMT LGIP NCCMT599 63,662.13 63,662.13 N/A 0.200 0.02 N/A 100 1

NCCMT LGIP NCCMT135 10,653,849.48 10,653,849.48 N/A 0.590 3.05 N/A 100 1

NCCMT LGIP NCCMT481 11,019,459.02 11,019,459.02 N/A 0.200 3.15 N/A 100 1

NCCMT LGIP NCCMT271 62,555.77 62,555.77 N/A 0.200 0.02 N/A 100 1

Sub Total / Average Local Government Investment Pool 21,799,526.40 21,799,526.40 0.391 6.24 100 1

PINNACLE BANK MM PINNACLE 5,221,352.34 5,221,352.34 N/A 1.000 1.49 N/A 100 1

Sub Total / Average Money Market 5,221,352.34 5,221,352.34 1.000 1.49 100 1

Total / Average 350,310,878.74 349,625,993.76 1.520 100 99.810458 951

FNMA Bond

Local Government Investment Pool

Money Market

241


	Agenda
	I. Call to Order
	II. Pledge of Allegiance and Moment of Silent Prayer:
	III. Approval of Minutes:
	IV. Presentations
	IV. 1. Recognition of the City of Concord Finance Department for receiving the Certificateof Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting for period ending June 30,2019.
	IV. 2. Recognition of the City of Concord Human Resources Department for being awarded the 2020 Healthiest Employer of Greater Charlotte award.
	Healthiest Employers CBJ

	V. Unfinished Business
	VI. New Business
	A. Informational Items
	B. Departmental Reports
	C. Recognition of persons requesting to be heard
	D. Public Hearings
	VI. D. 1. Conduct a public hearing and consider adopting an ordinance for annexation of four (4) parcels located on the northeast side of the Rocky River Road and Lower Rocky River Road intersection.  The authorized petitioner for the annexation is Keith Rains, PE, of McKim and Creed.
	Staff Report
	Annexation Application 
	ANX-08-20 Subject Property Map
	Annexation Ordinance

	VI. D. 2. Conduct a public hearing to consider approving the submission of the Consolidated Plan for FY 2020-2024 and FY 2020-2021 Action Plan to the US Department of Housing and Urban Development Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) and HOME Investment Partnership (HOME) programs.
	Budget Table
	Draft CON Plan

	E. Presentations of Petitions and Requests
	VI. E. 1. Consider adopting a resolution of intent to schedule a public hearing on the matter of abandon a portion of the right-of-way of the former location of Wilshire Ave. SW between Old Charlotte Rd. SW and the new alignment of Wilshire Ave SW.
	Application
	Survey
	Resolution of Intent

	VI. E. 2. Consider authorizing the City Manager to negotiate and execute a contract with Talbert Bright and Ellington (TBE) to provide professional engineering services to mitigate obstructions at Concord-Padgett Regional airport and to adopt the operating budget amendment for the project.
	BUDGET ORDINANCE Tree obstruction project

	VI. E. 3. Consider approving Neighborhood Matching Grant requests submitted by Recognized Neighborhoods .
	FY21 NMG recommendation summary
	FY21 NMG request summary

	VI. E. 4. Consider adopting a resolution to create temporary COVID-19 related policies for the City's utility customers regarding utility shut-offs, late fees, and reconnection fees upon expiration of the Governor's Executive Order No. 124 & 142.
	EO 124 Utilities
	Concord Pay Plan Letter
	Concord Payment Plan
	Current Payment Plan 
	City Response Plan
	Resolution COVID 19 Utility
	EO 142

	VI. E. 5. Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the exchange of certain parking easements for other equal parking easements.
	20 06 17 Resolution for Parking Space Exchange
	EXHIBIT A - Central United Methodist Parking Lot Easement
	EXHIBIT B - Concord Easement

	VI. E. 6. Consider authorizing the City manager to negotiate and execute a contract with Queen City Engineering for Rider Transit Driver Protection Barriers.
	Transit Driver Barrier Door Quote Comparison
	Queen City Engineering Driver Barrier Door Proposal

	VI. E. 7. Consider approving the Concord Kannapolis Area Transit Public Transportation Agency Safety Plan
	Rider Transit Public Transportation Agency Safety Plan Link

	VI. E. 8. Consider approving the Master Plan and Conceptual Design for a 6.97 acre neighborhood park located at 106 Wilson Street, NE, trailhead parking for the McEachern Greenway.
	Wilson St DD Budget
	McEachern Greenway
	Wilson Street Site Plan
	Sketch Elevation

	VI. E. 9. Consider authorizing the City Manager to negotiate and execute a contract with Woolpert, North Carolina, PLLC to complete the master plan, public input, and conceptual design for the Northwest Park.
	Woolpert Northwest Park

	VI. E. 10. Consider authorizing the City Manager to negotiate and execute a contract with TELICS, Inc. for on-call Real Estate Services to assist with the land acquisition process for greenway development.
	TELICS 

	VI. E. 11. Consider adopting a resolution to convey a temporary construction easement to Cabarrus Propco, LLC.
	Resolution
	Exhibit A

	VI. E. 12. Consider a Preliminary Application from Land Development Solutions.
	Land Dev app
	Land Dev map

	VII.Consent Agenda
	VII. A. Consider accepting an Offer of Dedication of an access easement and approval of the maintenance agreement.
	Blue Anchor

	VII. B. Consider accepting an Offer of Dedication of utility easements and publicrights-of-ways in various subdivisions.
	VII. C. Consider adopting a budget ordinance to correct an error in the HOME budget.
	Adjust Program Income to Actual for FY21

	VII. D. Consider adopting a General Capital Reserve Project ordinance to close completed transfers for FYE 2020.
	GCR Close Transfers

	VII. E. Consider adopting a Utility Reserve fund capital project ordinance amendment to close prior year completed transfers.
	UCR closing transfers

	VII. F. Consider adopting a Water capital project ordinance to remove the Roberta Road Line project.
	Roberta Road

	VII. G. Consider adopting a Wastewater project ordinance to close projects that are not currently planned.
	Closing WW Projects

	VII. H. Consider approving the City's semi-annual debt report as of July 1, 2020.
	June 30 2020 Debt

	VII. I. Consider acceptance of the Tax Office reports for the month of May 2020.
	TAX COLLECTIONS MAY20

	VII. J. Consider approval of Tax Releases/Refunds from the Tax Collection Office for the month of May 2020.
	RELEASE REFUND DISCOVERY MAY20

	VII. K. Receive monthly report on status of investments as of May 31, 2020.
	May 2020

	VIII. Matters not on the agenda
	• TAC
	• MTC
	• Centralina Council of Government (CCOG)
	Concord/Kannapolis Transit Commission
	WSACC
	• Public Art Advisory Committee
	Concord Family Enrichment Association
	• PTT Committee
	• Barber Scotia Property Task Force Committee
	IX. General comments by Council of non-business nature
	X. Closed Session (if needed)
	XI. Adjournment



